
1 

 

 

 
MEETING: CABINET MEMBER - COMMUNITIES 
  
DATE: Wednesday 4 November 2009 
  
TIME: 11.00 am 
  
VENUE: Town Hall, Southport (this meeting will be video conferenced to 

the Town Hall, Bootle) 

  
 

Councillor 
 
DECISION MAKER: Porter 
SUBSTITUTE: Griffiths 
  
 
SPOKESPERSONS: Booth 

 
Veidman 
 

SUBSTITUTES: Weavers 
 

Friel 
 

 
 COMMITTEE OFFICER: Olaf Hansen Committee Clerk 
 Telephone: 0151 934 2067 
 Fax: 0151 934 2034 
 E-mail: olaf.hansen@legal.sefton.gov.uk 
 

The Cabinet is responsible for making what are known as Key Decisions, 
which will be notified on the Forward Plan.  Items marked with an * on the 
agenda involve Key Decisions 
A key decision, as defined in the Council’s Constitution, is: - 
● any Executive decision that is not in the Annual Revenue Budget and 

Capital Programme approved by the Council and which requires a gross 
budget expenditure, saving or virement of more than £100,000 or more 
than 2% of a Departmental budget, whichever is the greater 

● any Executive decision where the outcome will have a significant impact 
on a significant number of people living or working in two or more Wards 

 
 

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 
Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist. 

 

Public Document Pack



2 

 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank.



3 

A G E N D A 
 
Items marked with an * involve key decisions 
 

 Item 
No. 

Subject/Author(s) Wards Affected  

 

  1. Apologies for Absence 
 

  

  2. Declarations of Interest   

  Members and Officers are requested to give notice 
of any personal or prejudicial interest and the nature 
of that interest, relating to any item on the agenda in 
accordance with the relevant Code of Conduct.  
 

  

  3. Minutes  (Pages 5 - 10) 

  Minutes of the meeting held on 14 October, 
2009  
 

  

  4. Combined Implications for Sefton of the 
Draft Flood and Water Bill / Pitt Review 

All Wards (Pages 11 - 64) 

  Report of the Strategic Director of Regeneration 
and Environmental Services.  
 

  

  5. Safer and Stronger Communities 
Partnership Capital Allocation 

All Wards (Pages 65 - 68) 

  Report of Assistant Chief Executive (Safer and 
Stronger Communities)  
 

  

  6. Sefton Trading Standards Alcohol Survey of 
Young People - August 2009 

All Wards (Pages 69 - 128) 

  Report of the Environmental Protection Director 
 
 

  

  7. Sefton Trading Standards Alcohol Survey of 
Young People - "Operation Soft Drink : 
Phase 2 - Buy Booze, They Lose" 

All Wards (Pages 129 - 142) 

  Report of the Environmental Protection Director 
  
 

  

  8. Area Committee Meetings - Minutes 
 

  

A Litherland and Ford held on 30 September 
2009 
 

 (Pages 143 - 146) 



4 

 

B St.Oswald and Netherton and Orrell held on 
1 October 2009 
 

 (Pages 147 - 152) 

C Formby held on 1 October, 2009 
 

 (Pages 153 - 164) 

D Crosby held on 7 October, 2009 
 

 (Pages 165 - 170) 

 



THE “CALL IN” PERIOD FOR THIS SET OF MINUTES ENDS AT 12 NOON ON 

TUESDAY 27 OCTOBER, 2009. 

 

13 

CABINET MEMBER - COMMUNITIES 

 

MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, SOUTHPORT  

ON WEDNESDAY 14 OCTOBER 2009 

 
PRESENT: Councillor  Porter 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillors Booth and Veidman 
 
 
30. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
No apologies for absence were received. 
 
 
31. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 
 
32. MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 9 September 2009, be confirmed 
as a correct record. 
 
 
33. PARTICIPATORY BUDGETING  

 
The Cabinet Member considered the report of the Planning and Economic 
Regeneration Director that provided an update on the Litherland and Ford 
Participatory Budgeting Pilot scheme. The report also informed of 
proposals to extend Participatory Budgeting to Church and Manor wards.  
 
RESOLVED: That 
 
(1) the Participatory Budgeting pilot scheme, being operated in 

Litherland and Ford wards, be noted; and 
 
(2) the Planning and Economic Regeneration Director be authorised to 

sign up to the roll out of this approach to Church and Manor wards.   
 
 
34. GYPSY AND TRAVELLER STRATEGY GROUP UPDATE  

 
The Cabinet Member considered the joint report of the Strategic Director 
of Adult Social Services (Health and Social Care), the Environmental 
Protection Director and the Sefton Equalities Partnership Director that 
provided a summary of the current activity of the Gypsy and Traveller 

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



CABINET MEMBER - COMMUNITIES- WEDNESDAY 14 OCTOBER 
2009 
 

14 

Strategy Group and some current key issues being considered by the 
Group. 
 
RESOLVED: That 
 
(1) the Gypsy and Traveller Strategy Group Update report be noted; 

and 
 
(2) the Strategic Director of Adult Social Services (Health and Social 

Care), the Environmental Protection Director and the Sefton 
Equalities Partnership Director be requested to draft regular update 
reports from the Strategy Group, which will include any suggested 
locations for traveller sites. 

 
 
35. DIVERSITY AND INTER-FAITH WEEKS - MONDAY 9TH 

NOVEMBER - FRIDAY 20TH NOVEMBER 2009  

 
The Cabinet Member considered the report of the Sefton Equalities 
Partnership Director with information on the planned events to take place 
during Diversity and Inter-Faith weeks, which would be held from Monday 
9 November to Friday 20 November 2009.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Diversity and Inter-Faith weeks - Monday 9 November to Friday 
20 November 2009 report be noted. 
 
 
36. LOCAL RESILIENCE ACTION PLAN - RESPONDING TO THE 

RECESSION  

 
The Cabinet Member considered the report of the Sefton Equalities 
Partnership Director that provided information on the Local Resilience 
Action Plan. The report explained that the Council and its partners needed 
to provide a joint response to deal to the current recession.  The Local 
Resilience Action Plan gave details of the actions that would be taken by 
the Council and its Partners.  
 
A copy of the Local Resilience Action Plan was attached as an annexe to 
the report. 
 
RESOLVED: That 
 
(1) the Local Resilience Action Plan report and the attached Local 

Resilience Action Plan be noted; and 
 
(2) the Sefton Equalities Partnership Director be requested to draft 

regular update reports on the progress of the Plan. 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 6



CABINET MEMBER - COMMUNITIES- WEDNESDAY 14 OCTOBER 
2009 
 

15 

37. MIGRATION IMPACT FUND  

 
The Cabinet Member considered the report of the Sefton Equalities 
Partnership Director that gave details of the Council’s successful bid to the 
Migration Impact Fund. The Council, as part of a Consortium, had recently 
been awarded £342,000 for 2009/10 from the Migration Impact Fund.   
 
RESOLVED: That 
 
(1) the Migration Impact Fund report, be noted; and  
 
(2) the Sefton Equalities Partnership Director be requested to draft 

regular update reports on the progress of the project and the 
decision relating to funding for year 2 of the project. 

 
 
38. VALUES STATEMENT  

 
The Cabinet Member considered the report of the Sefton Equalities 
Partnership Director that provided an update on the work undertaken to 
date on the Values Statement. The report also sought agreement on 
rolling out the Values Statement and its work across the whole of Sefton. 
 
The Cabinet Member thanked and commended the Park Lane 
Neighbourhood Management Team for their sterling work in developing 
the Values Statement initiative. 
 
RESOLVED: That 
 
(1) the Sefton Equalities Partnership Director be requested to forward 

the Values Statement and its associated work (including its contents 
and recommendations for adoption) to the Chairs of the Area 
Committees and the Chief Executive of Sefton MBC; 

 
(2) the Sefton Equalities Partnership Director be requested to consult 

with Chairs of the Area Committees to consider how the Statement 
may be best adopted for their geographic area, and who may be best 
placed to undertake this task; and 

 
(3) the Sefton Equalities Partnership Director be requested to identify 

key services across the Council and the role they can play in 
supporting the roll out of the Values Statement. 

 
 
39. INITIAL RESULTS OF THE 2008 PLACE SURVEY  

 
The Cabinet Member considered the report of the Public Engagement and 
Consultation Officer setting out the initial results of the 2008 Place Survey 
for Sefton which provided information on people's perceptions of their local 
area and the local services received. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 7



CABINET MEMBER - COMMUNITIES- WEDNESDAY 14 OCTOBER 
2009 
 

16 

The report set out background information and the Place Survey National 
Indicator results for Sefton compared to the England and North West 
averages, neighbouring authorities and the 36 Metropolitan Authorities, 
together with other relevant information.  
 
RESOLVED:    
 

That the Initial Results of the 2008 Place Survey report be noted. 
 
 
40. SAFE AND SECURE TOWN CENTRE AT NIGHT AUDIT - 

SOUTHPORT  

 
Further to Minute No.50 of the meeting of Cabinet Member - 
Environmental held on 23 September 2009, the Cabinet Member 
considered the report of the Environmental Protection Director advising of 
the “Safe and Secure Town Centre at Night Audit of Southport” (the Audit), 
a strategic intervention to assess the issues involved in alcohol-related 
violence and disorder in town centres at night; and indicating that a 
decision on this matter was required to obtain support from the Public 
Health Partnership for further town centre audits. 
  
The report indicated that the Audit was carried out between April and June 
2009 using a ‘toolkit’ that was broken down into 13 categories; and 
summarised the findings from each category relating to: 
  

• partnership working  

• data and information sharing  

• licensed premises  

• policing strategies  

• capable guardians and street welfare  

• CCTV  

• lighting  

• underage drinking  

• transport  

• offenders and victims  

• visual cues in the town centre  

• fast food outlets  

• access routes for space allocation  
  
The report concluded by recommending the action required to be taken to 
satisfy the minimum standard for a safe and secure town centre. 
  
Attached as an annexe to the report was a copy of the “Safety and Secure 
Town Centres at Night Toolkit”. 
 
The Cabinet Member praised and commended the strong and effective 
relationships between various agencies involved with the Southport Safe 
and Secure Town Centre at Night initiative. 
  

Agenda Item 3

Page 8



CABINET MEMBER - COMMUNITIES- WEDNESDAY 14 OCTOBER 
2009 
 

17 

RESOLVED:  That 
  
(1) the Safe and Secure Town Centre at Night Audit – Southport report 

be noted; 
  
(2) the findings of the “Safe and Secure Town Centre at Night Audit of 

Southport” be noted and further work be encouraged towards areas 
of potential improvement in the areas outlined in the report; and 

  
(3) the Public Health Partnership Alcohol Strategy Group and the 

Alcohol Related Crime Sub-Group be requested to consider the 
recommendations in the Audit report. 

 
 
41. AREA COMMITTEE MEETINGS - MINUTES  

 
The Cabinet Member considered the Minutes of the following Area 
Committees: 
 

Linacre and Derby held on 17 August, 2009 
St.Oswald and Netherton and Orrell held on 27 August, 2009 
Litherland and Ford held on 2 September, 2009 
Southport held on 2 September, 2009 
Crosby held on 9 September, 2009 
Sefton East Parishes held on 10 September, 2009 
Linacre and Derby held on 21 September, 2009 
Southport held on 30 September, 2009 

 
RESOLVED: That 
 
(1) the Minutes of the above Area Committee meetings be noted; and 
 
(2) further to Minute No.54 of Southport Area Committee the Planning 

and Economic Regeneration Director be requested to take further 
reports on the Southport Cycle Town-East-West Link Proposals to 
the Cabinet.  

 
 
42. SAFER & STRONGER COMMUNITIES PARTNERSHIP PLAN  

 
The Cabinet Member considered the report of the Assistant Chief 
Executive (Safer, Stronger Communities) that advised of the publication 
and content of the Safer & Stronger Communities Partnership Plan. The 
Local Authority was a statutory responsible partner within the Crime and 
Disorder Reduction Partnership (CDRP). The report went on to explain 
that the CDRP had a statutory duty to produce a 3 year Partnership Plan.  
 
A copy of Sefton’s Safer & Stronger Communities Partnership 2009/12 
was attached as an annex to the report. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 9



CABINET MEMBER - COMMUNITIES- WEDNESDAY 14 OCTOBER 
2009 
 

18 

RESOLVED: That 
 
(1) the publication and content of the Safer and Stronger Communities 

Partnership Plan be noted; 
    
(2) the vision, values and priorities contained within the Safer and 

Stronger Communities Partnership Plan be supported; and 
  
(3) the new Safer and Stronger Communities Partnership website be 

noted. 
 
 
43. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business 
on the grounds that it/they would involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act. 
The Public Interest Test has been applied and favours exclusion of the 
information from the press and public. 
 
 
44. INFORMING THE PUBLIC - PUBLIC CONFIDENCE AND SOCIAL 

MARKETING TEAM - LAA PUMP PRIMING GRANT  

 
The Assistant Chief Executive (Safer, Stronger Communities) advised that 
the Informing the Public Confidence and Social Marketing Team – LAA 
Pump Priming Grant report had been withdrawn from the agenda and 
would be re-submitted for consideration at the November meeting. 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 10



  

REPORT TO: 
 

CABINET MEMBER - COMMUNITIES 

DATE: 
 

4 November 2009 

SUBJECT: 
 

COMBINED IMPLICATIONS FOR SEFTON OF THE DRAFT FLOOD & 
WATER BILL/PITT REVIEW  

WARDS AFFECTED: 
 

ALL 

REPORT OF: 
 

AR Moore - Strategic Director Regeneration and Environmental 
Services 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

J H Baker (0151 934 4202) 
GA Gee (0151 934 2291) 

EXEMPT/ 
CONFIDENTIAL: 
 
 

No 
 

PURPOSE/SUMMARY: 
 
The purpose of this report is to advise the Cabinet Member of the implications of the Draft Flood & 
Water Bill and the continuing implications of the Pitt Review recommendations, for Local Authorities 
either directly or indirectly. 
 
REASON WHY DECISION REQUIRED: 
 
The Cabinet Member is lead Member for emergency planning issues. 
 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
That Members note the report and the identified implications for Sefton arising from both the draft 
Floods and Water Bill and the Pitt Review recommendations.  
 
That Members note that Overview and Scrutiny (Regeneration and Environmental Services) on 20th 
October are considering a report on Climate Change and Flooding, including future funding for this 
service. 
 
That the report be passed to the Cabinet Member for Regeneration, Technical Services and 
Environmental for their information. 
 
That Officers from Regeneration and Environmental Services and Emergency Planning Unit, 
supported by the relevant partner agencies, should form a project team to report back to Members 
various options for implementing the new roles and responsibilities and the likely cost implications. 
 
 
 
KEY DECISION: 
 

 
NO 

FORWARD PLAN: 
 

N/A 

IMPLEMENTATION DATE: 
 

Immediately following the expiry of the “call-in” period for 
the minutes of this meeting. 
 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 11



  

 

 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS: N/A 
 
 
 

 
 
IMPLICATIONS: 
 

 
 
 

Budget/Policy Framework: 
 
 

The Financial Implications are unknown at this stage but 
should become clearer following the review by the Project 
Team. 

Financial: 

 

 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

2009/ 
2010 

£ 

2010/ 
2011 

£ 

2011/ 
2012 

£ 

2012/ 
2013 

£ 
Gross Increase in Capital Expenditure     

Funded by:     

Sefton Capital Resources      

Specific Capital Resources     

REVENUE IMPLICATIONS     

Gross Increase in Revenue Expenditure     

Funded by:     

Sefton funded Resources      

Funded from External Resources     

Does the External Funding have an expiry date? Y/N  

How will the service be funded post expiry?  

 
Legal: 
 
 

N/A 

Risk Assessment: 
 
 

Flooding identified as a Very High Risk within the 
Merseyside Local Resilience Forum 2009 Community Risk 
Register. 

Asset Management: 
 
 
 

Some of the Flood and Water Bill provisions are likely to 
lead to more detailed understanding of flood risk in Sefton 
so may inform future asset management decisions. 

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN/VIEWS 
PLANNING 
FD 176 - The Finance and Information Services Director has been consulted and 
his comments have been incorporated into this report 
 

Some 
CORPORATE OBJECTIVE MONITORING: 
 
Corporate 
Objective 

 Positive Neutral Negative 

Agenda Item 4

Page 12



  

Impact Impact Impact 

1 Creating a Learning Community  √  

2 Creating Safe Communities √   

3 Jobs and Prosperity  √  

4 Improving Health and Well-Being √   

5 Environmental Sustainability √   

6 Creating Inclusive Communities  √  

7 Improving the Quality of Council Services and 
Strengthening local Democracy 

 √  

8 Children and Young People 
 

 √  

 

 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS RELIED UPON IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
 
Cabinet Member Communities Report 23 April 2008 ‘Implications for Sefton of the Pitt Review 
Report.’ 
Overview & Scrutiny (Regeneration and Environmental Services) Report 20 October 2009 ‘Climate 
Change and Inland Flooding in Sefton’-  
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 13



  

BACKGROUND: 
1.0 Pitt Review 
 

1.1 In August 2007, Sir Michael Pitt was asked by ministers to carry out a 
review of the flood-related emergencies that occurred during the summer of 
2007. His final report, ‘The Pitt Review’ report, can be viewed at 
http://archive.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/pittreview/thepittreview.html.  

 
1.2 The report contains some 92 recommendations. They are strategic in 

nature, but with implications for every locality in the country. It considers 
climate change, flood risks and weather forecasting and the need to 
strengthen and enforce both Planning and Building Regulations to ensure 
flood resistance and resilience measures are built into any new 
developments.  

 
1.3 The report also suggests there is room for improved inter-agency co-

operation and recommends that local authorities should adopt a new 
leadership and scrutiny role overseeing flood risk management within their 
local area 

 
1.4 The Government’s response to the final report was released in December 

2008 and is supportive of the conclusions and recommendations. The 
Government also indicated that any investment required for longer term 
implementation would be considered as part of the next comprehensive 
spending review but that all new burdens for local authorities will be funded. 

 
1.5 Of the 92 recommendations, some 27 have either a direct Local Authority 

lead role or a leading role through its membership of the Local Resilience 
Forum. These lead roles will need to be driven through either the Office of 
the Chief Executive or Regeneration. Details of the 27 recommendations 
are shown in appendix A. 

 
2.0 Draft Flood and Water Bill 
 

2.1 The Government also identified that it would be legislating to support its 
response to the Pitt Review, by presenting a Draft Floods and Water Bill 
which it released in April 2009 for consultation. 

 
2.2 Sir Michael Pitt’s report also recommended that flooding legislation should 

be updated and streamlined under a single unifying Act of Parliament that 
addresses all sources of flooding, clarifying responsibilities and facilitating 
flood risk management.  

 
2.3 The Government have indicated that the new Bill will enable it to meet 

many of Sir Michael Pitt’s recommendations by simplifying the existing 
complex and outdated flood and coastal erosion risk management 
legislation including the interrelationship of roles and responsibilities 
between the various responsible bodies that includes local authorities. It will 
unify the identified legislative needs in two previous strategy documents, 

Agenda Item 4

Page 14



  

Future Water, Making Space for Water with the Pitt Review and transpose 
the EU Floods Directive by placing those duties on the relevant bodies. 

 
2.4 The Government have said that the main aims of the Bill can be grouped 

under three themes of Security, Service and Sustainability: 
 

§ Greater security for people and their property from the risk of 
flooding and coastal erosion by creating clearer structures and 
responsibilities for managing that risk, building on its response to 
the Pitt Review. Improving leadership on flood risk, and enable 
better planning for and prediction and warning of floods; 

 
§ Better service for people through new ways of delivering major 

infrastructure projects, improving complaints and enforcement 
procedures; and 

 
§ Greater sustainability by helping people and their communities to 

adapt to the increasing likelihood of severe weather events due to 
climate change, encouraging sustainable drainage systems in new 
developments, protecting communities and the environment better 
from the risk of flooding. 

 
2.5 The Bill is structured in eight Parts, with Parts 1,2 and 5 being of particular 

relevance to Sefton. Part 3 relates to reservoirs while Parts 4, 6, 7 are 
aimed at the Water Industry. Part 8 sets out various supplementary 
provisions that apply generally to the draft Bill. Details of the Bill clauses 
and local authority actions are shown in appendix B. 

 
2.6 The draft Bill contains provisions to implement recommendations from Sir 

Michael Pitt’s Review to improve the management of local flood risk. Local 
authorities will therefore have a leadership role for local flood risk 
management which includes ensuring that flood risk from all sources, 
including from surface run-off, groundwater and ordinary watercourses, is 
identified and managed as part of locally agreed work programmes. This 
includes, for example, the preparation of Surface Water Management 
Plans, and various other flood risk plans. The government has identified 
that the average Surface Water Management Plan costs £100,000 to 
prepare. 

 
2.7 In addition, the Government has suggested that they anticipate that Local 

Authority’s ‘…will invest £100,000 annually in flood mitigation 
measures for surface water run-off and groundwater which will 
produce a real benefit for local flood risk.’ 

 
2.8  The Government suggest that this enhanced role for local authorities, 

leading new local partnerships and responsibility for sustainable drainage 
systems, (SUDS); will be pivotal to the success of this much stronger and 
more comprehensive approach to flood risk management.  

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 15



  

2.9 Appendix C shows the future roles for Local Authorities and the 
Environment Agency, who will have a strategic overview role of flood and 
coastal erosion risk management in England. 

 
2.10 A detailed explanation of the changes and the Governments expectations 

in relation to the draft legislation is shown in Appendix D. 
 

3.0 Conclusions and Recommendations. 
 

3.1 The final review by Sir Michael Pitt contains a number of far reaching 
conclusions and recommendations, which will have direct implications for 
the Council in the future.  

 
3.2 Officers are currently engaging with our partner organisations in 

understanding and responding to the actions identified by the Governments 
response to the Pitt Review. 

 
3.3 The Floods and Water Bill contains legislation that will place a statuary 

responsibility to undertake the roles and actions identified in the 
Governments response to the Pitt Review.  

 
3.4 While the Government has indicated that all new burdens for local 

authorities will be funded, the detail of this has not been presented. For 
example, the extent to which the proposed duty for the Council to act as the 
sustainable drainage systems approving body and maintain such systems 
can be offset against savings due to the transfer of private sewers to United 
Utilities has still to be determined. 

 
3.5 It is therefore recommended that Members note the report and the 

identified implications for Sefton arising from both the draft Floods and 
Water Bill and the Pitt Review recommendations. 

 
3.6 That the report be passed to the Cabinet Member for Regeneration, 

Technical Services and Environmental for their information.   
 

3.7 That officers from Regeneration and Environmental Services and the 
Emergency Planning Unit, supported by the relevant partner agencies, 
should form a project team to report back to Members various options for 
implementing the new roles and responsibilities and the likely cost 
implications. 

 
3.8 Although the detailed resource implications in implementing the Pitt Review 

and this new legislation are not yet clear, flood risk identification and 
management are clearly now a priority for Government. A separate report 
to Overview and Scrutiny (Regeneration and Environmental Services) on 
20th October is considering the current levels of funding for this service. The 
table below summarises the current Drainage budget and compares this to 
the 2004/05 level. 

 
Drainage Function 220 2004/05 Budgets 2    2009/10 Budgets 

Agenda Item 4

Page 16



  

£k £k 
Highway Drainage 275 250 (45K offered 

as a saving last 
year) 

Land Drainage 105 123 
Gully Cleansing 272 222 

Total 652 595 
 
 

 
A.R. Moore  
Strategic Director Regeneration and Environmental Services 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 17



  

APPENDIX  A -  Implications for Sefton of the Pitt Review Report 
Recommendations 
 

 
Rec. 
No 

Final Recommendation Delivery 
Timetable 

Lead 
Organisation 

Sefton Lead Sefton 
Position/Action 

7 There should be a presumption 
against building in high flood risk 
areas, in accordance with PPS25, 
including giving consideration to all 
sources of flood risk and ensuring 
that developers make a full 
contribution to the costs both of 
building and maintaining any 
necessary defences. 

Beginning 
immediately. 
Revision of 
PPS25 in Spring 
2009 
 
 

Local Authorities Planning Borough wide 
Strategic Flood Risk 
Assessment being 
undertaken in 
connection with 
future development 
sites.  

12 All local authorities should extend 
eligibility for home improvement 
grants and loans to include flood 
resistance and resilience products 
for properties in high flood-risk 
areas. 

Bids to be 
sought from 
Local Authorities 
early in 2009, 
with further in 
late 2009 and 
2010. 

Local Authorities 
 

Home 
Improvement 
Section 

Unknown Talk to 
HIS 

13 Local authorities, in discharging their 
responsibilities under the Civil  
Contingencies Act 2004 to promote 
business continuity, should 
encourage the take-up of property 
flood resistance and resilience by 
businesses. 

Government has 
already taken 
action to support  
Local Authorities 
in implementing 
this. 
 

Local Authorities 
 

Emergency 
Planning 

Being actively 
promoted through 
for example leaflet 
drops & Website, 
Business Continuity 
Forum across 
Merseyside. 

14 Local authorities should lead on the 
management of local flood risk, with 
the support of the relevant 
organisations. 

Actioned by end 
2010, supported 
by new Floods 
and Water Bill 

Local Authorities Drainage 
Capita 

To be progressed 

15 Local authorities should positively 
tackle local problems of flooding by 
working with all relevant parties, 
establishing ownership and legal 
responsibility. 

Beginning 
immediately, 
supported by 
new Floods and 
Water Bill 

Local Authorities Drainage 
Capita 

Progressing very 
slowly due to budget 
problems 

16 Local authorities should collate and 
map the main flood risk 
management and drainage assets 
(over and underground), including a 
record of their ownership and 
condition. 

Actioned by end 
2010, supported 
by new Floods 
and Water Bill  
 

Local Authorities Drainage 
Capita 

Commenced, 
funded to date by 
Environment Agency 

18 Local Surface Water Management 
Plans, as set out under PPS25 and 
coordinated by local authorities, 
should provide the basis for 
managing all local flood risk. 

Priority Surface 
Water 
Management 
Plans completed 
by end 2010 

Environment 
Agency & Local 
Authorities 
  

Planning/ 
Drainage 
Capita 

No progress to date 
Talk to Planning 

19 Local authorities should assess and, 
if appropriate, enhance their 
technical capabilities to deliver a 
wide range of responsibilities in 
relation to local flood risk  
management. 

Beginning 
immediately, 
completed to 
support new 
statutory duties 
by end 2010 

Local Authorities Chief 
Executive/ 
Cabinet 

Sefton has a 
Drainage Team 
retention will be a 
Capita issue. but 
may need further  
funding for 
additional  resources 
as this is additional 
work. 

38 Local authorities should establish 
mutual aid agreements in 
accordance with the guidance 
currently being prepared by the 
Local Government Association and 
the Cabinet Office. 

Guidance 
issued. 
 
 

Local Authorities 
and Cabinet Office 
 

Chief 
Executive/ 
Cabinet 

Merseyside wide 
mutual aid 
agreement in place. 

41 Upper tier local authorities should be 
the lead responders in relation to 
multiagency planning for severe 
weather emergencies at the local 
level and for triggering multi-agency 
arrangements in response to severe 
weather warnings and local impact 
assessments. 

In consultation 
guidance to be 
issued in Spring 
2009  
 

Local Authorities Emergency 
Planning 

Local Resilience 
Forum, Flooding & 
Severe Weather 
Group established 
and processing 
recommendations. 

42 Where a Gold Command is In consultation Local Resilience Emergency This is the agreed 

Agenda Item 4

Page 18



  

Rec. 
No 

Final Recommendation Delivery 
Timetable 

Lead 
Organisation 

Sefton Lead Sefton 
Position/Action 

established for severe weather 
events, the police, unless agreed 
otherwise locally, should convene 
and lead the multi-agency response. 

guidance to be 
issued in Spring 
2009  

Forums 
 

Planning operating format at 
present. 

43 Gold Commands should be 
established at an early stage on a 
precautionary basis where there is a 
risk of serious flooding. 

In consultation 
guidance to be 
issued in Spring 
2009 

Local Resilience 
Forums 

Emergency 
Planning 

This is the agreed 
operating format at 
present. 

44 Category 1 and 2 responders should 
assess the effectiveness of their 
emergency response facilities, 
including flexible accommodation, IT 
and communications systems, and 
undertake any necessary 
improvement works. 

Facilities 
reviewed by end 
2008, 
Government 
expectation 
details to be 
launched early 
2009. 

Local Authorities Emergency 
Planning 

Established within 
Sefton, continually 
reviewed, each 
Dept. has its own 
business continuity 
plan in connection 
with flooding. 

64 Local Resilience Forums should 
continue to develop plans for door-
knocking, coordinated by local 
authorities, to enhance flood 
warnings before flooding and to 
provide information and assess 
welfare needs once flooding has 
receded. 

Developed as 
part of local 
flood emergency 
plans. 
 

Local Resilience 
Forums 

Emergency 
Planning 

Implications still 
being considered 

66 Local authority contact centres 
should take the lead in dealing with 
general enquiries from the public 
during and after major flooding, 
redirecting calls to other 
organisations when appropriate. 

Government to 
consider if 
specific 
guidance 
required by 
Spring 2009 

Local Authorities Chief 
Executive/ 
Emergency 
Planning/ 
Avarto 

Negotiations being 
undertaken by 
Sefton with Avarto to 
provide this support 
role. 

68 Council leaders and chief executives 
should play a prominent role in 
public reassurance and advice 
through the local media during a 
flooding emergency, as part of a 
coordinated effort overseen by Gold 
Commanders. 

In consultation 
guidance to be 
issued in Spring 
2009 

Local Authorities Chief 
Executive/ 
Cabinet 

Existing Council 
responsibility, 
systems in place. 

72 Local response and recovery 
coordinating groups should ensure 
that health and well-being support is 
readily available to those affected by 
flooding based on the advice 
developed by the Department of 
Health. 

All parties 
should have 
been made 
aware of the 
available advice 
& guidance. 
 

Local Authorities &  
Local Resilience 
Forums 

Chief 
Executive/ 
Emergency 
Planning 

Systems in place, 
continually 
monitored, reviewed 

74 The monitoring of the impact of 
flooding on the health and well being 
of people, and actions to mitigate 
and manage the effects, should form 
a systematic part of the work of 
Recovery Coordinating Groups. 

Monitoring 
arrangements 
embedded in 
systems and 
processes by 
end of 2009 

Local Authorities Chief 
Executive/ 
Emergency 
Planning 

Part of role of group 
when actioned 
following an 
incident. 

76 Local authorities should coordinate a 
systematic programme of community 
engagement in their area during the 
recovery phase. 

Further 
guidance to be 
provided by 
Government. 

Local Authorities Chief 
Executive/ 
Cabinet 

Engagement of local 
community being 
progressed. 

77 National and local Recovery 
Coordinating Groups should be 
established from the outset of major 
emergencies and in due course 
there should be formal handover 
from the crisis machinery. 

Already 
implemented but 
further guidance 
in Spring 2009 
 

CLG & Local 
Authorities 

Chief 
Executive/ 
Emergency 
Planning 

Mechanism already 
in place. 

78 Aims and objectives for the recovery 
phase should be agreed at the 
outset by Recovery Coordinating 
Groups to provide focus and enable 
orderly transition into mainstream 
programmes when multi-agency 
coordination of recovery is no longer 
required. 

Already 
implemented but 
further guidance 
in Spring 2009 

Local Authorities Chief 
Executive/ 
Emergency 
Planning 

Mechanism already 
in place. 

80 All central government guidance 
should be updated to reflect the new 
arrangements for recovery and Local 
Resilience Forums should plan, train 
and exercise on this basis.  

Updated 
guidance by 
Spring 2009 

Cabinet Office, 
CLG and Local 
Resilience 
Forums 
 

Emergency 
Planning 

 Ongoing, as new 
plans developed, 
new guidance is 
added. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 19



  

Rec. 
No 

Final Recommendation Delivery 
Timetable 

Lead 
Organisation 

Sefton Lead Sefton 
Position/Action 

83 Local authorities should continue to 
make arrangements to bear the cost 
of recovery for all but the most 
exceptional emergencies, and 
should revisit their reserves and 
insurance arrangements in light of 
last summer’s floods. 

Updated 
guidance issued, 
now fully 
implemented. 
 

Local Authorities Chief 
Executive/ 
Finance 

No change to 
existing funding 
arrangement, 
Director of Finance 
to be requested to 
report on this 
recommendation. 

85 Local Recovery Coordination 
Groups should make early 
recommendations to elected local 
authority members about longer-
term regeneration and economic 
development opportunities. 

Updated 
guidance issued, 
now fully 
implemented 

Local Authorities Chief 
Executive/ 
Cabinet 

Mechanism already 
in place. 

90 All upper tier local authorities should 
establish Oversight and Scrutiny 
Committees to review work by public 
sector bodies and essential service 
providers in order to manage flood 
risk, underpinned by a legal 
requirement to cooperate and share 
information. 

Updated 
guidance by 
Spring 2009 
Implementation 
timetable to be 
agreed. 

Local Authorities 
and Cabinet Office 
 

Chief 
Executive/ 
Cabinet 

Committee in place 
but need to include 
this as a ‘term of 
reference’. 

91 Each Oversight and Scrutiny 
Committee should prepare an 
annual summary of actions taken 
locally to manage flood risk and 
implement this Review, and these 
reports should be public and 
reviewed by Government Offices 
and the Environment Agency. 

Updated 
guidance by 
Spring 2009 
Implementation 
timetable to be 
agreed. 
 

Local Authorities, 
Government 
Offices and 
Environment 
Agency 
 

Chief 
Executive/ 
Cabinet 

Committee in place 
but need to include 
this as a ‘term of 
reference’ 

92 Local Resilience Forums should 
evaluate and share lessons from 
both the response and recovery 
phases to inform their planning for 
future emergencies.  

Updated 
guidance by 
Spring 2009. 
Ongoing local 
implementation. 

Local Authorities Emergency 
Planning 

Debriefing and 
lessons learned 
process already in 
place. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 20



  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 21



  

APPENDIX B - Draft Flood and Water Bill Assessment of Actions for Sefton 
 
Clause No Description Action 

Part 1 Flood & Coastal Erosion Risk Management 

1 Overview 

a) gives the Environment Agency responsibility for supervising the management 

of flood risk and coastal erosion risk, 

(b) gives unitary authorities and certain county councils responsibility for 

supervising the management of flood risk relating to surface runoff, groundwater 

and ordinary watercourses in their area, 

(c) imposes duties on the Agency, unitary authorities and certain county councils 

to assess flood risk and plan for its management in their capacity as competent 

authorities for the purposes of Directive 2007/60/EC, and 

(d) imposes other duties and confers powers on the Agency, local authorities and 

other authorities for the purpose of managing flood risk and coastal erosion risk. 

LA’s shall set Local Strategy for local flood risk management by:- 

• Leadership and accountability for ensuring effective management of local flood 

risk from ordinary watercourses, surface run-off and groundwater. 

• Production of local flood risk assessments, maps and plans including an asset 

register. 

• Improved drainage and flood risk management expertise. 

• Co-ordinate Surface Water Management Plan production. 

• Drainage from non-Highways Agency roads 

• Prioritising local investment. 

• Consenting and enforcement powers for certain works affecting ordinary 

watercourses. 

• Promoting partnerships with local planning authorities to produce Strategic 

Flood Risk Assessments. 

 

2-14 Definitions  

15-17 The Environment Agency must develop, maintain and apply a strategy for flood 

and coastal erosion risk management in England, publish a summary of it and may 

issue guidance on it. 

 

19-21 A lead local flood authority in England must develop, maintain and apply a 

strategy for local flood risk management in its area, publish a summary of it, and 

may issue guidance. 

Local authorities will have a leadership role for local flood risk management which 

includes ensuring that flood risk from all sources, including from surface run-off, 

groundwater and ordinary watercourses, is identified and managed as part of 

locally agreed work programmes. In the same way it does for the EA National 

Strategy, the draft Bill requires a unitary local authority to publish their strategy. It 

places a duty on the district local authority and IDBs to act in a manner, which is 

consistent with that strategy and any supplementary guidance the local authority 

issues. It also places a duty on other listed bodies to have regard to the strategy and 

guidance 

22/23 Requires relevant authorities in England, in exercising their flood and coastal 

erosion risk management functions, to act in a manner consistent with the national 

flood and coastal erosion risk management strategy, local flood risk management 

strategies and related guidance. Also, relevant public bodies, when exercising any 
function in a manner which may affect flood risk or coastal erosion risk in 

England, to have regard to the national flood and coastal erosion risk management 

To fulfill this duty the unitary local authority will need to ensure they have a 

strategy for local flood risk management. This will comprise a range of documents 

and working practices which, among other things, sets out how they will: 

•  convene and coordinate district local authorities, IDBs, water and sewerage 

companies, highways bodies and any others that they consider necessary to 

deliver a joined up management of local flood risk in their areas; 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 Ite
m

 4

P
a

g
e
 2

2



  

Clause No Description Action 

strategy, local flood risk management strategies and related guidance. •  produce flood risk assessments and flood risk action plans (e.g. Surface Water 

Management Plans) for their areas. These must be consistent with the EA’s 

FCERM strategy and any supplementary guidance and use any existing relevant 

work, such as Strategic Flood Risk Assessments. In addition the Government are 

encouraging unitary local authorities to produce assessments and plans 

throughout their areas even if they are not considered to have potential significant 

flood risk, so that such assessments and plans can form part of the local 

authority's local flood risk management strategy. This will deliver part of the EU 
floods Directive; 

•  develop local flood risk management work programmes (including works 

which they themselves intend to undertake or works which they consider that 

other bodies should undertake or works with other bodies are responsible for 

including water companies and the EA) for example within Surface Water 

Management Plans (SWMPs); 

•  identify other bodies whose assets may be an important part of the effective 

management of flood risk or which may be contributing to flood risk and create an 

asset register of information on the ownership, location and, where available, the 

condition of those assets in the area; and  

•  investigate local flooding incidents with all relevant parties to identify the 

source of the problem and where responsibility lies for addressing it 

 

The Governments  impact assessment for local flood risk management assumes 

that local authorities will develop a suite of measures for managing local flood risk, 

for example, surface water mapping, appropriate development planning and 

collating information on flood risk and drainage assets. It assumes that: 

•  the average cost to develop a SWMP is £100,000; 

•  they will invest £100,000 annually in mitigation measures for surface run-off and 

groundwater which will produce a real benefit for local flood risk; 

•  by taking all the measures proposed including coordinating the flood risk 

   management activities of other bodies (e.g. EA, Water Companies, IDBs) 

(including SUDS) it will reduce all local flood risk by 40% (over a 43 year 

period) based on the limited best information available at present. 

 

25-27 An authority in England must comply with any reasonable request of the 

Environment Agency or lead local flood authority to provide information, which 

the Agency/lead local authority reasonably requires in connection with its flood 

and coastal erosion risk management functions. 

The Government intends that all organisations involved in flood and coastal 

erosion risk management should be under duties both to cooperate with each other 

and also to share information with local authorities and the EA to facilitate the 

management of flood and coastal erosion risk. The organisations involved are 

listed in clauses 25 and 26 of the draft Bill but include a district council, an IDB, a 

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 4

P
a
g
e
 2

3



  

Clause No Description Action 

water company and the British Waterways Board. To understand an area’s 

vulnerability to flood risk, the drainage and watercourse system of that particular 

area needs to be fully understood. By sharing and understanding data it will be 

possible for operating authorities to build up a much more comprehensive dataset 

for local flood risk. There will be a much greater need for information sharing 

under the new roles for the EA and, particularly county and unitary local 

authorities.  

 

To ensure that such information is provided they have included in the draft Bill a 

duty on all relevant authorities to provide information, documents or assistance to 

the EA or to the county or unitary local authority as may reasonably be requested 

in order for those bodies to fulfill their functions. This will also further support the 

EA and county and unitary local authorities in meeting the requirements of the EU 

Floods Directive. 

 

28 This clause amends section 206(3) of the Water Industry Act 1991 (which creates 

a number of exceptions to the general prohibition on disclosure of information 

gained by companies or individuals under that Act) by also exempting the 

provision of information in response to a request under clauses 25 or 26. 

The Draft Bill adds the provision of information under s25 & 26 of the Draft Bill to 

the Water Industry Act 1991 exceptions to the prohibition on disclosure,  to ensure 

that there is no restriction on the disclosure of information requested of the Water 

Companies . 

29/30 Two relevant authorities in England may arrange for a flood risk management 

function of one of them to be exercised on its behalf by the other. 
The draft Bill would enable authority A to make an arrangement with authority B 

to perform a function on behalf of authority A even though authority B might not 

ordinarily have the powers to do so. The Government see that works powers and 

elements within the EA or local authority strategy e.g. producing SWMPs could be 

delegated using these arrangements. However, they consider that overall 

accountability for the strategy should not be able to be delegated to another body.  

 

31/32 The Environment Agency may make grants in respect of expenditure incurred or 

expected to be incurred by any person in connection with flood or coastal erosion 

risk management or issue levies to the lead local flood authority for an area in 

respect of the Agency’s flood and coastal erosion risk management functions in 

that area. 

 

 Existing arrangement at present through EA to DEFRA, now directly under 

control of the EA. 

35 The Secretary of State may direct the Environment Agency to exercise a flood or 

coastal erosion risk management function on behalf of another relevant authority 

if satisfied that the relevant authority has failed to exercise the function, or has 

failed to exercise the function in accordance with the national strategy under 

section 15 or the local strategy under section 19. 

The EA will retain its current delivery and operational role for undertaking flood 

risk management works on main rivers and the sea, and for providing flood 

warnings for all sources of flood risk and supporting the emergency response to 

flooding.  There may be circumstances where a local authority is unwilling or 

unable to undertake local flood risk management works. The government is 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 Ite
m

 4

P
a

g
e
 2

4



  

Clause No Description Action 

therefore proposing that the EA should be empowered to act in such circumstances 

and with proposed safeguards. The Government considers that such powers would 

be required very rarely for local flood risk management but it is possible that there 

will be circumstances where a significant risk of (say) surface run-off is not being 

addressed or a local authority is not complying with a requirement of the EU 

Floods Directive and so placing the UK at risk of infraction proceedings. In such 

circumstances the Government wishes to provide a fallback position under which 

the EA would be able to act in default of the local authority or IDB. However, to 

help ensure that these circumstances are appropriate the Government has made 

these powers exercisable only with the consent of Defra Ministers. Furthermore, in 

order to avoid an incentive for local authorities to default, the draft Bill gives the 

EA powers to recover reasonable costs from the relevant body. 

 

43/44 In the event of a flood in its area, a lead local flood authority in England must 

make enquiries to ascertain which relevant authorities have flood risk 

management functions that may need to be exercised in response to the flood, and 

whether each of those relevant authorities has exercised, or is proposing to 

exercise, those functions in response to the flood.  
A lead local flood authority in England must establish and maintain a register of 

structures or features, which may affect a flood risk in its area and a record of 

information about each of those structures or features including ownership and 

state of repair. The lead local flood authority must arrange for the register and 

record to be available for inspection by any person at all reasonable times. 

This places a duty on Lead LA’s to investigate flooding in their area to identify 

which relevant authority has the flood risk management function responsibilities 

and establish if that authority has responded or is proposing to respond to the 

flooding. 

 

In addition the Lead LA must produce and make available for inspection a register 

and record of information about structures and features (natural or man-made) that 

may affect flood risk in their area. These may be privately owned features, which 

will be designated by the Lead LA and will advise the owner that it has been 

designated under the legislation. The Lead LA will also be responsible for giving 

consent for alterations, removal or replacement of the designated thing. It will also 

have default enforcement and emergency powers in relation to the designated 

things. 

 

50-52 The appropriate lead local flood authority for each relevant area in England must 

prepare a preliminary assessment report in accordance with section 52. The 
preliminary assessment report prepared by a lead local flood authority must 

include information about flooding in its area from ordinary watercourses, surface 

runoff, and groundwater.  Each report must include, in particular information 

about previous floods in the area, information about the consequences of previous 

floods for the matters, and an assessment of the potential harmful consequences of 

floods in the area in future. 

Start of clauses that reflect the transposition of the EU Floods Directive into English law. 
This clause requires Lead Local Flood Authority to prepare a preliminary flood risk assessment report, 

preliminary assessment maps for each relevant area (relevant area could be a river basin district or an 

area of coastline outside a river basin district. In addition it shall produce a preliminary assessment 
report about previous flooding in the area to include flooding from ordinary watercourses, surface 

runoff and groundwater. 

53/54 A lead local flood authority must submit its preliminary assessment report under 

section 50 to the Environment Agency before 22nd June 2011, after consulting 

Deadline for Lead local flood authority to produce preliminary assessment reports 

and then review them at the agreed intervals. 

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 4

P
a
g
e
 2

5



  

Clause No Description Action 

with the EA and such other persons it thinks appropriate. It must review this every 

6 years. 

55 Significant flood risk determination by the Environment Agency from the sea, a 

main river or a reservoir. 

 

56-63 The appropriate lead local flood authority in relation to a relevant area must 

determine whether there is a significant risk of flooding in the relevant area from 

(i) an ordinary watercourse, (ii) surface runoff, and (iii) groundwater, and identify 

the part of the relevant area affected by the risk (the “flood risk area”). It must 

notify the EA of its determination under subsection (1) and any flood risk areas it 

has identified. The lead local flood authority must notify the Environment Agency 

of its determination under subsection (1) and any flood risk areas it has identified. 

It must then prepare a flood hazard map in relation to the source of the flood risk  

and a flood risk map The maps are to be submitted to the EA before June 22nd 

2013. It must review this every 6 years. It must also prepare a flood risk 

management plan in relation to each identified significant flood risk in accordance 

with section 61. The plans are to be submitted to the EA by 22nd June 2015 and 

reviewed every 6 years 

The lead local flood risk authority must determine if there is significant flood risk 

in the relevant area from ordinary watercourses, surface water runoff and 

groundwater. It must produce a flood hazard map; a flood risk map and a flood risk 

management plan in relation to each source of flood risk. 

It must submit them to the Environment Agency for publication by the deadlines 

identified and review them at the agreed intervals 

64-65 Amendments to the Water Resources Act 1991 re Main River Maps  

66-74 The Regional Flood Defence Committees are to be replaced by Regional Flood 

and Coastal Committees. These new committees will be consulted about the way 

the EA proposes to carry out its flood and coastal erosion risk management and 

consent any proposed levy. 

Alterations to the Regional Flood Defence Committees title and responsibilities. 

Part 2 Risk Management: Designation of Features 

75-97 Sets out that certain authorities have powers to designate (i.e. identify and restrict 

changes to) certain structures or features, which affect risk of flooding or coastal 

erosion. Definitions provided of the relevant terms relating to this part of the Draft 

Bill. 

A lead local authority or unitary authority will have designating authority, 

enforcement, consent and emergency powers in connection with designated 

features.  

Part 3 Reservoirs 

98-192 Establishes a new regime for reservoir safety and makes provision for the 

management of the risk of flooding from reservoirs. 

 

Part 4 Water Administration Regime 

193-216 This part provides a special administration regime for water and sewerage 

undertakers and water suppliers and replaces section 23 to 26 of the Water 

Industry Act 1991. 

 

Part 5 Sustainable Drainage 

217-220 Overview and definitions 

Requires the setting of national standards for sustainable drainage, prohibits the 

Local authorities to adopt and maintain certain drainage systems once constructed. 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 Ite
m

 4

P
a

g
e
 2

6



  

Clause No Description Action 

construction of certain new drainage systems without approval of (generally) a 

local authority, requires approval of drainage systems to take account of the 

national standards on sustainable drainage, and requires a local authority to adopt 

and maintain certain drainage systems once constructed. 

 

221 Government shall consult on and then publish national standards for the 

implementation of sustainable drainage. The National standards must address the 

way in which drainage systems are constructed, and operated. The National 

standards are national policies for the purposes of section 19(2)(a) of the Planning 

and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (preparation of local development documents 

- England). 

 

National standards to be produced and published by Government for the 

implementation of sustainable drainage including construction and operation. 

222-230 The Government proposes to require developers to apply for and seek approval for 

all new surface water drainage associated with a new development or 

redevelopment. The application will be made to the SUDS approving body (SAB), 

and approval for the surface water drainage will be needed before development 

can begin. This approval will form the basis for adoption where appropriate and 

there will be no right to make a new connection to surface water sewer without 

approval of the SUDS proposals. The SAB may only approve an application if it 

is in line with the National Standards but must consult with and notify the relevant 

sewerage undertaker concerning the application. The SAB may publish a scale of 

fees for the applications ensuring that income from fees does not exceed the costs 

of determining and monitoring and operating the system following approval. Non-

performance bonds may be required by the SAB. 

 

The unitary authority for an area shall be the approving body for sustainable 

drainage systems and it must consult with the relevant sewerage undertaker and 

notify them of any decisions. 

231/232 The Government proposes to require county and unitary authorities to take 

responsibility for adopting and maintaining new build SUDS in the public realm 

in England. 

Unitary authorities must adopt approved sustainable drainage systems and then is 

responsible for its maintenance 

233 The SAB may authorise a connection to the public sewer under s223 of the Flood 

and Water Management Act 2009 if a SUDS system is unsuitable or requires a 

connection as part of its operation. 

Power of the authorising body to allow connections to the public sewer as part of a 

sustainable drainage system approval. 

Part 6 Water Industry Regulation 

234-253  Modifications and consolidations to water industry regulations  

Part 7 Miscellaneous 

254-259 Additional modifications and amendments  

Part 8 General 

260-265 General clauses referring to the Act itself.  Act to be citied as The Flood and Water Management Act 2009 

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 4

P
a
g
e
 2

7



  

Clause No Description Action 

   

   

   

 

 
 
 
 
 

A
g

e
n

d
a

 Ite
m

 4

P
a

g
e
 2

8



  

Appendix C  
PROPOSED FUTURE ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FLOOD AND 
COASTAL EROSION RISK MANAGEMENT IN ENGLAND 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Environment Agency 
Strategic overview role 

 

• Setting National Strategy for Flood and 
Coastal Erosion Risk Management. 
• Support and guidance to LAs, e.g in 
producing flood risk assessments and 
plans. 
• Develop modelling, mapping and 
warning systems. 
• National investment in flood and coastal 
erosion risk management measures. 
• Report to the Secretary of State on the 
state of the Nation’s flood risk assets. 
• Powers to instigate works on non-EA 
assets and channels when directed to 
do so by the Secretary of State. 
• Statutory consultee on flood (and 
possibly in future coastal erosion) 
planning applications. 
 

Delivery/executive role 

• Flood risk management on main rivers 
and the sea. 
• Coastal erosion risk management work 
(concurrently with local authorities). 
• Flood warnings for all sources of 
flooding. 
• Produce and contribute to strategic plans. 
• Consenting and enforcement powers for 
sea and Main River flooding. 
• Category 1 responder under the Civil 
Contingencies Act 2004. 
 

EA’s Regional Flood and Coastal 
Committees (currently Regional Flood 

Defence Committees) 

• Advisory/consultative role to EA and LAs 
on flood and coastal erosion approaches, 
priorities etc. 
• Consent to levies for local priority flood 
and coastal erosion risk management 
work with executive responsibility for 
work in this area. 

Local Authorities (LAs) 
Local leadership role (county councils in 

two 
tier areas) 

 

• Setting Local Strategy for local flood risk 
management. 
• Leadership and accountability for ensuring 
effective management of local flood risk from 
ordinary watercourses, surface run-off and 
groundwater. 
• Production of local flood risk 
assessments, maps and plans including an 
asset register. 
• Improved drainage and flood risk 
management expertise. 
• Co-ordinate Surface Water Management 
Plan production. 
• Drainage from non-Highways Agency roads 
• Prioritising local investment. 
• Consenting and enforcement powers for 
certain works affecting ordinary 
watercourses. 
• Promoting partnerships with local 
planning authorities to produce Strategic 
Flood Risk Assessments. 

 
Delivery/executive role 

 

• Powers to do works for surface run-off and 
groundwater flood risk. 
• Duty to undertake Flood and Coastal 
Erosion Risk Management functions in 
accordance with local and national strategies. 
• LFRM decision-making integrated into local 
asset management and investment 
programmes. 
• Category 1 responder under the Civil 
Contingencies Act including local delivery of 
flood warnings. 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 29



  

APPENDIX D  
 

 

Draft Flood and Water Bill 
Contents 
1  Introduction. 
2  Proposed Future Roles and Responsibilities of LA’s and the EA for Flood 
and Coastal Erosion Risk Management. 
3 Sustainable Drainage Systems. 
4 Regional Flood Defence Committees. 
5 EU Floods Directive. 
6 Water Framework Directive 
7 Third Party Assets. 
8 Local Flood Risk 
9 Single Unifying Act 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
Government policy is to manage flood and coastal erosion risks by a ‘portfolio’ 
of measures that are in addition to the traditional approaches of defence, 
drainage and protection. Such measures include risk maps, awareness 
campaigns, flood warnings, emergency planning and response management, 
community defences, resilience measures, installation of sustainable drainage 
systems (SUDs), changes to land management and support to individuals or 
communities to adapt to change. This includes help being given to individuals 
to make changes to their properties to help protect the fabric, fixtures and 
fittings from flooding, or to reduce the cost and time of recovering from 
flooding. 
 
Currently, the Environment Agency (EA), local authorities and Internal 
Drainage Boards (IDB’s) have a number of powers allowing them to undertake 
various flood defence and coast protection works. These are picked up in the 
draft Bill as flood and coastal erosion risk management functions. However, 
on their own, these powers would not enable those bodies to do all the things 
for flood and coastal risk management required. The Bill will therefore 
introduced new powers which begin to achieve the aim of allowing those 
bodies to undertake a wider suite of flood and coastal risk management 
measures in the future.  These works powers will be accompanied by various 
protective measures, such as a requirement on those bodies to give notice of 
intended works, provisions for members of the public to make objections, 
appropriate compensation provisions and provisions that will enable the 
compulsory purchase of land. These protective measures, and others, are 
being worked on, and will be inserted for introduction. 
 
The draft Bill does not explicitly make any provision to adapt to climate 
change. Instead it sets out an approach that provides scope to manage all 
risks, of which climate change is a key one. Adaptation as a management 
response includes a whole range of approaches: from building defences, 
providing complementary flood storage to extending the life of a scheme, to 
the provision of information and support to adapt to and live with risk and its 
potential impacts. It also covers other approaches, such as avoiding 

Agenda Item 4

Page 30



  

inappropriate development in areas of flood risk, making buildings resilient to 
flooding, or moving assets out of risk areas where this is practicable and 
feasible. Thus the broadened approach of flood and coastal erosion risk 
management is also essentially about adaptation and building adaptive 
capacity. 
 
The Government also wants to integrate management of flooding and coastal 
erosion to recognise the links and dependences between different policy 
areas and activities such as the impact that land management has on flood 
risk and the effects that flood management has on the environment. 
Understanding and working with natural processes to manage flood and  
erosion risk is fundamental to this approach. The government wants to work 
with natural processes of flooding and erosion at a local level. They want to 
enable and encourage those who manage flood risk to achieve the benefits of 
doing so in the light of wider policy objectives such as maintaining good soil 
quality, landscape and healthy resilient natural environments. For example, 
the new approach to flood and erosion risk management in the draft Bill is 
intended to allow authorities to: 
 
§ increase the probability of flooding in one place where it is justified 

because it will lead to a net reduction in flood risk elsewhere; 
§ increase flooding in specific areas where this is justified to gain social 

and environmental benefits; and 
§ use their flood and erosion risk management functions to restore natural 

processes to meet environmental objectives and encourage land 
management practices that reduce run-off where this will reduce flood 
risk. 

 
In certain circumstances, the EA or other bodies may wish to allow or create 
flooding solely to achieve environmental benefits. The environmental 
enhancement clauses in the draft Bill to enable this approach will be 
supported in any resulting legislation by protective measures. 
 
The Government considers that local authorities and Internal Drainage Boards 
should also contribute towards sustainable development in carrying out their 
flood and coastal erosion risk management (FCERM) activities. This would 
include planning for risk in both the short and long-term and understanding the 
possible impacts and appropriateness of management responses in the 
longer term. The EA will be empowered to provide guidance to other flood and 
coastal erosion risk management operating authorities on how this should be 
achieved. This guidance relates to the application of the EA's national strategy 
for flood and coastal erosion risk management and operating authorities will 
be required to act in a manner consistent with the guidance and the strategy 
 
In developing proposals for the draft Bill, the Government has had four 
objectives: 

i) To provide the greatest possible clarity and accountability about 
who is responsible for what, including for leadership at a national 
and local level; 

Agenda Item 4

Page 31



  

ii) To retain the roles and responsibilities of existing delivery 
organisations wherever possible to ensure the continued 
engagement of local knowledge and expertise; 

iii) To provide flexibility for different delivery organisations to deliver 
flood and coastal erosion risk management on the ground; and 

iv) To promote the growth of effective local partnerships and to provide 
a strong duty on all bodies to cooperate and share information 

 
2. PROPOSED FUTURE ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF LA.s AND 

THE EA FOR FLOOD AND COASTAL EROSION RISK MANAGEMENT  
2.1 Environment Agency 

Strategic overview role 

§ Setting National Strategy for Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk 
Management. 

§  Support and guidance to LAs, e.g in producing flood risk assessments 
and plans. 

§ Develop modelling, mapping and warning systems. 
§ National investment in flood and coastal erosion risk management 

measures. 
§ Report to the Secretary of State on the state of the Nation’s flood risk 

assets. 
§ Powers to instigate works on non-EA assets and channels when directed 

to do so by the Secretary of State. 
§ Statutory consultee on flood (and possibly in future coastal erosion) 

planning applications. 
Delivery/executive role 

§ Flood risk management on main rivers and the sea. 
§ Coastal erosion risk management work (concurrently with local 

authorities). 
§ Flood warnings for all sources of flooding. 
§ Produce and contribute to strategic plans. 
§ Consenting and enforcement powers for sea and main river flooding. 
§ Category 1 responder under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 

 
2.2 Local Authorities (LAs) 

Local leadership role (county councils in two tier areas) 

§  Setting Local Strategy for local flood risk management. 
§ Leadership and accountability for ensuring effective management of local 

flood risk from ordinary watercourses, surface run-off and groundwater. 
§ Production of local flood risk assessments, maps and plans including an 

asset register. 
§ Improved drainage and flood risk management expertise. 
§ Co-ordinate Surface Water Management Plan production. 
§ Drainage from non-Highways Agency roads 
§ Prioritising local investment. 
§ Consenting and enforcement powers for certain works affecting ordinary 

watercourses. 
§ Promoting partnerships with local planning authorities to produce  

Strategic Flood Risk Assessments. 
§ Delivery/executive role 

Agenda Item 4

Page 32



  

§ Powers to do works for surface run-off and groundwater flood risk. 
§ Duty to undertake Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management 

functions in accordance with local and national strategies. 
§ LFRM decision-making integrated into local asset management and 

investment programmes. 
§ Category 1 responder under the Civil Contingencies Act including local 

delivery of flood warnings. 
 

2.3 EA strategic overview role 
The draft Bill provides for the EA to take a full strategic overview role for all 
FCERM.  Under this role the EA will now have duties and powers to: 
§ set out a national strategy for flood and coastal erosion risk 

management, with which all other bodies involved in FCERM will be 
required to act consistently; 

§ be the lead Competent Authority under the EU Floods Directive (see 
Section 2.8); 

§ develop the methods, framework and tools to understand and manage 
flooding from all sources and coastal erosion, and a centre of expertise 
on such matters. This means: 

o taking steps to understand the interaction between different 
forms of flooding and coastal erosion; 

o developing modelling and mapping for flood and coastal erosion 
risk; 

o investigating new ways of managing flood and coastal erosion 
risk; 

o developing forecasting and warning systems; and 
o producing risk assessments and plans for the management of 

flood and coastal erosion risk from the sea, main rivers and 
reservoirs; 

§ support the roles of local authorities and others in FCERM, by providing 
them with information and guidance on fulfilling their roles. Assess flood 
and coastal erosion risk on a national basis and determine spending 
priorities to manage those risks as well as allocating relevant funding in 
accordance with the priorities; 

§ have consenting and enforcement powers in relation to any works or 
activities by any person, which may directly impact on flooding from main 
rivers and the sea; 

§ have responsibility for flood warning for all forms of flood risk; 
§ report periodically to the Secretary of State on the state of flood and 

coastal erosion risk management in England, and priorities for the 
forthcoming years; 

§ be the enforcement authority for reservoir safety (see section 2.12 for the 
proposed amendments to the Reservoirs Act 1975); and 

§ be a statutory consultee on planning applications that have any flood 
(and, possibly in future, coastal erosion) implications. 

 
In line with their strategic overview role, the draft Bill will give the EA powers 
to allocate grants to other bodies to fund FCERM projects. The EA would be 
able to make this subject to conditions and thresholds. This power will allow 
the EA to take a holistic view of funding needs and priorities, and allocate 

Agenda Item 4

Page 33



  

funds where benefits are greatest. As at present, the EA would still be 
required to achieve a set of outcome targets with the funding provided, to 
allow Ministers to set high level priorities and to ensure value for money.  
 
The draft Bill also transfers to the EA the current Ministerial role for consenting 
to coast protection works being undertaken by maritime local authorities under 
section 5 of the Coast Protection Act 1949. This is something the EA currently 
undertake under delegation. Where objections are made then the Government 
propose that these should, as now, be submitted to the Secretary of State for 
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs for determination before the EA decides 
whether to consent. They consider that such arrangements are particularly 
necessary given the intention that the EA will themselves have concurrent 
powers to undertake coastal erosion risk management works. 
 

2.4 EA delivery and operational role 
The EA will retain its current delivery and operational role for undertaking 
flood risk management works on main rivers and the sea, and for providing 
flood warnings for all sources of flood risk and supporting the emergency 
response to flooding.   
 
There may be circumstances where a local authority or an IDB is unwilling or 
unable to undertake local flood risk management works. The government is 
therefore proposing that the EA should be empowered to act in such 
circumstances and with proposed safeguards. The Government considers that 
such powers would be required very rarely for local flood risk management but 
it is possible that there will be circumstances where a significant risk of (say) 
surface run-off is not being addressed or a local authority is not complying 
with a requirement of the EU Floods Directive and so placing the UK at risk of 
infraction proceedings.  
 
In such circumstances the Government wishes to provide a fallback position 
under which the EA would be able to act in default of the local authority or 
IDB. However, to help ensure that these circumstances are appropriate they 
have made these powers exercisable only with the consent of Defra Ministers. 
Furthermore, in order to avoid an incentive for local authorities or IDBs to 
default, the draft Bill gives the EA powers to recover reasonable costs from 
the relevant body. 
 
The draft Bill also gives the EA the powers to undertake coastal erosion works 
(concurrently with the powers which remain with maritime local authorities). 
This would  allow the EA to undertake works in its own right. For example, 
some local authorities may lack the technical and other resources to 
undertake major coastal erosion projects. Some projects involve a mixture of 
work to protect against sea flooding (on which the EA generally leads) and 
coastal erosion (on which the local authorities lead) and it may make sense 
for one organisation to manage the whole job, whether that is the local 
authority or the EA. There may also be efficiencies in local authorities using 
EA consultants and contractors for which all those involved would need the 
same powers. 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 34



  

2.5 Local flood risk management 
The draft Bill contains provisions to implement recommendations from Sir 
Michael Pitt’s Review to improve the management of local flood risk. Local 
authorities will have a leadership role for local flood risk management which 
includes ensuring that flood risk from all sources, including from surface run-
off, groundwater and ordinary watercourses, is identified and managed as part 
of locally agreed work programmes.  
 
This enhanced role for local authorities, leading new local partnerships and 
responsibility for sustainable drainage systems (SUDS), will be pivotal to the 
success of the much stronger and more comprehensive approach to flood risk 
management that the government want to achieve following Sir Michael Pitt’s 
Review. The proposed roles of the different organisations involved are set out 
below 
 

2.6 Role of county and unitary local authorities 
The Government recognises that success will depend on greater co-ordination 
and co-operation between local partners working together closely to establish 
the most effective arrangements to meet local circumstances. It also believes 
that local flood risk management will be best if based on new partnership 
arrangements.  
 
The government wishes to see county, unitary and district local authorities, 
the EA, water companies and sewerage undertakers and other players 
including IDBs, working together to secure effective and consistent 
management of local flood risk in their areas. These organizations should 
work together to decide the best arrangements for delivery on an area-by-area 
basis, taking account of their current roles and capacities, underpinned by a 
new duty on all partners to co-operate and share information. 
 
Sir Michael Pitt also recommended that local authorities should collect 
information from private landowners or individuals on the flood and drainage 
assets for which they are responsible. That function could be underpinned by 
a similar duty to that described in the paragraph above.  
 
The draft Bill places the leadership role in these partnerships on county and 
unitary local authorities. They will need to ensure that all relevant partners are 
engaged in developing a strategy for local flood risk management and 
securing progress in its implementation. This will build on the county and 
unitary authority leadership role in Local Area Agreements, and will allow 
them to develop centres of engineering and flood risk expertise alongside their 
existing highways functions, providing support to other partners and promoting 
collaboration across the whole area. 
 
To fulfill this role the county or unitary local authority would need to ensure 
they have a strategy for local flood risk management. This will comprise a 
range of documents and working practices which, among other things, sets 
out how they will: 
§ convene and coordinate district local authorities, IDBs, water and 

sewerage companies, highways bodies and any others that they 

Agenda Item 4

Page 35



  

consider necessary to deliver a joined up management of local flood risk 
in their areas; 

 
§ produce flood risk assessments and flood risk action plans (e.g. Surface 

Water Management Plans) for their areas. These should be consistent 
with the EA’s FCERM strategy and any supplementary guidance use any 
existing relevant work and such as Strategic Flood Risk Assessments. In 
part this will deliver the EU floods Directive.  

 
However, the Government are encouraging county and unitary local 
authorities to produce assessments and plans throughout their areas 
which are not considered to have potential significant flood risk under the 
Directive, so that such assessments and plans can form part of the local 
authority's local flood risk management strategy; 

 
§ develop local flood risk management work programmes (including works 

which they themselves intend to undertake or works which they consider 
that other bodies should undertake or works with other bodies are 
responsible for including water companies and the EA) for example 
within Surface Water Management Plans (SWMPs); 

 
§ identify other bodies whose assets may be an important part of the 

effective 
 
§ management of flood risk or which may be contributing to flood risk and 

create an asset register of information on the ownership, location and, 
where available, the condition of those assets in the area; and  

 
§ investigate local flooding incidents with all relevant parties to identify the 

source of the problem and where responsibility lies for addressing it. 
 
In the same way as it does for the EA National Strategy, the draft Bill requires 
the county or unitary local authority to publish their strategy. It places a duty 
on the district local authority and IDBs to act in a manner that is consistent 
with that strategy and any supplementary guidance the local authority issues. 
It also places a duty on other listed bodies to have regard to the strategy and 
guidance. 
 
Elements of planning or subsequent work could be delegated to other 
authorities (using the 'arrangements' clauses in the draft Bill) but responsibility 
for the strategy would remain with the county or unitary local authority. As 
indicated, the draft Bill places the default local leadership role with county and 
unitary local authorities. These are defined in the draft Bill as ‘lead local 
authorities’ for these purposes.  
 
Surface Water Management Plans (SWMPs),  will help local authorities and 
relevant delivery bodies understand and manage local flood risk as well as to 
influence land use planning and flood risk management investment decisions. 
They should deliver: 

Agenda Item 4

Page 36



  

§ coordinated and prioritised investment strategies and asset 
management; 

§ be clear of roles to reduce duplicated effort across different 
organisations; 

§ support for greater use of SUDS to help avoid large investments in 
unsustainable hard infrastructure; 

§ identification of design approaches that avoid and reduce flood risk to 
and from new development (PPS 25); and 

§ information to improve emergency planning decisions for local authorities 
and awareness of surface water flooding when preparing for 
emergencies. 

 
The Government is currently informally consulting on the draft Surface Water 
Management Plan (SWMP), guidance for which is available on the Defra 
website. This guidance provides the framework for local authorities to develop 
SWMPs. SWMPs will also fulfill requirements under the EU Floods Directive 
for flood risk management plans in areas of significant flood risk 
 

2.7 Overview and scrutiny 
Responsibility for scrutiny and accountability will continue to lie locally, and 
local authorities are already required to have at least one overview and 
scrutiny committee to cover all of their services. These committees have 
powers to review and scrutinize decisions made by the authority or its 
executive, to make reports and recommendations to the authority/executive 
on the discharge of its functions, and on anything that might affect the 
authority's area or inhabitants.  Once the relevant provisions of the Local 
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 are in force, those 
bodies under a duty to co-operate in the development of Local Area 
Agreements will also be obliged to co-operate with overview and scrutiny 
committees. This list of bodies does not currently extend to IDB’s and water 
companies.  
 
The Government is considering whether all county and unitary local 
authorities should be required to produce annual reports by the local authority 
executive on local actions to manage flood risk. Any such report could then be 
reviewed by the relevant overview and scrutiny committee.  
 

2.8 Local delivery - counties, districts and IDBs 
County and unitary local authorities will have powers to plan, build, maintain, 
alter, operate and remove works to manage flood risk from surface run-off and 
groundwater. These authorities would also have powers to maintain or restore 
natural processes and manage water levels in relation to these sources of 
flood risk. More generally, in relation to all forms of flood risk in their areas, 
these councils would have powers to: 
§ provide public awareness campaigns; 
§ provide support to individuals or communities in dealing with local flood 

risk management including financial support, advice or equipment; 
§ facilitate changes to land management; 
§ undertake measures to benefit the natural environment; and 

Agenda Item 4

Page 37



  

§ develop and share techniques and tools to understand and manage local 
flood risk management. 

 
Local authorities will have an increasing role in local flood risk management 
and ensuring that this is linked to the spatial planning process. County and 
unitary local authorities lead in ensuring the production of Strategic Flood Risk 
Assessments (SFRAs) covering all forms of flood risk, which will: 
§ provide the evidence to allow local planning authorities to factor flood risk 

into local development plans and individual decisions on new 
development proposals; 

§ help the county and unitary local authorities to determine where they 
need to develop a surface water management plan for local flood risk 
management; 

§ provide the evidence to allow local planning authorities to factor flood risk 
into local development plans and individual decisions on new 
development proposals; and 

§ help the county and unitary local authorities to determine where they 
need to develop a surface water management plan for local flood risk 
management. 

 
Local authorities also have responsibility for open spaces and parks and often 
roads, verges, housing and public buildings. They are often active in 
managing the local flood risk from ordinary watercourses. IDBs play a key role 
in managing the ordinary watercourse network in their areas and also in land 
drainage and water level management.  
 
The Government therefore propose leaving these current powers intact 
subject to these bodies having to take account of (a) the local flood risk 
management strategy published by the county or unitary local authority for the 
area and (b) the national flood and coastal erosion risk management strategy 
published by the EA.  
 
The draft Bill will remove the requirement for EA consent to local authority 
works on ordinary watercourses under section 17 of the Land Drainage Act on 
the basis that local authorities and IDBs in undertaking works on the ordinary 
watercourse network will need to do so in a manner consistent with the EA 
and county and unitary local authority strategies. The Government does not 
currently propose giving county local authorities any additional role on the 
ordinary watercourse network in terms of works and maintenance, apart from 
a proposed consenting role.   
 
County and unitary local authorities may, while remaining accountable for the 
overall quality of service, also want to use the expertise and capacity that 
exists in district local authorities and IDBs to help fulfill their new functions, 
including for example preparing SWMPs. To this end, the draft Bill provides 
powers for all relevant organisations to undertake flood and coastal erosion 
risk management functions at the request of another, and on terms (including 
payment), which may be agreed between them. However, the overall 
accountability for the strategy should not be able to be delegated to another 
body.  

Agenda Item 4

Page 38



  

 
The Governments impact assessment for local flood risk management  

assumes that local authorities will develop a suite of measures for managing 
local flood risk, for example, surface water mapping, appropriate development 
planning and collating information on flood risk and drainage assets. It also 
assumes that: 
§ the average cost to develop a SWMP will be in the region of £100,000; 
§ local authorities will invest £100,000 annually in mitigation measures for 

surface run-off and groundwater, which will produce a real benefit for 
local flood risk; 

§ by taking all the measures proposed including coordinating the flood risk 
management activities of other bodies (e.g. EA, Water Companies, IDBs) 
(including SUDS) the Government believe that this will reduce all local 
flood risk by 40% (over a 43 year period) based on the limited best 
information available at present. 

 
2.9 Duty to cooperate and share information  

Following Sir Michael Pitt’s recommendation, the Government intends that all 
organisations involved in flood and coastal erosion risk management should 
be under duties both to cooperate with each other and also to share 
information with local authorities and the EA to facilitate the management of 
flood and coastal erosion risk.  
 
The organisations involved are listed in the draft Bill and include a lead local 
authority, a district council, an IDB, a water company, a highway authority, 
reservoir manager, navigation authority and any other relevant public body.  
 
To understand an area’s vulnerability to flood risk, the drainage and 
watercourse system of that particular area needs to be fully understood. By 
sharing and understanding data it will be possible for operating authorities to 
build up a much more comprehensive dataset for local flood risk. There will be 
a much greater need for information sharing under the new roles for the EA 
and, particularly, county and unitary local authorities.  
 
It is important to ensure that such information is provided and therefore the 
Government have included in the draft Bill a duty on all relevant authorities to 
provide information, documents or assistance to the EA or to the county or 
unitary local authority as may reasonably be requested in order for those 
bodies to fulfill their functions. This will also support the EA and county and 
unitary local authorities in meeting the requirements of the EU Floods 
Directive. 
 
It is also proposed that the EA, as part of their strategic overview role, would 
review existing data standards and have the power to set and manage 
standards for the information to be shared, to aid common understanding of 
the data sets and to facilitate use within databases. For example, where 
parties have a duty to share information on drainage assets and their 
condition, the EA would be able to produce guidance to set standards for the 
format and values that the data should take, to allow a shared or federated 

Agenda Item 4

Page 39



  

database of all assets to be created, and in doing so minimise the costs of 
data integration and management for all concerned. 
 
The provisions in the draft Bill will apply in England and Wales. Welsh 
Ministers will determine how those powers will apply in relation to drainage 
systems which are or are to be wholly or mainly in Wales.  
 

3.  SUSTAINABLE DRAINAGE SYSTEMS   
In February 2008, the UK Government consulted stakeholders on ‘Improving 
Surface Water Drainage’. This included questions on how to increase uptake 
of sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) as the preferred option instead of 
connecting surface water rainfall runoff to sewers. It also reviewed the right of 
new developments to connect surface water flows to the public sewerage 
system, which is seen as a barrier to the use of SUDS. The Welsh Assembly 
Government has yet to consult on these aspects of SUD adoption. 
 
To understand an area’s vulnerability to flood risk, the drainage and 
watercourse system of that particular area needs to be fully understood. By 
sharing and understanding data it will be possible for operating authorities to 
build up a much more comprehensive dataset for local flood risk.  
 
There will be a much greater need for information sharing under the new roles 
for the EA and, particularly, county and unitary local authorities. There is a 
need to ensure that such information is provided and therefore the 
Government have included in the draft Bill a duty on all relevant authorities to 
provide information, documents or assistance to the EA or to the county or 
unitary local authority as may reasonably be requested in order for those 
bodies to fulfill their functions. This will also support the EA and county and 
unitary local authorities in meeting the requirements of the EU Floods 
Directive. 
 
The Bill will require developers to include sustainable drainage, where 
practicable, in new developments, built to standards which reduce flood 
damage and improve water quality.  
 
It will also amend section 106 of the Water Industry Act 1991 to make the right 
to connect surface water run-off to public sewers conditional on meeting the 
new standards. It will give responsibility for approving sustainable drainage 
systems in new development, and adopting and maintaining them where they 
affect more than one property, to a SUDS approving body, generally local 
authorities. 
 
The following provisions relate to new surface water drainage systems from 
buildings and roads in England and Wales. They do not require any retrofit of 
SUDs, or deal with groundwater or foul water. 
 
The main proposals are as follows: 
§ National Standards governing the way in which surface water drainage 

systems must be constructed, and operate. These will reflect the need to 
mitigate flood damage, improve water quality, protect the environment, 

Agenda Item 4

Page 40



  

protect health and safety, and ensure the stability and durability of 
drainage systems; 

 
§ an approval system for the surface water drainage systems of the 

majority of new developments, including roads, in line with the National 
Standards; 

 
§ a requirement on unitary and county local authorities in England and 

county or county borough authorities in Wales (or other bodies selected 
by the Secretary of State in England or Welsh Ministers in Wales), to 
adopt and maintain new SUDS which affect the drainage of other 
properties; and 

 
§ a requirement on developers to demonstrate that they have met national 

standards for the application of SUDS techniques before they can 
connect any residual surface water drainage to a public sewer (amending 
section 106 of the Water Industry Act 1991). 

 
These proposals are outlined in more detail below. 
 

3.1 National Standards 
The Government will publish National Standards governing the construction 
and operation of surface water drainage for new developments and re-
developments. It is intended that they will be developed with representatives 
of the key interests and that the Secretary of State and Welsh Ministers will 
issue the standards in 2011, following extensive consultation. These 
standards will cover the need to: 

§ mitigate flood damage; 
§ improve water quality; 
§ protect and improve the environment; 
§ protect health and safety; 
§ ensure the stability and durability of drainage systems; and 
§ address the cost-effectiveness of such solutions in different 

situations. 
 
The National Standards will need to reflect the many different physical 
circumstances of development sites. In particular, where land is contaminated 
or unstable, the approach to SUDS will be to slow down water run-off, 
encouraging water to evaporate off, whilst not mobilising pollutants in the soil 
or destabilising the ground. The standards will be developed in the light of 
requirements under the Groundwater Directive.  
 
The National Standards will also need to reflect the many scales of 
development from a single property on a brownfield site with limited access to 
land, where de minimis considerations will need to be applied, to a large 
greenfield site with planning permission for many hundreds of houses. 
 
These standards will become a material consideration in local authorities’ 
planning decisions. This means that the standards will become the underlying 

Agenda Item 4

Page 41



  

approach to surface water drainage, except in those cases where other local 
planning considerations outweigh them.  
 
The standards will also provide the basis for approval, adoption and 
connection to the public sewer. The SUDS approving body will be required to 
adopt and maintain the majority of surface water drainage systems within the 
public realm, so the systems need to be robust. If plans for the surface water 
drainage do not meet the required standard, there would be no automatic right 
to connect to a public sewer. There will also be an added incentive for 
developers to achieve the required standard for surface water drainage 
through an arrangement whereby the developer may be required to deposit a 
financial bond with the SUDS approving body.  
 
The main benefits for taking this approach are: 
§ reduced flood risk, improved water quality, and reduced maintenance 

costs; 
§ clarity about national requirements, whilst retaining local planning 

discretion, thus avoiding unnecessary costs for house builders and 
developers; and 

§ streamlined design and increased uptake of SUDS. 
 

3.2 The Approval Process 
It is important to ensure that surface water drainage systems mitigate the 
environmental impact of run-off, and are sufficiently robust. Therefore, the 
Government proposes to require developers to seek approval for all new 
surface water drainage associated with a new development or redevelopment.  
 

The application will be made to the SUDS approving body (SAB), and 
approval for the surface water drainage will be needed before development 
can begin. This approval will form the basis for adoption where appropriate 
and there will be no right to make a new connection to surface water sewer 
without approval of the SUDS proposals. The SAB may only approve an 
application if it is in line with the National Standards. 
 
The approving body may inspect the construction of the SUDS and will issue 
a certificate of satisfactory construction when completed. Sustainable 
drainage should always be considered at an early stage of the planning 
process. Therefore, in two tier areas in England, the county council will liaise 
with the district council to ensure that planning requirements enable an 
appropriate SUDS solution. The Government intends to make the county 
council a statutory consultee in England for relevant planning applications.  
 
The Government will work closely with developers, local authorities, and the 
EA to develop an application process that dovetails neatly with the planning 
and building control processes, and any requirements flowing from the 
Groundwater Directive. 
 

3.3 Adoption and Maintenance 
Sir Michael Pitt’s Review recommended that the Government should resolve 
the issue of which organisations should be responsible for the ownership and 
maintenance of sustainable drainage systems. The Government proposes to 

Agenda Item 4

Page 42



  

require county and unitary authorities to take responsibility for adopting and 
maintaining new build SUDS in the public realm in England. They also 
propose that the Secretary of State and Welsh Ministers will be able to vary 
this approach where appropriate.  
 
This approach is consistent with other new roles and responsibilities proposed 
for county and unitary authorities in England, e.g. coordinating action to 
prevent and mitigate surface water flooding. The county or unitary local 
authority is already responsible for adopting, draining and maintaining 
highways – roads, pavements and verges. In new developments, permeable 
paving, swales or French drains should take the place of traditional 
impermeable roads and pavements draining to sewers. 
 

3.4 Role of SUDS approving body 
The Government proposes that most surface water drainage systems 
accompanying new developments and redevelopments should be adopted 
and then maintained by the SAB, to avoid the problems of inadequate 
maintenance of private communal drainage that have been seen with private 
sewers.  
 
The Government proposes that wherever new SUDS are operating in line with 
the national standards and affect the operation of drainage of other properties 
they should be adopted and maintained by the SAB. For example, this 
proposal would include a trench or swale that runs through back gardens even 
when it is on private land. Systems which are completely within the curtilage 
of, and serve only, a single property will remain the responsibility of their 
owner.   
 
Exceptions are likely to be needed to cover unusual circumstances.  There is 
no intention to specify maintenance standards for SUDS in this legislation, 
because local conditions can vary. Instead the national standards for the 
sustainable drainage of new sites and re-developments would provide 
stakeholders and the courts with a guide on acceptable standards for 
maintenance so that SUDS remain ‘fit for purpose’ throughout their lifetime. 
 

3.5 Financial bond 
It is proposed that the SAB should have the ability to insist on a financial bond 
before work can begin on the SUDS. On satisfactory completion of the SUDS 
the bond would be released. This is similar to the current arrangements for 
adopted surface water sewers and highways. The benefits of such an 
approach are: 
§ it provides an incentive to the developer to complete SUDS to the 

required standards promptly, so the bond can be released; 
§ developers are already familiar with this mechanism; and 
§ a bond also provides insurance against the developer becoming 

bankrupt or being unable to complete the SUDS, enabling the SUDS 
approving body to use the bond to bring the SUDS up to the required 
standard and adopt it if needed. 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 43



  

3.6 Connection to a public sewer 
The automatic right to connect surface water run-off to a surface or combined 
public sewer granted under section 106 of the Water Industry Act is one of the 
key reasons why there has been such a slow uptake of SUDS. In some 
circumstances there may be no alternative to connecting to a public sewer. 
However, many techniques can be used to manage and reduce the flow, 
before the connection to the sewer is made. The overwhelming majority of 
respondents to ‘Improving Surface Water Drainage’ in 2008 agreed there was 
a need to amend the automatic right to connect. The Government has 
therefore accepted Sir Michael Pitt’s recommendation to end the automatic 
right to connect. 
 
The Government proposes to require that new surface water drainage 
systems be approved in line with the National Standards before any 
connection to the sewer can be made under section 106 of the Water Industry 
Act 1991. The form and extent of that connection will be set out within the 
approval. The right to connect foul drainage to the public foul sewerage 
system will remain.  
 
By preference surface water should drain to land, with drainage to either a 
watercourse or to a sewer providing successively less desirable solutions. 
Well designed surface water drainage for developments on large greenfield 
sites will rarely need to connect to the public sewer system, as there will be 
sufficient space to apply a range of SUDS techniques.  
 
However, on a more constrained site, the National Standards will set 
requirements for reducing peak run-off of surface water. These will require the 
developer to incorporate SUDS techniques within the drainage design before 
approval can be given. Only then will any connection be permitted for residual 
surface water flows. 
 
The Government proposes that the sewerage companies should be consulted 
about new drainage systems. However, they do not consider it appropriate for 
the sewerage company to have discretion over connection to the sewer where 
required standards have been met. In some circumstances, for instance 
during construction, or in line with advice from the SAB, it may be appropriate 
for some limits to be placed on flows into the sewer, for example, by the use 
of a flow restriction device, to ensure the proper operation of SUDS. 
 

3.7 Drainage of roads to sewers 
Section 115 of the Water Industry Act 1991 sets out the circumstances under 
which, by agreement, the Highways Authority may drain a road to a combined 
or surface water sewer. Under the Government’s new proposals the drainage 
of new roads must be approved in line with the National Standards. However, 
in addition, if there is a dispute about whether either party has ‘unreasonably 
refused’ to enter into an agreement to drain a highway to a public sewer, the 
National Standards will be a material consideration.  
 
Whilst this proposal goes beyond the options considered in the 2008 
consultation, it recognises that roads add considerably to the impermeable 

Agenda Item 4

Page 44



  

area of new development and increase the risk of flooding and poor water 
quality. Within high-density developments, roads can be the largest area of 
land in the public realm. Permeable roads could provide sustainable drainage 
not only for the roads themselves, but also for adjacent buildings. 
 

3.8 Funding of SUDS maintenance 
At present, the majority of surface water sewer maintenance is funded by 
water customers through water and sewerage bills. Where there is no 
connection to the sewer, property owners can apply for a rebate. Currently, 
there are several different mechanisms for funding maintenance of existing 
SUDS. These include: 

§ commuted sums from the developer to a maintenance firm or local 
authority; 

§ the revenue support grant; and 
§ water and sewerage bills. 

 
As county and unitary local authorities in England will adopt newly built SUDS, 
it is important to identify how the maintenance of SUDS will be funded in the 
future. The Government believes that from April 2011, local authorities will 
benefit substantially from savings arising from the transfer of private sewers to 
the sewerage companies.  
 
Local authority funds released by the transfer of private sewers, together with 
savings from better local flood risk management, are expected to more than 
cover the additional activities that local authorities will be required to perform 
in this and other areas covered by the Bill and the Government’s response to 
Sir Michael Pitt’s Review.  
 
It is suggested that this would include local authority costs for maintaining new 
SUDS for at least 10 years, after which the costs may begin to exceed the 
amount available from the savings. These long-term pressures will need to be 
considered as part of future Spending Reviews alongside other Government 
priorities and pressures. 
 

3.9 Local authority performance on SUDS 
The Government intends to manage local authority performance on SUDS in 
England through the Local Government Performance Framework, in particular 
through Indicator 188 on Planning to Adapt to Climate Change and Indicator 
189 Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management. The Audit Commission 
presently carries out assessment of performance against all the indicators. 
 

4.  REGIONAL FLOOD DEFENCE COMMITTEES (RFDCs) 
RFDCs provide real benefits. They ensure local democratic input into the 
decision making process, help set the overall strategic direction for the region, 
provide an important challenge function within the EA, and support effective 
delivery by the EA in the region. This is clearly an important role but the 
Government believe, the RFDCs role, responsibilities and membership should 
evolve to reflect the recent and proposed changes to the EA’s role and 
therefore propose changes in the Bill to: 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 45



  

§ replace the RFDCs with new Regional Flood and Coastal Committees 
(RFCCs) with an extended role and membership to cover coastal 
erosion; 

 
§ have statutory schemes of membership to set out the size and shape of 

the committee membership subject to retaining a local authority majority. 
Ministers would continue to appoint the committee chair; local authorities 
and EA would appoint the other members; 

 
§ provide for the committees to advise the EA on investment decisions, 

priorities etc.; 
 
§ retain executive powers for the committees to set levies and deciding 

where levy funding should be spent; and 
 
§ extend the levy power to cover coastal erosion risk.  

 
The essential change proposed is to remove the RFDCs’ overarching 
‘executive’ function (i.e. to remove the current requirement under Section 106 
Water Resources Act for the EA to carry out its functions through the RFDC). 
While RFCCs will remain committees of the EA, the Government believes 
they should advise the EA Board on how FCERM should be pursued in their 
region.  
 
This advice will cover all the work done by the EA on flooding from main rivers 
and the sea, and coastal erosion as well as on its other functions of providing 
flood warning, its strategic overview role, and the prioritisation of work and 
allocation of funding.  
 
The key strengths of RFDCs are their local knowledge, representation of local 
interests, and an ability to question and challenge the EA Board. The proposal 
will retain these strengths to inform the EA’s national priorities. However, the 
EA will itself take final decisions on spending Defra funding on national 
priorities, for which the EA’s Board is accountable to Defra, rather than the 
RFCC. 
 
The Government also propose that RFCCs should in future consider and 
comment on the local flood risk management work of county and unitary local 
authorities to ensure a fully joined up and coordinated service.  RFCCs would 
be on a similar footing to the EA’s other statutory advisory committees – the 
REPACs and RFERAC 
 

4.1 RFCC membership 
The Government propose changes to the way that members are appointed to 
the RFCCs. Currently the RFDCs consist of a bare majority of local authority 
representatives, two members appointed by the EA, with the Secretary of 
State appointing the remainder including the Chair. They propose to allow for 
the EA to produce a scheme of membership for each RFCC that will be 
approved by the Secretary of State.   
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 46



  

This would reflect how other EA statutory advisory committees are appointed 
and would bring in representatives from a wider range of stakeholders. 
However, the need for a local authority majority will remain. The draft Bill 
includes provision for the Secretary of State to provide guidance to the EA on 
the sort of interests to be represented on each of the individual committees. 

4.2 Levy raising powers 
To support the RFCCs’ extended role to embrace coastal erosion, Defra also 
considers that the existing power for the RFDC to consent to levies proposed 
by the EA for flood risk management activity should be extended to coastal 
erosion risk management.  
 
The RFCC members drawn from the county and unitary local authorities 
through a majority vote, would have to agree whether a levy should be placed 
on local authorities, to fund locally important activities that are not included in 
the nationally funded programme before the EA could issue a levy.  
 
This would effectively continue existing flood risk management arrangements, 
allowing a single levy funded programme covering both flooding and coastal 
erosion risk management activities to be established and managed by the EA. 
RFCCs would have the final say on what these levies should be spent on, 
subject to them conforming to relevant national or local strategies. 
 

5.  EU FLOODS DIRECTIVE  
The Bill will transpose the EU Floods Directive in England and Wales by 
placing new duties on the Environment Agency and local authorities and a 
duty on other relevant organisations to cooperate and share data 
 

5.1 Background to the Directive 
The Floods Directive aims to reduce and manage the risk floods pose to 
human health, the environment, cultural heritage and economic activity. The 
Directive entered into force on 26 November 2007 and Member States had 
two years in which to transpose its provisions into domestic legislation, though 
the first requirements of the Directive do not begin until the end of 2011. 
 

5.2 Directive requirements 
A key objective of the Floods Directive is co-ordinated flood risk management 
on shared international river basins, avoiding measures that might increase 
flood risk in a neighboring country. Although not an international boundary, 
the Government proposes to apply this principle to any river basin district 
shared between England and Scotland or Wales.  
 
The Directive requires Member States to develop an evidence base for flood 
risk, to map that risk, and then to produce plans to manage that risk. By 
December 2011, Member States need to prepare a Preliminary Flood Risk 
Assessment showing the impact of historic flooding and the potential impact of 
a repeat event.  
 
They must then define areas of potentially Significant Flood Risk.  For these 
areas of significant risk they must, by 22 December 2013, prepare flood 
hazard maps and flood risk maps. Flood Hazard Maps should show high, 

Agenda Item 4

Page 47



  

medium and low probability floods and include extent, water depth and, where 
appropriate, flow velocities.  
 
Flood Risk Maps cover the consequences that include number of inhabitants, 
types of economic activity and possible pollution causes. These maps will 
need to be coordinated with, and possibly integrated into, the reviews of River 
Basin Districts under the Water Framework Directive 
 
Finally, by 22 December 2015 Member States must establish Flood Risk 
Management Plans that aim to reduce the potential adverse consequences of 
flooding and/or reduce its likelihood . These must also be co-ordinated with 
river basin management plans and involve public participation. In fact all 
assessments, maps and plans must be made available to the public. In 
summary the Directive requirements are as follows: 
 

Output   Purpose  By 
PFRA - Preliminary 
Flood Risk Assessment 
 

To review historic flooding 
and its potential future 
impact drawing on 
available or readily 
derivable information 
 

22 December 2011 

PFRA - Significant risk 
areas 

To identify areas that are 
at potentially significant 
flood risk 
 
 

No formal deadline, but 
need to allow sufficient 
time for mapping 

FHM – Flood hazard 
maps 
 

To show the possible 
extent of flooding under 
different scenarios in 
significant risk areas 
 

22 December 2013 
 

FRM - Flood risk maps To show the potential 
impact in significant risk 
areas 
 

22 December 2013 
 

FRMP – Flood Risk 
Management Plan 
 

Defining objectives and 
measures to decrease 
the likelihood or impact of 
future flooding 

22 December 2015 
 

PFRA/FRM/FHM/FRMP Updates including impact 
of climate change  
 

Every 6* years thereafter 

 

*The first review of the PFRA is due in 2018, but then every 6 years after that. 
 

5.3 Approach to transposition and implementation of the Directive 
The Floods Directive reflects practice in England and Wales. The EA already 
maintains flood risk maps for main rivers and the sea, and Catchment Flood 
Management Plans and Shoreline Management Plans set out longer term 
objectives for managing these risks.   
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 48



  

As part of the development planning process, local authorities in England 
already assess local flood risk by preparing Strategic Flood Risk Assessments 
(SFRAs) while Regional Planning Bodies prepare Regional Flood Risk 
Appraisals (RFRAs). For specific development proposals, site-specific Flood 
Risk Assessments would be carried out by those seeking planning permission 
in flood risk areas 
 
The Government’s main aim is to reduce burdens by delivering the Floods 
Directive using existing outputs or those already under development. They 
propose transposing the Floods Directive into domestic law in England and 
Wales through the draft Bill. This will create new roles and responsibilities for 
the EA and local authorities and ensure maximum clarity. However, should the 
timing of the Bill’s introduction into Parliament create significant risks of 
missing the Directive’s timetables, they would instead transpose via 
regulations under Section 2(2) of the European Communities Act 1972. 
 

5.4 Sewer flooding 
In transposing the Floods Directive, Member States may opt to exclude 
flooding from sewerage systems. Sewers do not themselves create significant 
flooding except when overwhelmed by high rainfall or river levels. Such events 
will be covered by the steps taken to manage other flood risks. Although 
sewer flooding is unpleasant it is unpredictable and affects very few people. 
Water companies are required to investigate such instances and, under the 
terms of the Price Reviews, invest to reduce this risk.  
 
Therefore, following informal consultation with Ofwat and Water UK, the 
Government propose that flooding caused entirely by a failure in the sewerage 
system as opposed to excess loading (e.g. from heavy rain) should be 
excluded. This is the position set out in the Flood Management (Scotland) Bill 
and similar provisions are expected in Northern Ireland  
 

5.5 Primary roles and responsibilities 
The Government proposes that the EA and county and unitary local 
authorities should be the competent authorities for implementing the Directive.  
 
The EA, fulfilling its strategic overview role, will lead on co-ordinating maps 
and plans (the EA is responsible for maps, reports and plans in relation to the 
sea, a main river or a reservoir) and making them available to the 
Commission.  
 
County and unitary local authorities will be responsible for local flood risk 
assessment, mapping and planning (in relation to ordinary watercourses, 
surface run-off and groundwater), and they in turn will rely on information from 
other public and private bodies, such as IDBs, water companies and 
emergency services.  
 
There will be a duty for all relevant authorities to co-operate and share 
information which will help meet the requirements of the Floods Directive. 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 49



  

5.6 Preliminary Flood Risk Assessments 
The Directive requires Member States to prepare Preliminary Flood Risk 
Assessments (PFRAs) based on available or readily derivable information. 
These assessments, help determine those areas where there is a ‘significant 
risk’ for which further maps and plans will be required. PFRAs must be carried 
out for all sources of flooding, except where flood maps and plans have 
already been produced.  
 
In England and Wales, maps and plans already exist for Main River and 
coastal flood risk and, by December 2010, will have been prepared for 
reservoirs, so the only new PFRAs required will be for local flood risk i.e. from 
surface run-off, groundwater and ordinary watercourses.  
 
The Government proposes that county and unitary local authorities should be 
responsible for preparing PFRAs for ordinary watercourses, surface run-off 
and groundwater flood risk.  
 
Local authorities should be able to meet both the requirements of the planning 
system, as set out in PPS25 and its Practice Guide, and Directive PFRAs by 
completing their level one Strategic Flood Risk Assessments (SFRAs). Level 
one SFRAs will cover all forms of flooding. In two tier areas, district authorities 
will work with the county authority to produce a SFRA that sets out flood risk 
across the county area. This will underpin the planning system and guide the 
location of future development to avoid and minimise flood risk whilst also 
meeting the requirements of the Floods Directive. 
 

5.7 Determining significant risk 
On the basis of information contained in the PFRA, Member States must 
identify areas that are considered at ‘potential significant risk’ of flooding. Risk 
is the product of probability and consequence (including social, economic and 
environmental impact).  
 
The factors to be taken into account could include: 
§ social factors such as the number of people affected, their vulnerability, 

impact from the loss of essential services; 
§ economic factors including the temporary loss of transport infrastructure, 

contingency provision and repair, and loss of agricultural production; and 
§ environmental impact including loss or damage to designated sites, 

cultural heritage and major sources of pollution. 
 
The Government proposes that the EA should provide local authorities with 
guidance on the conduct of PFRAs and criteria for the assessment of 
significant local flood risks based on regulations to be made by the Secretary 
of State. 
 
To ensure consistency, prioritise investment and minimise the impact of a 
dispute, the Government propose that there should be external involvement in 
the final selection of significant risk areas. This is in addition to the process 
defined in the draft Bill. This could follow a similar approach to that envisaged 
for SWMPs with a quality assurance panel made up of the Local Government 

Agenda Item 4

Page 50



  

Association (LGA), EA and independent drainage experts producing a 
summary for submission to Ministers.  
 
For any dispute that does arise, they will set out a proposed mechanism in 
secondary legislation under powers provided in the Bill. The process should 
be sufficiently rapid so as not to compromise the timescale allowed by the 
Directive for subsequent mapping. 
 

5.8 Responsibility for preparing Flood Hazard Maps and Flood Risk Maps 
For areas of ‘significant risk’ Member States are required to prepare Flood 
Hazard Maps and Flood Risk Maps by 22 December 2013. Flood hazard 
maps should show flood extent and provide information on depth and velocity 
or flow under low (extreme event), medium (likely return period ε100 years) 
and high probability flooding scenarios. Flood Risk Maps should show the 
potential adverse consequences, including numbers of inhabitants, economic 
activity, industrial installations and areas protected by the Water Framework 
Directive.  
 
The Government proposes that responsibility for all national scale mapping 
and provision of tools and techniques should rest with the EA. The EA could, 
delegate this to competent organisations, such as county and unitary local 
authorities, if required. The EA would not be required to produce additional 
maps where these are already in place for the whole of England. 
 
In relation to local flood risk, once significant risk decisions have been agreed, 
local authorities will be required to produce maps and plans. Where local flood 
risk is exacerbated by flooding from a main river, the sea, a reservoir or 
catchment scale surface run-off, local authorities should map the combined 
consequences, consulting with the EA as appropriate. The Government 
proposes that the EA should produce guidance and a detailed mapping 
specification to help local authorities do this.  
 
Local authorities in England would fulfill their local flood risk mapping 
requirements by extending their level two SFRAs to look at the impact of 
flooding on the environment and cultural heritage. Planning Policy Statement 
25 ‘Development and Flood Risk’ and the accompanying Practice Guide has 
already set out the need for a Level 2 SFRA where more detailed information 
on all types of flood risk is required to map areas of significant risk from local 
flooding.  
 
This approach not only meets the requirements of the Directive but also 
avoids duplicating work on local flood risk. Level 2 SFRAs in areas of 
significant risk would directly inform Directive flood maps. These local flood 
risk maps will then inform the production of local flood risk management plans, 
such as SWMPs. 
 

5.9 Content of Flood Maps 
The Floods Directive provides some flexibility in determining which flooding 
scenarios need to be mapped. For example, it states that in coastal areas 
where adequate protection is in place or where groundwater flooding is the 

Agenda Item 4

Page 51



  

only risk, mapping may be limited to low probability scenarios. The draft Bill 
provides powers for the Secretary of State to make regulations about the form 
and content of maps and will use this flexibility to allow the EA and local 
authorities to exercise such discretion.  
 

5.10 Responsibility for preparing Flood Risk Management Plans 
Flood risk management plans (FRMPs) need to draw together evidence from 
the flood risk and hazard maps in order to determine a range of measures to 
manage and reduce flood risk. To be effective they should be developed in 
partnership with all relevant flood risk management stakeholders. This will 
also make it easier to agree an appropriate action plan and subsequent 
deployment of resources 
 
There are several types of flood risk management plan already produced or in 
development, which would meet the purposes of the Directive (including 
stakeholders’ involvement).  
 
These are: 
§ Catchment Flood Management Plans (produced by the EA for all main 

rivers in England and Wales); 
§ Shoreline Management Plans (produced in coastal areas by a lead 

authority which can either be the EA or a local authority); 
§ Surface Water Management Plans (produced by county and unitary 

authorities – in areas of significant risk they should include all forms of 
local flood risk including from groundwater and ordinary watercourses); 
and 

§ Reservoir flood plans – inundation maps (currently being commissioned 
by EA) and emergency plans (to be prepared by emergency responders). 

 
These will need to be co-ordinated to ensure that measures and objectives set 
are consistent. The Government proposes that the EA in its strategic overview 
role should perform this task. A FRMP would be considered complete once it 
has been adopted by the EA or relevant local authority as appropriate.  
 
The draft Bill provides powers for the Secretary of State to make regulations 
about consultation procedures. County and unitary local authorities will be 
required to develop strategies for local flood risk management, and all 
relevant authorities will be required to act in a manner consistent with these 
strategies when exercising their flood risk management functions. FRMPs will 
be a key part of those strategies. 
 

5.11 Co-ordination with the Water Framework Directive 
The various maps and plans will need to be coordinated and the Government 
proposes that the EA will lead the coordination, given its strategic overview 
and lead role for both the Floods Directive and Water Framework Directive.  
 
Article 9 of the Floods Directive requires Member States to co-ordinate 
application of this Directive with the Water Framework Directive focusing on 
opportunities for improving efficiency and information exchange. The first 
review of River Basin Management Plans is due in December 2013, which will 

Agenda Item 4

Page 52



  

tie in with the first cycle of flood maps for the Floods Directive. They propose 
to leave it to the EA to decide how best to achieve this necessary 
coordination. 
 

5.12 Ensuring public participation 
Article 10 of the Floods Directive requires all the maps, plans and 
assessments under the Directive to be made available to the public. Local 
authorities and the EA will need to take the necessary action to deliver this. 
 

5.13 The reporting and review cycle 
All Directive appraisals, maps and plans need to be reviewed and, if 
necessary, updated every six years (taking into account the likely impact of 
climate change on the likelihood and impact of floods). The only exception is 
the first review of PFRAs that is due seven years after the first appraisal, but 
then every six years after that.  
 
Given that the area of ‘significant risk’ may change with each cycle, and 
additional mapping may be required, the Government propose that the 
deadline for the first review of PFRAs is brought forward by one year to 22 
December 2017 to align with the reporting cycle for all other maps and plans. 
This means that the EA and county and unitary local authorities would have to 
review and, if necessary, update maps and plans according to the following 
timetable: 
 
Map/Plan   
PFRA 22 December 2017*  22 December 2023, 

2029… 
Flood maps Flood maps 22 December 

2019  
22 December 2025, 
2031… 

PFRAs PFRAs 22 December 
2021 

22 December 2027, 
2033… 

*Directive deadline is 22 December 2018 
 
Where, during the review of the PFRA, the area identified as at ‘significant 
risk’ is enlarged, the relevant body will need to expand the existing Flood Risk 
Management Plan or produce a new one.  
 
To allow sufficient time for quality assurance, the Government proposes that 
any map or plan prepared by county and unitary local authorities should be 
made available to the EA six months before the EU deadline. So the first 
maps and plans should be prepared by 22 June 2013 and 2015 respectively. 
 

6.  WATER FRAMEWORK DIRECTIVE 
FCERM operational and consenting activities can have significant positive and 
negative effects on the water environment and on the achievement of the 
environmental objectives set by the Water Framework Directive (WFD).  
 
The WFD recognises that undertaking new modifications to the physical 
characteristics of a water body may cause unavoidable deterioration in status 
or failure to achieve the relevant status objectives for that water body. In such 

Agenda Item 4

Page 53



  

cases Member States will not be considered in breach of the WFD provided 
that certain conditions are met. 
 
The EA has a duty to exercise its flood risk management functions so as to 
secure the requirements of the WFD. This means that it must ensure either 
that FCERM operational and consenting activities either do not cause 
deterioration or that they comply with the conditions for allowing deterioration. 
At present this duty does not apply to other FCERM authorities. 
 
FCERM authorities would be empowered to impose reasonable conditions on 
flood risk management consents to take greater account of environmental 
impacts. The amended flood risk management consenting power would 
enable FCERM authorities to act, where possible, to ensure that consenting 
activities did not cause deterioration in water body status or otherwise prevent 
the achievement of WFD status objectives.  
 
Among other things the amended consenting power would specifically allow 
these authorities to place conditions on consents to prevent, limit or mitigate 
damage to the physical characteristics of water bodies in light of WFD 
requirements. However, the availability of this power for use by FCERM 
authorities does not guarantee that it will be applied equally by all such 
authorities since, at present, there is no consistent duty placed on FCERM 
authorities to secure compliance with the WFD. 
 

6.1 Way forward 
In light of these limitations the Government considers it necessary to place a 
duty on all FCERM authorities to exercise their FCERM functions so as to 
secure compliance with the requirements of the WFD. This will ensure that the 
operational and consenting activities of these authorities are subject to the 
same obligation with respect to the WFD as is currently placed on the EA.  
This new duty would relate to the new FCERM functions assigned to these 
authorities by the draft Bill, when enacted, and any existing functions that are 
retained in other legislation. The new duty on FCERM authorities would 
ensure that assessment of the potential impacts on the water environment is 
carried out for all relevant operational and consenting activities, in order to 
show that the activity would not cause deterioration in water body status or, if 
it would, that the conditions for allowing deterioration were met. 
 
The draft Bill sets out an approach to ensuring that all FCERM authorities act 
consistently with the WFD in the exercise of their functions. The general duty 
requires the EA to develop and maintain a national flood risk management 
strategy. In developing the strategy, the EA is required to take account of the 
need to minimise the adverse effects of FCERM activities on the water 
environment.  
 
This provision would allow the EA to specify that all FCERM operational and 
consenting activities must be consistent with the requirements of the WFD. All 
FCERM authorities would have to comply with this requirement from the 
effective date of the strategy. It does not place a direct duty on these 

Agenda Item 4

Page 54



  

authorities to comply with the relevant requirements of the WFD or oblige the 
EA to impose any such requirement 
 

7.  THIRD PARTY ASSETS 
The draft Bill includes powers for the EA, local authorities and IDBs to formally 
designate assets integral to flood and coastal erosion risk management that 
are owned, maintained and/or operated by third parties. Third parties could 
not then remove, alter or damage these assets without prior consent, and the 
consenting process would enable any approved works to be carried on in line 
with any reasonable conditions imposed.  
 
The lead body that designated the asset would normally grant its consent for 
any reasonable proposals, but unauthorised works on designated structures, 
may lead to an enforcement notice to remedy the situation, and failure to 
comply with this notice would amount to an offence. 
 
The concept of designation would be similar in principle to the Listed Buildings 
classification used by English Heritage. The EA, local authorities or IDBs 
would have the option to introduce designation only if and when appropriate in 
relation to the flood or coastal erosion risk in the area.  
 
Structures or natural man-made features with an impact on the risk of flooding 
or coastal erosion could be identified by the relevant body and the asset 
owner or other responsible person would be informed in writing (through a 
provisional designation notice) of the intention to designate the asset.  
 
This would set out information about the asset and flood risk and would 
provide a period for receipt of any representations.  After considering 
representations the relevant body would be able to confirm the designation by 
issuing a designation notice and registering a Local Land Charge.  
 
If a person was to remove or alter a designated asset (either provisional or 
confirmed) without prior consent from the body that had designated it an 
enforcement notice would be issued. Failure to comply with the notice would 
be an offence. There will be an appeals process and designations can be 
cancelled if it is demonstrated to be inappropriate or no longer required.  
 

7.1 Maintenance of third party assets 
In addition to those defences for which the EA, local authorities or IDBs are 
responsible, some FCERM systems are dependent on third party assets. A 
process for these bodies to formally designate such assets is included in the 
draft Bill but this will not ensure that the assets are maintained in good 
condition. It has been suggested that there should be an express duty on 
those responsible for third party assets to keep them in a reasonable state of 
repair and this will be considered as part of the consultations. 
 

7.2 Consenting and enforcement 
Flood risk management authorities need to be able to control the activities of 
others that might have an impact on flood risk and the water environment. 
With no regulation, rivers and watercourses might be blocked or constrained 

Agenda Item 4

Page 55



  

by these activities, leading to flooding that might not have happened 
otherwise, or inland or coastal defence structures might be damaged with the 
same effect.  
 
Regulation can also allow the physical environment to be protected and 
improved, for example, to ensure that works are done respecting nature 
conservation, and that public access is protected. Consenting involves 
granting a permit to carry out specific works (usually some form of 
construction or structural alteration), while enforcement is carried out to rectify 
the effects of unsuitable works resulting from either failure to comply with a 
consent or failure to obtain a consent. 
 
The aim is to manage potential flood risk that might arise as a result of works 
affecting watercourses, flood plains and flood defence structures. Often the 
works proposed are not specifically aimed at influencing flood risk, e.g. a new 
bridge or an outfall, but could have an impact if not suitably designed and 
built.  
 
Currently, where there are IDBs, they are responsible for consenting to third 
party works on the ordinary watercourse network. Where there are no IDBs, 
the EA is responsible for this consenting role. There is currently no role for 
local authorities in consenting on the ordinary watercourse network. 
 
The consenting provisions within the draft Bill are not seeking any significant 
extension of regulatory powers; instead the Government is seeking to ensure 
that accountability and processes fit with the new arrangements for flood and 
coastal erosion risk management elsewhere in the Bill. They therefore 
propose that IDB, county and unitary local authorities will take responsibility 
for consenting and enforcement of work on ordinary watercourses for works 
undertaken by third parties.  
 
As previously stated the requirement for a local authority to get EA consent on 
ordinary watercourses is to be removed. County and unitary local authorities 
will assume powers to enforce obligations to maintain ordinary watercourses, 
drainage works etc. (under section 21 of the Land Drainage Act 1991), and 
their consent will be needed for construction of culverts, flow control structures 
and other works (under sections 23 and 24 of the Land Drainage Act 1991).  
 
As stated above, these consents are currently the responsibility of the EA. 
However, with the EA’s focus being on the broader issues, and the creation of 
a new local leadership role for county and unitary local authorities, this change 
allows effective management of the local drainage network by those local 
authorities.  
 
To enable local authorities and IDBs to effectively manage works approved 
through consents, and to allow inclusion of Water Framework Directive 
requirements, the draft Bill would amend the law to allow consents to be 
issued subject to reasonable conditions imposed by the local authority. The 
ability to impose conditions may allow more works to be approved than could 
be the case where the only options were unconditional ‘yes’ or ‘no’ decisions.  

Agenda Item 4

Page 56



  

 
8.  LOCAL FLOOD RISK 

In his Review, Sir Michael Pitt recommended that local authorities should 
positively tackle local problems of flooding by working with all relevant parties, 
establishing ownership and legal responsibility.  Although the draft Bill 
concentrates, on the role that can be played by public authorities in managing 
flood risk, individual property owners and occupiers also have a part to play. 
 
The control of private assets is important to flood risk management as is 
considering flood and drainage problems and their resolution at the most local 
level.  
 
At this local level, LA’s will deal with those situations in which the probability of 
flooding is high, but in which the areas affected and the scale of the damage 
is relatively small. As a result of the small scale of the impacts, such risks are 
unlikely to be picked up by the strategic-level planning mechanisms such as 
PFRAs and SWMPs.  
 
For the same reason, when considered against other local authority spending 
priorities, they might not always be considered a sufficiently high priority to 
attract investment. It is therefore important to consider how people who are 
affected by these very localised floods, and their local authorities, can be 
empowered to change the behaviour of local property owners and occupiers 
who contribute to the probability and extent of those floods. 
 
The draft Bill looks at three such sources of local flood risk: 
§ the risk from obstructed watercourses; 
§ the aggravation of run-off flood risk by land covered with hard surfaces; 
and 

§ run-off flooding from agricultural land resulting from particular land 
management practices. 

 
8.1 Local flooding from watercourses and riparian responsibilities 

Under common law, the owner of a river’s banks also owns the riverbed up to 
the center line of the watercourse. This is known as riparian ownership. In the 
case of tidal rivers, landowners are considered riparian if their land is in 
contact with water during ordinary high tides.  
 
Riparian owners are responsible for ensuring that obstructions do not hinder 
the flow of water. Although legislation gives various bodies powers to maintain 
watercourses, these powers do not affect riparian owners’ own 
responsibilities. 
 
The key local authority planning processes for managing local flood risk 
operate at a relatively strategic level and are unlikely to identify flood risk at 
this very local level. The Government therefore considers that some 
mechanism is needed by which local people can prompt riparian owner’s 
action to reduce the risk. 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 57



  

In the case of most designated main rivers  this lack of a mechanism does not 
normally have implications for flood risk management as  for most of these 
watercourses, the EA exercises its powers and conducts the necessary 
maintenance itself. For ‘ordinary’ watercourses the case is generally different.  
 
In areas where there are IDB’s, the Boards usually engage actively in the 
management of most ordinary watercourses. However, local authorities that 
also have the same permissive powers on ordinary watercourses normally 
only involve themselves on the more strategic watercourses than the smaller 
watercourses and ditches that are being considered here.   
 
As a result, the management of ordinary watercourses relies more heavily on 
the involvement of riparian owners, who therefore need to play an active part 
in ensuring the proper flow of water through watercourses on or adjoining their 
properties. 
 

8.2 Increasing riparian owners’ awareness of their responsibilities 
It is therefore important for riparian owners to be aware of their  
responsibilities. There are several opportunities when a property is bought, for 
example through conveyancing solicitors, local authorities and the EA. Other 
opportunities might include when people take out household insurance.  
 
In the longer term, changing the standard questions that sellers are asked as 
part of the Seller’s Property Information Questionnaire in Home Information 
Packs (HIPs) could be considered. However, the Government has no 
immediate plans to make changes to HIPs because of the possible costs of 
such changes, and the need for a period of stability following the introduction 
of HIPs. The Government is seeking suggestions as part of its consultation on 
how increasing riparian owners awareness can be achieved. 
 

8.3 Existing law on the obstruction of watercourses 
There are several potential mechanisms for enforcing property owners’ and 
occupiers’ responsibilities for keeping watercourses free from obstructions. 
Under Section 259 of Public Health Act 1936, local authorities have a duty to 
investigate complaints of public nuisances.  
 
Where they find such a nuisance to exist, they have the duty to issue an 
abatement notice against the person responsible. However, this legislation is 
ill-fitted for cases relating to flood risk for two reasons: firstly, case law has 
interpreted the legislation as applying only to artificial watercourses or artificial 
obstructions in natural watercourses and, secondly, the legislation was 
intended to prevent public health nuisances from stagnant waters and cannot, 
therefore, easily be used in situations of nuisance from flooding. 
 
Any person who feels adversely affected by flood risk resulting from the failure 
of a riparian owner to keep a watercourse clear of obstructions also has 
recourse to the civil courts, where they can bring a case under the law of 
private nuisance. This, however, is an expensive and complex route to take.  
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 58



  

As a result, few such cases are brought. Under section 25 of the Land 
Drainage Act 1991, drainage bodies (local authorities and IDB’s) are able to 
issue notices obliging work to be carried out to remedy any obstruction. These 
can be issued to bodies that have control over the watercourses or to people 
who caused the obstruction, but they can also be issued to riparian owners. 
 
The Government is aware that there have been difficulties using this power, 
for example, for filled ditches and un-consented culverts. Cases in which land 
is not registered and the owner cannot be traced are also problems.  
 
Furthermore, where landowners fail to comply with notices, it appears that 
some drainage bodies are reluctant, because of the financial demands 
involved, to carry out the works themselves and charge the landowner for the 
costs. They believe that this is unacceptable and are proposing amendments 
to the Agricultural Land Tribunal (ALT) to enable it to be used to resolve such 
problems. 
 

8.4 Agricultural Land Tribunals 
Sections 28 to 31 of the Land Drainage Act 1991 also provide a remedy for 
owners and occupiers of any (not just agricultural) land affected by flood risk 
resulting from obstructed ditches. Under these provisions, an application can 
be made by an owner or occupier to the Agricultural Land Tribunal (ALT) for 
an Order requiring remedial work to be undertaken on the obstructed ditches. 
 
Although their main role is under agricultural legislation and concerns disputes 
over agricultural tenancies, the tribunal also has a role in land drainage under 
the Land Drainage Act 1991. In its land drainage function, the ALT has 
jurisdiction over disputes in urban as well as rural areas. 
 
The Land Drainage Act 1991 also makes it clear that the ALT has no 
jurisdiction over main rivers. Similarly, whilst it is a matter of interpretation, it is 
also likely that cases regarding obstructions to large watercourses, or 
watercourses that have not been artificially created, cannot be brought to the 
ALT.  
 
Finally, the Land Drainage Act 1991 also states that the ALT does not have 
jurisdiction over any watercourse that is ‘vested in, or under the control of, a 
drainage body’. This is taken to mean that no case can be brought to the ALT 
concerning any stretch of ditch that is being managed by a drainage body. 
 
On drainage cases, the ALT asks for a technical report on the issue by an 
independent drainage engineer. Unless the application is withdrawn, or the 
parties to the proceedings agree with any recommendations in the report, 
there will be a formal hearing by the ALT. After taking evidence from the 
parties, experts and any other witnesses, the ALT may decide to issue notices 
that either: (a) oblige landowners or occupiers to carry out works to clear 
obstructions to ditches or (b) allow the applicant or their contractor access to 
other land not in their ownership or occupancy in order to perform works to 
improve drainage on their own land. 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 59



  

The legislation also enables the Secretary of State to arrange for work to be 
carried out if the landowner fails to comply with an order made by the ALT and 
for the cost of such work to be recovered from the person named in the ALT 
order.  
 
However the Government believe that there to be a number of drawbacks to 
the ALT as a mechanism for resolving disputes over flood risk from ditches 
such as the formality and contested nature of ALT hearings and as  most 
applicants and respondents will be neighbours, it is important to foster a 
positive ongoing relationship if possible. The Government is therefore 
proposing that all applicants and respondents should be offered an option for 
resolving their disagreements informally. To this end, they propose a form of 
mediation known as Early Neutral Intervention (ENI). 
 
At present, all of this cost for the ALT process is borne by the tax payer. This 
is not consistent with other approaches to dispute resolution, such as the civil 
courts, in which some kind of charge is made.  
 
The Government is therefore suggesting  the introduction of a hearing fee. 
They suggest that it should be paid by the losing party in any case but believe 
it is also possible to leave this issue to the tribunal to decide in the light of the 
particular case. The charging of a hearing fee would also provide an incentive 
for people to use the mediation service, ENI, above.  
 
The fee would therefore only be charged in the event of the applicant 
requesting a formal hearing of the tribunal. For those who opted for ENI but 
then continued on to a hearing, the fee would be reduced by the amount paid 
for the ENI.  
 
To deter people from applying to the tribunal without due prior reflection and 
without first attempting to resolve disputes directly with their neighbours, the 
Government are considering the introduction of a fee of perhaps £100 for all 
drainage applications. This would have no impact on other cases bought to 
the tribunal. 
 

8.5 Expanding the remit of the ALT 
Currently, the powers of the ALT on drainage extend only to ditches. The 
Government proposes that they should be expanded to include all ordinary 
watercourses and perhaps main river also. At present, people who are 
affected by flooding from such watercourses can ask the local authority to 
issue a notice under Section 25 of the Land Drainage Act 1991 but their only 
other course of action is to go to the civil courts. Access to the ALT would 
provide an additional, and simpler, course of action in such cases.  
 
The Government also consider that the name of the tribunal, the ALT, to be a 
possible cause of confusion and a barrier to people looking for a resolution to 
disputes over flood risk from ditches – especially those not on agricultural 
land. Bearing in mind that the main jurisdiction of the ALT relates disputes 
about tenancies of agricultural holdings, if the role of the tribunal in flood risk 

Agenda Item 4

Page 60



  

management is to be retained, they suggest that it should be renamed the 
‘Drainage and Agricultural Land Tribunal’. 
 

8.6 Creating a new statutory nuisance ‘obstructing a watercourse’ 
The proposed amendment to the process by which the ALT resolves disputes 
and perhaps to extend its remit is the Governments preferred option However, 
an alternative option being considered, might be to set up a new dispute 
resolution mechanism by creating a statutory nuisance of ‘obstructing a 
watercourse’.  
 
The law on statutory nuisance puts responsibilities on residents and 
businesses to conduct themselves in such a way that they do not create any 
threat to the health or convenience of their neighbours. Existing statutory 
nuisances include, for example, noise and smoke. Creating a new nuisance of 
‘an obstructed watercourse’ would establish a legal responsibility that was not 
dependent on existing common law.  
 
This option would have the advantage of harmonising the law on flood risk 
with that on other risks to health that can be caused by neighbours. It would 
therefore simplify the overall pattern of laws, making it more easily understood 
and, therefore, more accessible.  
 
The body with responsibility for dealing with statutory nuisance cases would 
be able to issue Notices in much the same way as the ALT currently does. 
Failure to comply with a legal notice regarding a statutory nuisance is a 
criminal offence. 
 
These new nuisances could be administered either by the ALT or by local 
authorities. If this process was enacted then the Government currently favours 
enforcement by district and unitary local authorities, for the following reasons: 
 

§ the ALT is a primarily judicial body. District and unitary local 
authorities, on the other hand, already have responsibility for the 
maintenance of ordinary watercourses, so are likely to have the 
necessary technical expertise; 

 
§ district and unitary local authorities have wide experience in dealing 

with complaints between neighbours and, in particular, in 
administering statutory nuisance law. The ALT, which deals in the 
main with certain disputes relating to agricultural tenancies, has less 
experience and skills in this area; 

 
§ district and unitary local authorities are more likely to have knowledge 

of the social and land drainage contexts. For some cases, this 
knowledge will enable them to come to quicker or better decisions; 
and 

 
§ district and unitary local authorities already use a range of mediation 

processes for resolving disputes and would therefore be better placed 
to employ such processes for land drainage issues. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 61



  

 
8.7 Create a new statutory nuisance ‘surface run-off risk’ 

In some areas, the resurfacing of land by property owners, farmers’ decisions 
over land management and the absence of effective land drainage systems 
can create or exacerbate risks of surface run-off.  
 
The Government believe that in such areas, property owners and tenants 
need to be aware of how they can reduce that risk and mechanisms need to 
be provided that enable better practices to be imposed if necessary. To 
provide a mechanism of enforcement, the Government is suggesting the 
creation of a new statutory nuisance for run-off risk. 
 
This new statutory nuisance could be administered either by the ALT or by 
local Authorities, however again, the Government believes that local 
authorities are best positioned for this task. District and unitary authorities are 
responsible for both building and development control.   
 
For that reason, and for those set out above on the proposal for a statutory 
nuisance relating to watercourses, it could be argued that they should take on 
this responsibility. On the other hand, it is unitary and county local authorities 
that will have the statutory role for managing the risk of surface water flooding 
more generally. 
 

8.8 Prevent actions that increase surface run-off risk 
Whereas a statutory nuisance law could be used to reduce the risk of surface 
run-off flooding by reversing actions that had already been taken, wherever 
possible, such actions should be prevented from being taken in the first place. 
Article 4 of the Town and Country Planning Act (General Permitted 
Development) Order 1995 allows local authorities to impose local restrictions 
on works that would reduce the water retention of back gardens and private 
roads.  
 
It specifies which types of development do not require specific planning 
permission and are deemed ‘permitted’. Since changes made on 1 October 
2008, these rights do not include the hard surfacing of front gardens with 
impermeable materials where the area in question exceeds five square 
metres. They continue to include the impermeable paving of back gardens 
and privately owned roads. However, Article 4 directions allow local 
authorities to introduce local restrictions on these activities. 
 

8.9 The creation of Run-Off Reduction Zones 
No equivalent powers exist to enable restrictions to be placed on farming 
practices that cause or aggravate run-off floods. The Government are 
therefore recommending that, alongside the powers available under Article 4 
of the Town and Country Planning Act, local authorities should be able to 
create designated Run-Off Reduction Zones in which they can introduce 
restrictions on land management practices for particular portions of land. 
These could include restrictions on permitted development described above 
but could also include restrictions on management practices and compulsory 
improvements to drainage in portions of land implicated in run-off flooding. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 62



  

 
The restrictions to be applied to farming practices would be selected from a 
nationally agreed list. These might preclude, for example: ploughing across 
contours, leaving land bare during seasons of high flood risk or growing crops 
that are associated with high rates of run-off. Any decision to designate an 
area as a Run-Off Reduction Zone would be open to appeal to Defra 
Ministers.  Once a designation had been approved, enforcement of the 
restrictions would be by means of the proposed new statutory nuisance 
 

9.  SINGLE UNIFYING ACT 
In his Review, Sir Michael Pitt recommended that forthcoming flooding 
legislation should be a single unifying Act that addresses all sources of 
flooding, clarifies responsibilities and facilitates flood risk management. The 
Government accepted Sir Michael's recommendation subject to the availability 
of Parliamentary time.  
 
The draft Bill partly addresses some of these issues. It deals with flooding 
from all sources; clarifies responsibilities among the different organisations; 
and contains a wide definition of flood and coastal erosion risk management, 
with correspondingly wide powers to undertake works and other related 
activity.  
 
While the draft Bill replaces substantial parts of current legislation, it would still 
leave in place flood and coastal erosion related provisions in existing 
legislation, including the Coast Protection Act 1949, the Land Drainage Act 
1991, the Water Resources Act 1991, and the Environment Act 1995. The 
draft Bill therefore falls short of the “single, unifying Act” that Sir Michael Pitt 
called for in his Review and which the Government agrees is a highly 
desirable objective. 
 
With this in mind the Government therefore intends carrying on work with a 
view to identifying the changes that are necessary to create a single unifying 
Act.  
 
This falls into the following broad areas: 

§ making changes as a result of issues on which they are consulting 
elsewhere in this document, including on internal drainage boards 
and funding arrangements and on the ALT etc.; 

 
§ considering the other flood and coastal erosion provisions that will 

remain in existing legislation and whether they should be retained, 
amended or revoked in the light of changes being made elsewhere in 
resulting legislation. This is likely to reveal some provisions that have 
remained unused for many years and whose future usefulness is 
doubtful; 

 
§ cross-cutting issues such as consenting and enforcement provisions, 

works powers, powers of entry and related provisions they want to 
consider and revise these to provide: a fully consistent approach to 

Agenda Item 4

Page 63



  

organisational arrangements, roles and responsibilities and a better fit 
with the principles of modern regulation. 

 
The government therefore intend that the resulting legislation will contain 
further amendments or repeals to existing legislation and would want to work 
directly with stakeholders in developing such proposals. Because of the 
uncertain nature of what additional provisions would be included in the 
resulting legislation, no impact assessment has been completed at this time. 
They intend to take forward this work, and a review of relevant Local Acts, in 
the coming months and to consult directly with those affected as appropriate. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 64



 

 

REPORT TO: 
 

Cabinet Member –Communities 
Cabinet  

DATE: 
 

4th November 2009 
26

th
 November 2009 

SUBJECT: 
 

Safer and Stronger Communities Partnership Capital Allocation 

WARDS AFFECTED: 
 

ALL 
 

REPORT OF: 
 

Amanda Langan, Assistant Chief Executive 
Safer, Stronger Communities 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

Colette Jones  
Senior Business and Admin Officer 
 

EXEMPT/ 
CONFIDENTIAL: 
 
 

 
No 

PURPOSE/SUMMARY: 
 
To update the Members on the capital spend allocation of Area Based Grant effecting the Safer 
and Stronger Communities Partnership 
 

REASON WHY DECISION REQUIRED: 
To effectively inform members of the capital spend of Area Based Grant effecting the Safer and 
Stronger Communities Partnership and to request that the project spend be included in the Capital 
Programme. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
It is recommended that: 
 

1. Members note the contents of the report  
2. Recommend that Cabinet include the project in the Capital Programme amounting to 

£79,711 in 2009/10 and, subject to Home Office confirmation, £79,711 in 2010/11 to be 
fully funded from Home Office grant. 

 
 
 

 
KEY DECISION: 
 

 
No 

FORWARD PLAN: 
 

No 

IMPLEMENTATION DATE: 
 

N/A 

 

 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS: 
 
 

 
 
IMPLICATIONS: 
 

 
 

Budget/Policy Framework: There are no additional revenue or capital financial 

Agenda Item 5

Page 65



  
 

 

  

 
Finance: 

 
 

implications for Sefton as all expenditure is to be fully 
funded from Home Office Grant. 

 

 

 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

2009/10 
£ 

2010/11 
£ 

2011/12 
£ 

2012/13 
£ 

Gross Increase in Capital Expenditure 79,711 79,711   

Funded by:     

Sefton Capital Resources      

Specific Capital Resources 79,711 79,711   

REVENUE IMPLICATIONS     

Gross Increase in Revenue Expenditure     

Funded by:     

Sefton funded Resources      

Funded from External Resources     

Does the External Funding have an expiry date? Y/N  

How will the service be funded post expiry?  

 
Legal: 
 
 

To ensure that Sefton Safer Stronger Communities 
Partnership capital spend profiles is compliant with Home 
Office grant claim terms and conditions  

Risk Assessment: 
 
 

Sefton is compliant with the terms and conditions of Home 
Office grant 

Asset Management: 
 
 
 

None 

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN/VIEWS 
FD 120 –  The Finance Director has been consulted and his comments have been 
incorporated into this report. 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 66



  
 

 

  

 
 
CORPORATE OBJECTIVE MONITORING: 
 
Corporate 
Objective 

 Positive 
Impact 

Neutral 
Impact 

Negative 
Impact 

1 Creating a Learning Community    

2 Creating Safe Communities √   

3 Jobs and Prosperity    

4 Improving Health and Well-Being    

5 Environmental Sustainability    

6 Creating Inclusive Communities    

7 Improving the Quality of Council Services and 
Strengthening local Democracy 

   

8 Children and Young People 
 

   

 

 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS RELIED UPON IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 67



  
 

 

  

1.0 Introduction 

 
1.1 The Safer and Stronger Communities Fund (SSCF) was established in April 2006 

that saw several existing ODPM and Home Office funding streams, which share a 
number of closely related objectives, merge.  The SSCF was funding directed 
through the CDRP to tackle crime, reduce the harm caused by illegal drugs, 
addressing anti-social behaviour and improving the poor condition of streets and 
other public spaces.  In addition to the revenue component the SSCF also had a 
small capital component. 

 

1.2 The amount of capital grant available to Safer and Stronger Communiites 
Partnership is currently £79,711 and remained consistent over the last 3 years.  
This grant is provided to support the delivery of projects that will contribute to the 
achievement of the outcomes, targets and indicators in the Local Area 
Agreement eg target hardening vulnerable victims of hate crime, domestic 
violence and for residents who have suffered a series of acquisitive crime, such 
as burglary 
 

1.3 In April 2008 the SSCF was incorporated into the Area Based Grant but retains 
its £79,711 capital allocation.  All allocations approved deliver outcomes as set in 
the Local Area Agreement and are reported to GONW on an annual basis. 

 
 Recommendations  
 

It is proposed that the Cabinet Member :- 
 

1. Note the content of the report  
2. Recommend that Cabinet include this project in the Capital Programme 

amounting to £79,711 in 2009/10 and subject to Home Office 
confirmation, £79,711 per annum in future years. 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 68



  

  

REPORT TO: 
 

Cabinet Member – Environmental 
Cabinet Member – Communities 
  

DATE: 
 

21
st
 October 2009 

4
th
 November 2009 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

SEFTON TRADING STANDARDS ALCOHOL SURVEY OF YOUNG 
PEOPLE – AUGUST 2009 

WARDS AFFECTED: 
 

All 

REPORT OF: 
 

W T Milburn 
Environmental Protection Director 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

Andrew Naisbitt 
Trading Standards Section Manager 
0151 934 4014 

 

EXEMPT/ 
CONFIDENTIAL: 
 
 

No 
 

PURPOSE/SUMMARY: 
 
To inform the Cabinet Member – Environmental of the alcohol survey of young people carried out 
by the Trading Standards Service 
 

REASON WHY DECISION REQUIRED: 
 
To advise the Cabinet Member – Environmental of the results of the alcohol survey and to request 
reconsideration of the alcohol sales enforcement strategy by the Public Health Partnership in the 
light of the findings. 
 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
The Cabinet-Member – Environmental  
 
a) Notes the content of this report; 

b) Requests the Public Health Partnership Alcohol Related Crime Sub Group reconsider its 
enforcement strategy in consideration of the findings of the research. 

c) Agrees that in light of their interest in this subject this report be copied to the Cabinet Member – 
Communities for information. 

 

 
KEY DECISION: 
 

 
No 

FORWARD PLAN: 
 

N/A 

IMPLEMENTATION DATE: 
 

Immediately following the expiry of the “call-in” period for 
this meeting. 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 69



  

  

 

 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS:  

Enforcement of underage sale legislation is a statutory duty. 
 
Additional resources could be diverted to this area of enforcement, however this would risk 
distorting the balanced work programme of the Trading Standards service. 
 

 
 
IMPLICATIONS: 
 

 
 
 

Budget/Policy Framework: 
 
 

The cost of the survey has been met from existing Trading 
Standards budgets and a contribution from the Public 
Health Partnership Alcohol Related Crime Sub Group  

Financial: 

 
 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

2006/ 
2007 

£ 

2007/ 
2008 

£ 

2008/ 
2009 

£ 

2009/ 
2010 

£ 

Gross Increase in Capital Expenditure     

Funded by:     

Sefton Capital Resources      

Specific Capital Resources     

REVENUE IMPLICATIONS     

Gross Increase in Revenue Expenditure     

Funded by:     

Funded from External Resources     

Does the External Funding have an expiry date? Y/N When? 

How will the service be funded post expiry?  

 
Legal: 
 
 

N/A 

Risk Assessment: 
 

N/A 

Asset Management: 
 

N/A 

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN/VIEWS 

Public Health Partnership Alcohol Related Crime Sub Group 
 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 70



  

  

 
 
CORPORATE OBJECTIVE MONITORING: 
 
Corporate 
Objective 

 Positive 
Impact 

Neutral 
Impact 

Negative 
Impact 

1 Creating a Learning Community √   

2 Creating Safe Communities √   

3 Jobs and Prosperity √   

4 Improving Health and Well-Being √   

5 Environmental Sustainability  √  

6 Creating Inclusive Communities √   

7 Improving the Quality of Council Services and 
Strengthening local Democracy 

√   

8 Children and Young People 
 

√   

 

 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS RELIED UPON IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
 
Sefton MBC / TSNW Alcohol Survey of Young People - CI Research 
 

 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 71



  

  

Background 
 
1. In 2005 and 2007, Trading Standards North West (TSNW) commissioned Ci 

Research (Ci) to conduct a survey of young people and alcohol use. The findings of 
these surveys were used to help inform a strategy for dealing with the sale of 
alcohol to young people who are underage. In early 2009 TSNW commissioned Ci 
to conduct a similar survey to monitor any changes in behaviour and to provide 
further insight into the sale of alcohol and tobacco. The primary objective of the 
research was to identify how and where youngsters obtain alcohol in order to 
effectively plan intelligence led campaigns. 

 
2. The Sefton Alcohol Survey of Young People is attached as Annex 1. 
 
3. The survey involved issuing questionnaires to schools across the NW to be 

completed by pupils in year 10 and 11 (14-17 years old). A total of 13,902 
questionnaires were returned from 21 of the 22 NW Trading Standards authorities. 
In total 678 questionnaires were completed and returned in Sefton. Ci assumed 
responsibility for collating and verifying all the data to produce a final report. 

 
The Report 
 
4. The report is divided into six areas: 
 

• Sample Profile 

• Alcohol Consumption 

• Purchasing alcohol 

• General attitudes and behaviour 

• Understanding of legislation 

• Smoking Behaviour (subject of a separate report). 
 
5. Alcohol Consumption (Key points) 

 

• Since 2005 there has been a steady decline in the percentage of 14-17 year 
olds in Sefton claiming to drink alcohol once a week or more. The proportion 
claiming never to drink alcohol has steadily increased, from 5% in 2005 to 12% 
in 2009. This figure remains lower than for the North West overall (18%). 

 

• Analysing the results for Sefton at a more detailed level reveals that the 
percentage of 14-17 year olds who drink at least once a week has fallen by 15% 
since 2005, although less significantly since 2007. 

 

• Results for Sefton are broadly in line with those for the North West as a whole. 
However, only three other local authority areas (Cumbria, Halton and the Wirral) 
have a lower proportion of young people claiming never to drink alcohol. 

 

• The likelihood to never drink alcohol in Sefton is notably more pronounced 
amongst males than females. 

 

• The proportion of 14-17 year olds in Sefton identified as regular binge drinkers 
is similar to 2007. However the percentage of occasional binge drinkers has 
fallen, corresponding to an increase in the percentage who never binge drink.  

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 72



  

  

• The proportion claiming to engage in binge drinking twice a week or more has 
increased by 4%, whereas the percentage who never drink or binge drink has 
also increased by 7%. 

 

• Analysing the results by local authority reveals that Sefton has the second 
lowest percentage of 14-17 year olds claiming to never binge drink (22% 
compared to 20% in Cumbria). 

 

• Within Sefton, results show that young females are more likely to binge drink 
than young males. 

 

• 5% of young people in Sefton claim to drink when alone, (9% amongst young 
males). 

 

• The proportion of 14-17 year olds in Sefton drinking alcohol outside has fallen 
from 33% in 2007 to 25%; however this is still higher than in 2005 (16%). 

 

• The percentage claiming to drink alcohol in pubs or clubs in Sefton has risen 
slightly, from 33% in 2007 to 36% in 2009, but this is not as high as in 2005 
(41%). 

 

• The proportion of respondents from Sefton who stated that they drink in pubs or 
clubs is 8% above the average for the North West as a whole, whereas drinking 
outdoors is 5% below North West average. 

 

• The figures for Sefton show a fall in drinking outdoors in groups of more than 10 
(24% compared with 33% in 2007). This figure is lower than for the North West 
region overall (37%). 

 

• Amongst those 14-17 year olds that drink alcohol in Sefton, a slightly higher 
percentage (10%) than in 2007 (7%) claim to consume more than 30 units of 
alcohol per week, although this figure is lower than for the North West overall 
(15%). 

 

• The popularity of Smirnoff, Strongbow and Jack Daniels has increased since 
2007, whilst WKD, Fosters and Stella have experienced a notable fall in 
popularity amongst young people in Sefton. 

 
6. Purchasing Alcohol (Key Points) 

 

• In line with the North West results, most 14-17 year olds in Sefton claim to get 
alcohol from their friends and family.  

 

• The percentage of 14-17 year olds in Sefton claiming to buy their own alcohol 
has increased by 6% since the 2007 survey, but is still lower than reported in 
2005. 

 

• In 2007 the proportion of 14-17 year olds purchasing their own alcohol in Sefton 
was in line with the regional average at 28%. In 2009 this figure has risen to 
34%, 8% higher than the regional average. Across the North West, Sefton has 
the third highest incidence of 14-17 year olds purchasing their own alcohol. 

 

• The findings suggest that young females are more likely to purchase their own 
alcohol than young males in Sefton. The proportion of 15 year olds claiming to 

Agenda Item 6

Page 73



  

  

buy their own alcohol has increased by 6% since 2007, slightly higher than the 
rise amongst 16 year olds (3%). 

 

• Of the 14-17 year olds surveyed in Sefton, over half (54%) state that have been 
asked for ID when buying alcohol themselves. This figure is slightly higher 
amongst young males (59%). 

 

• 6% of 14-17 year olds in Sefton claim to have fake ID, almost a third of whom 
stated that they bought this on the internet, which is similar to the North West 
average. Amongst those that have fake ID, higher percentages claim to be 
using an older sibling’s identification. 

 
7.  General Attitudes and Behaviour (Key Points) 

 

• General attitudes and behaviour relating to alcohol have not changed 
considerably for Sefton since 2007. The only significant difference is that 8% 
more 14-17 years olds agree that they drink alcohol because their friends do. 
Some variation in attitudes and behaviour was apparent, particularly by gender. 

 

• For Sefton, the percentages of 14-17 year olds claiming to have had sex, 
regretted having sex after drinking, and be violent or have a fight whilst drunk 
are lower than for the North West overall. 

 
8. Understanding of the Law (Key Points) 

 

• In Sefton, understanding of legislation with regards to alcohol was relatively 
consistent with the previous survey. A slightly higher percentage correctly 
identified that it is not a criminal offence for under 18s to drink alcohol at home, 
and slightly lower percentage that it is a criminal offence for under 18s to buy 
alcohol. 

 

• Thinking specifically about understanding of legislation around under 18s 
purchasing alcohol, those 14-17 year olds surveyed in Sefton who claim to buy 
their own alcohol were less likely to be aware that this is an offence compared 
to others. 

  
Analysis and Comment 

 
9. The survey highlights a ‘mixed bag’ of outcomes: 

 
a) From an alcohol related crime/ASB perspective there are encouraging 

results indicating outside drinking has fallen whilst those who drink outside 
are doing so in smaller groups/gangs, for example: 

 

• The 9% fall in the respondents claiming to drink outside in groups of more 
than 10 correlates with a sustained period of increased promotional and 
enforcement activity, within the wider Safer and Stronger Communities 
Partnership. This has included Police Officers being deployed on a range 
of interventions to both 'test' (litmus testing) and confiscate alcohol in 
public areas. In addition the use of 'advisory letters' sent to parents of 
young people who have been stopped drinking, or are in groups of young 
people drinking, has also been a contributory factor.  

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 74



  

  

• Self reported 'drinking alone' currently stands at 5% in 2009. This has 
been targeted by the ‘Public Health Partnership Alcohol Related Crime 
Sub Group’ (PHPASG) in the last year. Using the 'Don't Leave Your 
Mates' Bluetooth messaging system as well as a wider resource pack 
developed by Young People, for Young People, the Partnership has been 
keen to address the possible health, as well as wider safety issues and 
risks, that may occur if young people drink alone. 

 

• Again the reduction in self reported drinking 'outside' represents a strong 
and increased awareness by young people that the Police will take 
immediate and swift action to remove alcohol from young people. Such 
activity is consistent with community’s expectations as evidenced by the 
Safer and Stronger 'tracking survey' which suggests that 'underage 
drinking' is seen by many of our communities as a 'risk' and as a predictor 
of later anti-social behaviour. In this way the PHPASG can see that its 
action and activity is in line with community expectation, and it is 
addressing local concerns in accordance with the Local Area Agreement 
and National Indicators 17 (Perceptions of Anti-Social Behaviour) and 21 
(Perceptions that the Council and the Police are addressing local 
communities concerns on crime and disorder). For example, in 2007 11% 
of those drinking 'outside' said they drank in groups numbering more that 
20; in 2009 this had decreased to 6%. These reductions clearly evidence 
that the young people seem to be recognising that if in larger groups they 
become more 'visible' to the community, and to the Police. Thus to avoid 
this risk they have chosen not to make themselves as 'visible' but have 
not gone as far as to drink alone, which in public areas may introduce a 
wider and more serious risk of harm.  

 

• The results however, highlight the worrying increase in the supply of 
alcohol and cigarettes by over 18’s and parents / adults. At the same time 
the fact that 46% of 14-17 year olds report not being checked for ID and a 
further 6% use fake ID is a source for concern. 

 
b) From a health perspective the PHPASG can take encouragement from the 

decreasing number of teenagers who drink once a week or more and the 7% 
increase in the numbers who don't drink at all. At the same time lack of a shift in 
the incidence of binge drinking (particularly in relation to 14-17 year old girls) 
remains a challenge and an area the Council and PHPASG will need to focus 
on addressing, and  

 
c) Also encouraging is the fact that, when asked about their behaviour, 79% (2009) 

said that they did not engage in violence when drinking, with a further 89% 
saying that they would not drink alone. This reported behaviour minimises the 
possible and potential 'harm' (both criminal and health) associated with alcohol, 
as a gateway to possible victimisation or offending behaviour and as a gateway 
(when drinking alone, especially outside) to immediate health related harm 
because of the potential associated with acute alcohol toxicity. Again the 'Don't 
Leave Your Mates' awareness programme seems to have communicated the 
message in relation to these risks effectively to the wider audience, especially 
young people. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 75



  

  

 
 
Implications for Trading Standards. 
 
10. The results demonstrate the need for continued investment in the underage 

enforcement programme operated by Trading Standards and the initiatives 
commissioned by the Public Health Partnership Alcohol Related Crime Subgroup.  

 
11. The results also highlight the worrying increase in supply of alcohol’ by over 18’s 

and parents / adults and the use of ‘fake’ identification. However this can also be 
interpreted as a measure of the success of current proactive enforcement practices. 

 
12. The Trading Standards Section, along with its partners on the Sefton Public Health 

Partnership Alcohol Related Crime Subgroup, will have to review enforcement 
strategies if it is to further diminish the level of underage sales. Options will be 
presented to the Cabinet member – Environmental in a future report for inclusion in 
the 2010/11 work programme. 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 76



P
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 b

y
:

C
i 
R

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 L

td

Is
s
u
e
 d

a
te

: 
1
7
 A

u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
9

 

in
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h

M
a

rk
e

t 
re

s
e

a
rc

h
 r

e
p

o
rt

 f
o

r:

Agenda Item 6

Page 77



T
S

N
W

 w
o

u
ld

 l
ik

e
 t
o

 t
h

a
n

k
 t
h

e
 T

S
N

W
 A

lc
o

h
o

l 
F

o
c
u

s
 G

ro
u

p
 R

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 f
ro

m
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 r

e
g

io
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
ir
 e

ff
o

rt
s
 in

 a
s
s
is

ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

is
 s

u
rv

e
y.

F
o

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 p
le

a
s
e

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 
L

in
d

a
 

S
m

a
llt

h
w

a
it
e

, 
P

ri
n

c
ip

a
l T

S
O

, 
W

a
rr

in
g

to
n

 &
 H

a
lt
o

n
 T

ra
d

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s

ls
m

a
llt

h
w

a
it
e

@
w

a
rr

in
g

to
n
.g

o
v.

u
k

Agenda Item 6

Page 78



T
a

b
le

 o
f 
c
o

n
te

n
ts

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

S
a
m

p
le

 p
ro

fi
le

A
lc

o
h
o
l 
c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n

P
u
rc

h
a
s
in

g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
a
tt
it
u
d
e
s
 a

n
d
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r

U
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
le

g
is

la
ti
o
n

S
m

o
k
in

g
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r

Agenda Item 6

Page 79



IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

Agenda Item 6

Page 80



B
a

c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s

C
i
w

a
s
 r

e
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

 b
y
 T

ra
d

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 
(T

S
N

W
) 

to
 c

o
n

d
u

c
t 
a

 r
e

g
io

n
a

l 
s
tu

d
y
 t
o

 

m
o

n
it
o

r 
a

n
d

 e
v
a

lu
a

te
 t
h

e
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 a

tt
it
u

d
e

s
 o

f 
1

4
-1

7
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
a

n
d

 t
o

b
a

c
c
o

.

T
h
is

 s
tu

d
y
 w

a
s
 f

ir
s
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 in

 2
0
0
5
, 
a
n
d
 a

g
a
in

 i
n
 2

0
0
7
, 
a
n
d
 c

o
v
e
rs

 t
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
lo

c
a
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 
re

g
io

n
.

T
h

e
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tu
d

y
 a

re
 u

s
e

d
 t
o

:

In
fo

rm
 s

tr
a
te

g
ie

s
 f
o
r 

d
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

a
le

 o
f 
a
lc

o
h
o
l 
a
n
d
 t
o
b
a
c
c
o
 t
o
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

re
 

u
n

d
e

r 
a

g
e

;

M
o

n
it
o

r 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 a

tt
it
u

d
e

s
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 
c
o

n
s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
;

Id
e

n
ti
fy

 k
e

y
 a

re
a

s
 t
o

 f
o

c
u

s
 e

ff
o

rt
s
 i
n

 a
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 is

s
u

e
s
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

a
le

 o
f 
a

lc
o

h
o

l 
a

n
d

 

to
b
a
c
c
o
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
ra

g
e
.

T
h

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

 d
e

ta
ils

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 f
o

r 
S

e
ft

o
n

, 
h

ig
h

lig
h

ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
s
 i
n

 a
tt

it
u

d
e

s
 a

n
d

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

o
v
e

r 

ti
m

e
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 r
e

g
io

n
, 
a

n
d

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 b

y
 a

g
e

 a
n

d
 g

e
n

d
e

r.

Agenda Item 6

Page 81



M
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
 o

v
e

rv
ie

w

F
ie

ld
w

o
rk

 t
o

o
k
 p

la
c
e

 d
u

ri
n

g
 M

a
rc

h
 a

n
d

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0

9
.

T
h

e
 s

e
lf
-c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
n

a
ir
e

 u
s
e

d
 f
o

r 
th

e
 l
a

te
s
t 
s
u

rv
e

y
 w

a
s
 s

im
ila

r 
to

 t
h

e
 o

n
e

 u
s
e

d
 i
n

 2
0

0
7

 t
o

 

e
n

a
b

le
 a

 c
o

m
p

a
ri
s
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 s

tu
d

y
.

2
1

 T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
in

 t
h

e
 N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 2

0
0

9
 s

u
rv

e
y
.

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
T

ra
d

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

s
s
u

m
e

d
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 

q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
n
a

ir
e

s
 t
o

 a
n

d
 f
ro

m
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
.

L
o

c
a

l 
T

ra
d

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 l
ia

is
e

d
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o

 o
b

ta
in

 s
u

rv
e

y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
.

T
h
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 h

ig
h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
p
u
p
ils

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 o

p
e
n
 a

n
d
 h

o
n
e
s
t 
w

h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
, 

a
n

d
 a

s
s
u

re
d

 t
h

a
t 
a

ll 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

n
o

n
y
m

o
u

s
.

A
 t
o

ta
l 
o

f 
1

3
,9

0
2

 q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
n

a
ir
e
s
 w

e
re

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

tu
rn

e
d

 t
o

 C
i.
 O

f 
th

e
s
e

, 
6

7
8

 (
5

%
) 

w
e

re
 f
ro

m
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 b
a

s
e

d
 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 S

e
ft

o
n

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

.

C
i 
a
s
s
u
m

e
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

c
o
lla

ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 v

e
ri
fy

in
g
 a

ll 
th

e
 d

a
ta

 a
n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
, 
a
n
d
  

p
ro

d
u

c
in

g
 a

n
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

a
n

d
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 r
e

p
o

rt
s
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 r

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 f
in

d
in

g
s
.

Agenda Item 6

Page 82



S
A

M
P

L
E

 P
R

O
F

IL
E

Agenda Item 6

Page 83



S
a
m

p
le

 b
re

a
k
d

o
w

n
 b

y
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty

B
a
s
e
: 
In

 b
ra

c
k
e
ts

 -
s
e
e
 l
e
g
e
n
d

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
R

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
R

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

6
7

8
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 f
ro

m
 S

e
ft

o
n

 t
o

o
k
 p

a
rt

 i
n

 t
h

e
 2

0
0

9
 s

u
rv

e
y
, 

e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

a
to
v

e
r

al
l r

es
u
l

ts
 
fo
r

 t
he

 
lo
c

a
l

 a
u

t
ho

r
it
y 

w
e

re
 a

c
c
u

ra
te

 t
o

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 +
/-

2
.3

%
 a

n
d

 +
/-

3
.8

%
, 
b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 a

 9
5

%
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

c
e
 l
e

v
e

l.
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 84



B
a
s
e
: 

2
5
5
 R

e
s
p

o
n

d
e
n

ts
 (

3
8
%

 o
f 

s
a
m

p
le

)

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 

1
0
8
 R

e
s
p

o
n

d
e
n

ts
 (

1
6
%

 o
f 

s
a
m

p
le

) 
O

n
ly

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 p
o

s
tc

o
d

e
 f

o
r 

fi
rs

t 
2

-3
 c

h
a
ra

c
te

rs

6
3
 R

e
s
p

o
n

d
e
n

ts
 (

9
%

 o
f 

s
a
m

p
le

) 
P

ro
v
id

e
d

 4
+

 c
h

a
ra

c
te

rs
, 
b

u
t 

p
o

s
tc

o
d

e
 c

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

2
5
2
 R

e
s
p

o
n

d
e
n

ts
 (

3
7
%

 o
f 

s
a
m

p
le

) 
D

id
 n

o
t 

e
n

te
r 

a
 p

o
s
tc

o
d

e

T
h

e
 m

a
p

 b
e

lo
w

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 g
e

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

a
l 
ill

u
s
tr

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
w

h
o

 t
o

o
k
 p

a
rt

 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 i
n

 S
e

ft
o

n
. 
A

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 

tw
o

-t
h

ir
d

s
 (

6
3

%
) 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 a
 p

o
s
tc

o
d

e
, 
o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 t
h

re
e

-f
if
th

s
 (

6
0

%
) 

c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 m
a

tc
h

e
d

 f
o

r 
m

a
p

p
in

g
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
. 

J
u

s
t 
o

v
e

r 
a

 t
h

ir
d

 (
3

7
%

) 
d

id
 n

o
t 
d

is
c
lo

s
e

 t
h

e
ir
 p

o
s
tc

o
d

e
. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 85



B
a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
5
 -

1
2
8
4
0
 ;
 2

0
0
7
 -

1
1
7
2
4
; 
2
0
0
9
 

1
3
9
0
2

S
a
m

p
le

 b
re

a
k
d

o
w

n
 b

y
 P

o
li

c
e
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty

% Respondents
T

h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 
s
a
m

p
le

 o
v
e
ra

ll 
s
ti
ll 

fa
lls

 u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 G

re
a
te

r 
M

a
n
c
h
e
s
te

r 
P

o
lic

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 

M
e

rs
e

y
s
id

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
fo

r 
n

e
a

rl
y
 o

n
e

-f
if
th

 (
1

7
%

) 
o

f 
th

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

s
a

m
p

le
. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 86



S
a

m
p

le
 b

re
a

k
d

o
w

n
 b

y
 G

e
n

d
e

r

S
e

ft
o

n

% Respondents

N
W

 T
o

ta
l 

S
a

m
p

le
 2

0
0

9

M
a

le
 5

0
%

F
e
m

a
le

 5
0
%

S
a

m
p

le
 b

re
a

k
d

o
w

n
 b

y
 A

g
e

S
e

ft
o

n

% Respondents

N
W

 T
o

ta
l 
S

a
m

p
le

 

2
0

0
9

1
4

 Y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
: 
 5

%

1
5

 Y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
: 
4

7
%

1
6

 Y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
: 
4

7
%

1
7

 Y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
: 
1

%

B
a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
5
 -

1
3
1
; 
2
0
0
7
 -

2
6
2
; 
2
0
0
9
 

6
1
6

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d

B
a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
5
 

1
3
7
; 
2
0
0
7
 -

4
0
1
; 
2
0
0
9
 

6
1
6

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d

In
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 
re

g
io

n
a

l d
a

ta
, 
th

e
 S

e
ft

o
n

 s
a

m
p

le
 i
s
 e

q
u

a
lly

 s
p

lit
 b

y
 g

e
n

d
e

r,
 a

n
d

 i
s
 c

o
m

p
ri
s
e

d
 

p
re

d
o

m
in

a
n

tl
y
 o

f 
1

5
 a

n
d

 1
6

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
.

Agenda Item 6

Page 87



S
a
m

p
le

 C
o

n
fi

d
e
n

c
e
 I
n

te
rv

a
ls

 -
S

e
ft

o
n

 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
re

s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

C
o

n
fi

d
e
n

c
e

 I
n

te
rv

a
l 

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 9

5
%

 

c
o

n
fi

d
e

n
c
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 

R
e

s
u

lt
s
 a

c
c

u
ra

te
 t

o
..

.

S
e

ft
o

n
6

7
8

+
/-

2
.2

6
%

 t
o

 3
.7

6
%

G
e

n
d

e
r

M
a

le
3

1
4

+
/-

3
.3

2
%

 t
o

 5
.5

3
%

F
e

m
a

le
3

0
2

+
/-

3
.3

8
%

 t
o

 5
.6

4
%

A
g

e

1
4

4
N

o
t 
a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

1
5

2
6

3
+

/-
3

.6
3

%
 t
o

 6
.0

4
%

1
6

3
4

3
+

/-
3

.1
7

%
 t
o

 5
.2

9
%

1
7

6
N

o
t 
a

p
p

lic
a

b
le

T
h

e
 t
a

b
le

 b
e

lo
w

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 o
f 
th

e
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
l 
a

c
c
u

ra
c
y
 o

f 
re

s
u

lt
s
 f
o

r 
S

e
ft

o
n

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 s

a
m

p
le

s
 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
, 
a

n
d

 a
s
s
u

m
in

g
 9

5
%

 c
o

n
fi
d

e
n

c
e

 le
v
e

ls
. 
T

h
e

s
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 w

ill
 d

if
fe

r 
fr

o
m

 q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
 t
o

 q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
 a

s
 n

o
t 
a

ll 

re
s
p

o
n

d
e
n

ts
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 e

v
e

ry
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
.

Agenda Item 6

Page 88



A
L
C

O
H

O
L

 C
O

N
S

U
M

P
T

IO
N

Agenda Item 6

Page 89



H
o

w
 o

ft
e

n
 d

o
 y

o
u

 d
ri

n
k

 a
lc

o
h

o
l?

 (
p

ro
m

p
te

d
)

S
e

ft
o

n

% Respondents

B
a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
5
 -

1
3
8
; 
2
0
0
7
 

4
1
2
; 
2
0
0
9
 

6
7
6

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d

N
W

 T
o

ta
l 
S

a
m

p
le

 2
0
0
9

O
n

c
e
 a

 w
e

e
k
 o

r 
m

o
re

: 
3

8
%

L
e
s
s
 t
h

a
n

 o
n
c
e

 a
 w

e
e
k
: 
4

4
%

N
e

v
e

r:
 1

8
%

R
e

s
u

lt
s
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

 a
 s

te
a

d
y
 d

e
c
lin

e
 s

in
c
e

 2
0

0
5

 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 
1

4
-1

7
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 i
n

 S
e

ft
o

n
 c

la
im

in
g

 t
o

 d
ri
n

k
 

a
lc

o
h

o
l o

n
c
e

 a
 w

e
e

k
 o

r 
m

o
re

. 
T

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 c

la
im

in
g

 n
e

v
e

r 
to

 d
ri
n

k
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
h

a
s
 s

te
a

d
ily

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
, 
fr

o
m

 5
%

 i
n

 

2
0

0
5

 t
o

 1
2

%
 i
n

 2
0

0
9

. 
T

h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 
o

v
e

ra
ll 

(1
8

%
).

Agenda Item 6

Page 90



H
o

w
 o

ft
e

n
 d

o
 y

o
u

 d
ri

n
k

 a
lc

o
h

o
l?

 (
p

ro
m

p
te

d
)

S
e

ft
o

n

% Respondents

B
a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
5
 -

1
3
8
; 
2
0
0
7
 

4
1
2
; 
2
0
0
9
 

6
7
6

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d

N
W

 T
o

ta
l 

S
a

m
p

le
 2

0
0

9

T
w

ic
e

 a
 w

e
e
k
 o

r 
m

o
re

: 
1

9
%

O
n

c
e
 a

 w
e

e
k
: 
1

9
%

1
 t
o

 3
 t
im

e
s
 a

 m
o

n
th

: 
2

3
%

L
e
s
s
 t
h

a
n

 o
n
c
e

 a
 m

o
n
th

: 
2

2
%

N
e

v
e

r:
 1

8
%

A
n
a
ly

s
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

S
e
ft

o
n
 a

t 
a
 m

o
re

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
re

v
e
a
ls

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
1
4

-1
7
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

h
o
 

d
ri
n

k
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
o

n
c
e

 a
 w

e
e

k
 h

a
s
 f
a

lle
n

 b
y
 1

5
%

 s
in

c
e

 2
0

0
5

, 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 le
s
s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 s

in
c
e

 2
0

0
7

.

fi
n
d
in

g
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 
a
 m

o
re

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 

le
v
e
l 
in

 2
0
0
7
 a

n
d
 2

0
0
9
 o

n
ly

. 
N

o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 t
h
is

 l
e
v
e
l 
fo

r 
2
0
0
5
. Agenda Item 6

Page 91



B
a
s
e
: 
1
3
5
1
9
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d

H
o

w
 o

ft
e

n
 d

o
 y

o
u

 d
ri

n
k

 a
lc

o
h

o
l?

 (
A

n
a

ly
s

is
 b

y
 L

o
c

a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
)

O
v
e

ra
ll

 N
W

 2
0

0
9

% RespondentsR
e

s
u

lt
s
 f
o

r 
S

e
ft

o
n

 a
re

 b
ro

a
d

ly
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

o
s
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 
a

s
 a

 w
h

o
le

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 o

n
ly

 t
h

re
e

 o
th

e
r 

lo
c
a

l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
 (

C
u

m
b

ri
a

, 
H

a
lt
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 W

ir
ra

l)
 h

a
v
e

 a
 l
o

w
e

r 
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 c
la

im
in

g
 n

e
v
e

r 
to

 

d
ri
n

k
 a

lc
o

h
o

l.

Agenda Item 6

Page 92



B
a
s
e
: 
In

 b
ra

c
k
e
ts

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d
. 
* 

d
e
n
o
te

s
 s

m
a
ll 

b
a
s
e
 s

iz
e

H
o

w
 o

ft
e

n
 d

o
 y

o
u

 d
ri

n
k

 a
lc

o
h

o
l?

 (
A

n
a

ly
s

is
 b

y
 a

g
e

 a
n

d
 g

e
n

d
e

r)

S
e

ft
o

n
: 

2
0

0
9

2
0

7
5

1
6

2
1

5
0

2
1

1
9

2
0

0

1
8

1
9

0

1
6

2
0

2
9

2
5

3
2

2
8

3
3

3
0

3
0

1
9

0

1
9

2
2

1
7

1
7

2
4

1
2

0

1
5

1
0

0

1
7

7

0
%

1
0
%

2
0
%

3
0
%

4
0
%

5
0
%

6
0
%

7
0
%

8
0
%

9
0
%

1
0
0
%

S
e

ft
o

n
(6

7
6

)
1

4
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

(4
)*

1
5
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

(2
6
2

)
1

6
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

(3
4
2

)
1

7
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

(6
)*

M
a

le
 

(3
1
3

)
F

e
m

a
le

(3
0
1

)

T
w

ic
e

 a
 w

e
e
k
 o

r 
m

o
re

O
n

c
e
 a

 w
e

e
k

O
n

c
e
 t
o

 3
 t

im
e

s
 a

 m
o

n
th

L
e
s
s
 t
h

a
n

 o
n
c
e

 a
 m

o
n
th

N
e

v
e

r

% Respondents

L
ik

e
lih

o
o

d
 t
o

 n
e

v
e

r 
d

ri
n

k
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
in

 S
e

ft
o

n
 is

 n
o

ta
b

ly
 m

o
re

 p
ro

n
o

u
n

c
e

d
 a

m
o

n
g

s
t 
m

a
le

s
 t
h

a
n

 f
e

m
a

le
s
.

Agenda Item 6

Page 93



% Respondents

B
a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
7
 

4
0
9
; 
2
0
0
9
 

6
7
0

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d
. 
N

o
t 
a
s
k
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
5

N
W

 T
o

ta
l 

S
a

m
p

le
 2

0
0

9

N
e

v
e

r 
b

in
g

e
 d

ri
n
k
: 
3

0
%

O
c
c
a

s
io

n
a

l 
b

in
g

e
 d

ri
n
k
e

rs
:4

4
%

R
e

g
u

la
r 

b
in

g
e

 d
ri
n
k
e

rs
:2

6
%

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 
1

4
-1

7
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 i
n

 S
e

ft
o

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
b

in
g

e
 d

ri
n

k
e

rs
 i
s
 s

im
ila

r 
to

 2
0

0
7

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
 

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
o

c
c
a

s
io

n
a

l b
in

g
e

 d
ri
n

k
e

rs
 h

a
s
 f
a

lle
n

, 
c
o

rr
e

s
p

o
n

d
in

g
 t
o

 a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 in
 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 w

h
o

 n
e

v
e

r 

b
in

g
e

 d
ri
n

k
. 
 F

re
q

u
e

n
c

y
 o

f 
b

in
g

e
 d

ri
n

k
in

g
 (

5
 o

r 
m

o
re

 a
lc

o
h

o
li

c
 d

ri
n

k
s

 o
n

 o
n

e
 o

c
c

a
s

io
n

) 

S
e

ft
o

n

Agenda Item 6

Page 94



% Respondents

B
a
s
e
:2

0
0
7
 

4
0
9
; 
2
0
0
9
 

6
7
0

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d
. 
N

o
t 
a
s
k
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
5

N
W

 T
o

ta
l 

S
a

m
p

le
 2

0
0

9

T
w

ic
e

 a
 w

e
e
k
 o

r 
m

o
re

: 
1

2
%

O
n

c
e
 a

 w
e

e
k
: 
1

3
%

1
 t
o

 3
 t
im

e
s
 a

 m
o

n
th

: 
1

9
%

L
e
s
s
 t
h

a
n

 o
n
c
e

 a
 m

o
n
th

: 
2

5
%

N
e

v
e

r:
 1

2
%

N
e

v
e

r 
d

ri
n
k
: 
1

8
%

A
n

a
ly

s
in

g
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 f
o

r 
S

e
ft

o
n

 t
o

 a
 m

o
re

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 le

v
e

l 
h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 c
la

im
in

g
 t
o

 b
in

g
e

 d
ri
n

k
in

g
 

tw
ic

e
 a

 w
e

e
k
 o

r 
m

o
re

 h
a

s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

y
 4

%
, 
w

h
e

re
a

s
 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 w
h

o
 n

e
v
e

r 
d

ri
n

k
 o

r 
b

in
g

e
 d

ri
n

k
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o

 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

y
 7

%
.

F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 o

f 
b

in
g

e
 d

ri
n

k
in

g
 (

5
 o

r 
m

o
re

 a
lc

o
h

o
li

c
 d

ri
n

k
s

 o
n

 o
n

e
 o

c
c

a
s

io
n

) 

S
e
ft

o
n

Agenda Item 6

Page 95



F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 o

f 
b

in
g

e
 d

ri
n

k
in

g
 (

A
n

a
ly

s
is

 b
y
 L

o
c

a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
)

2
0
0
9

% Respondents B
a
s
e
: 
1
3
3
9
0
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d

A
n

a
ly

s
in

g
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 b

y
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 r
e

v
e

a
ls

 t
h

a
t 
S

e
ft

o
n

 h
a

s
 t
h

e
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 lo
w

e
s
t 
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
1

4
-1

7
 y

e
a

r 

o
ld

s
 c

la
im

in
g

 t
o

 n
e

v
e

r 
b

in
g

e
 d

ri
n

k
 (

2
2

%
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 2
0

%
 i
n

 C
u

m
b

ri
a

).
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 96



F
re

q
u

e
n

c
y
 o

f 
b

in
g

e
 d

ri
n

k
in

g
 (

A
n

a
ly

s
is

 b
y
 a

g
e

 a
n

d
 g

e
n

d
e

r)

S
e

ft
o

n
: 

2
0

0
9

2
7

5
0

2
3

2
6

5
0

2
4

2
6

5
1

5
0

5
0

5
4

5
0

4
9

5
5

2
2

0

2
6

2
0

0

2
7

1
8

0
%

1
0
%

2
0
%

3
0
%

4
0
%

5
0
%

6
0
%

7
0
%

8
0
%

9
0
%

1
0
0
%

S
e

ft
o

n
(6

7
0

)
1

4
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

 
(4

)*
1

5
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

(2
6
2

)
1

6
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

(3
3
7

)
1

7
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

(6
)*

M
a

le
 

(3
1
3

)
F

e
m

a
le

(2
9
6

)

R
e

g
u

la
r 

b
in

g
e

 d
ri
n
k
e

rs
 (

a
t 
le

a
s
t 

o
n
c
e

 a
 w

e
e
k
)

O
c
c
a

s
io

n
a

l 
b

in
g

e
 d

ri
n
k
e

rs
 (

th
re

e
 t
im

e
s
 a

 m
o

n
th

 o
r 

le
s
s
)

N
e

v
e

r 
b

in
g

e
 d

ri
n
k

% Respondents B
a
s
e
: 
s
e
e
 b

ra
c
k
e
ts

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d

*N
B

 s
m

a
ll 

b
a
s
e
 s

iz
e

W
it
h

in
 S

e
ft

o
n

, 
re

s
u

lt
s
 s

h
o

w
 t
h

a
t 
y
o

u
n

g
 f
e

m
a

le
s
 a

re
 m

o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
in

g
e

 d
ri
n

k
 t
h

a
n

 y
o

u
n

g
 m

a
le

s
. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 97



D
o

 y
o

u
 t

e
n

d
 t

o
 d

ri
n

k
 a

lo
n

e
 o

r 
in

 g
ro

u
p

s
?

 (
%

 w
h

o
 d

ri
n

k
 a

lo
n

e
)

S
e

ft
o

n

% Respondents who drink alone

N
W

 T
o

ta
l 
S

a
m

p
le

 2
0
0

9

D
ri
n

k
 a

lo
n
e

: 
5

%

B
a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
7
 

1
2
3
; 
2
0
0
9
 

5
6
5

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d
, 
D

o
 n

o
t 
d
ri
n
k
 a

lc
o
h
o
l

N
o
t 
a
s
k
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
5

5
%

 o
f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 S
e

ft
o

n
 c

la
im

 t
o

 d
ri
n

k
 w

h
e

n
 a

lo
n

e
, 
ri
s
in

g
 t
o

 9
%

 a
m

o
n

g
s
t 
y
o

u
n

g
 m

a
le

s
.

Agenda Item 6

Page 98



W
h

e
re

 d
o

 y
o

u
 m

o
s

tl
y
 d

ri
n

k
?

 (
p

ro
m

p
te

d
)

S
e

ft
o

n

% Respondents

B
a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
5
 

1
3
1
; 
2
0
0
7
 

3
8
1
; 
2
0
0
9
 

5
9
7

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d
. 
D

o
 n

o
t 
d
ri
n
k
 a

lc
o
h
o
l.

N
W

 T
o

ta
l 
S

a
m

p
le

 2
0

0
9

S
p
e
c
ia

l 
o
c
c
a
s
io

n
s
 (

fr
ie

n
d
s
):

 5
1
%

S
p
e
c
ia

l 
o
c
c
a
s
io

n
s
 (

fa
m

ily
):

 4
8
%

A
t 
h
o
m

e
 (

p
a
re

n
ts

 i
n
):

 4
9
%

O
u
ts

id
e
: 
3
0
%

P
u
b
s
 /
 c

lu
b
s
: 
2
8
%

A
t 
h
o
m

e
 (

p
a
re

n
ts

 o
u
t)

: 
2
8
%

T
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 
1

4
-1

7
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 i
n

 S
e

ft
o

n
 d

ri
n

k
in

g
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
o

u
ts

id
e

 h
a

s
 f
a

lle
n

 f
ro

m
 3

3
%

 i
n

 2
0

0
7

 t
o

 2
5

%
; 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

is
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

h
ig

h
e

r 
th

a
n

 i
n

 2
0

0
5

 (
1

6
%

).
 T

h
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 c
la

im
in

g
 t
o

 d
ri
n

k
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
in

 p
u

b
s
 o

r 
c
lu

b
s
 i
n

 

S
e

ft
o

n
 h

a
s
 r

is
e

n
 s

lig
h

tl
y
, 
fr

o
m

 3
3

%
 i
n

 2
0

0
7

 t
o

 3
6

%
 i
n

 2
0

0
9

, 
b

u
t 
th

is
 i
s
 n

o
t 
a

s
 h

ig
h

 a
s
 i
n

 2
0

0
5

 (
4

1
%

).

Agenda Item 6

Page 99



B
a
s
e
: 
1
3
3
9
0
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d
. 
D

o
 n

o
t 
d
ri
n
k

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 d
ri

n
k

in
g

 o
u

ts
id

e
 /
 i
n

 p
u

b
s

 o
r 

c
lu

b
s

  
-
A

n
a

ly
s

is
 b

y
 L

o
c

a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty

2
0
0
9

% RespondentsT
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
re

s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 S

e
ft

o
n
 w

h
o
 s

ta
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 d

ri
n
k
 i
n
 p

u
b
s
 o

r 
c
lu

b
s
 i
s
 8

%
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 

fo
r 

th
e

 N
o

rt
h

 W
e

s
t 
a

s
 a

 w
h

o
le

, 
w

h
e

re
a

s
 d

ri
n

k
in

g
 o

u
td

o
o

rs
 i
s
 5

%
 b

e
lo

w
 N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
.

Agenda Item 6

Page 100



% Respondents

N
W

 T
o

ta
l 

S
a

m
p

le
 2

0
0

9

1
 t
o

 2
: 
1

3
%

 

3
 t
o

 5
: 
1

7
%

6
 t
o

 1
0
: 
3

3
%

1
1
 t
o

 2
0
: 
2

3
%

M
o

re
 t
h

a
n

 2
0
: 
1

4
%

If
 y

o
u

 d
ri

n
k
 o

u
ts

id
e
, 
a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 h

o
w

 m
a
n

y
 o

th
e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 d
o

 y
o

u
 u

s
u

a
ll

y
dr

in
k

 
wi

th
?

S
e

ft
o

n

B
a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
7
 

1
2
3
; 
2
0
0
9
 

1
5
2

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
D

o
 n

o
t 
d
ri
n
k
 a

lc
o
h
o
l 
o
u
ts

id
e
 ,
 N

o
t 

s
ta

te
d
.

N
o
t 
a
s
k
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
5

W
h
e
re

 d
ri
n
k
in

g
 o

u
td

o
o
rs

, 
th

e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 f
o
r 

S
e
ft

o
n
 s

h
o
w

 a
 f
a
ll 

in
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 d

ri
n
k
in

g
 i
n
 g

ro
u
p
s
 o

f 
m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 1

0
 

(2
4

%
, 
c
f.

 3
3

%
 i
n

 2
0

0
7

).
 T

h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 
re

g
io

n
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

(3
7

%
).

Agenda Item 6

Page 101



% Respondents

B
a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
7
 

2
7
2
; 
2
0
0
9
 

4
0
7

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
D

o
 n

o
t 
d
ri
n
k
 a

lc
o
h
o
l,
 N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d
.

N
o
t 
a
s
k
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
5
.

N
W

 T
o

ta
l 
S

a
m

p
le

 2
0
0

9

5
 o

r 
le

s
s
: 
2

8
%

6
 t
o

 1
0
: 
2

1
%

1
1
 t
o

 1
5
: 
1

5
%

1
6
 t
o

 2
0
: 
1

1
%

2
1
 t
o

 2
5
: 
6

%

2
6
 t
o

 3
0
: 
4

%

M
o

re
 t
h

a
n

 3
0
: 
1

5
%

In
 a

 t
y
p

ic
a

l 
w

e
e

k
, 
h

o
w

 m
a

n
y
 u

n
it

s
 o

f 
a

lc
o

h
o

l 
d

o
 y

o
u

 d
ri

n
k

?

S
e

ft
o

n

A
m

o
n

g
s
t 
th

o
s
e

 1
4

-1
7

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 t
h

a
t 
d

ri
n

k
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
in

 S
e

ft
o

n
, 
a

 s
lig

h
tl
y
 h

ig
h

e
r 

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 (
1

0
%

) 
th

a
n

 i
n

 2
0

0
7

 

(7
%

) 
c
la

im
 t
o

 c
o

n
s
u

m
e

 m
o

re
 t
h

a
n

 3
0

 u
n

it
s
 o

f 
a

lc
o

h
o

l 
p

e
r 

w
e

e
k
, 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

th
i

s 
fi
gu

r
e 

is
 
lo
w

e
r

 t
ha

n
 

fo
r

 t
he

 
No

r
th

 

W
e

s
t 
o

v
e

ra
ll 

(1
5

%
).

Agenda Item 6

Page 102



1
7

1
9

2
1

1
5

1
9

1
5

5

1
0

7

9
9

8

2

8

1
5

7

1
0

7

3

5

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

2
0

0
7

2
0

0
9

S
m

ir
n

o
ff

 /
 I

c
e

W
K

D

F
o

s
te

rs

S
tr

o
n

g
b

o
w

C
a

rl
in

g

C
a

rl
s

b
e

rg

Ja
c

k
 D

a
n

ie
ls

S
te

ll
a

B
u

d
w

e
is

e
r

M
a

li
b

u

% Respondents

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

 b
ra

n
d

s

S
e

ft
o

n

N
W

 T
o

ta
l 
S

a
m

p
le

 2
0
0

9

T
o

p
 1

0

S
m

ir
n

o
ff

 /
 I
c
e

: 
2

0
%

W
K

D
: 
1

9
%

F
o
s
te

rs
: 
1

2
%

S
tr

o
n
g

b
o
w

: 
1

2
%

C
a

rl
in

g
:9

%

S
te

lla
:9

%

C
a

rl
s
b
e

rg
:7

%

M
a

g
n

e
rs

: 
6

%

B
u

d
w

e
is

e
r:

 4
%

J
a
c
k
 D

a
n
ie

ls
: 

4
%

B
a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
7
 

1
7
2
; 
2
0
0
9
 

2
8
3

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
D

o
 n

o
t 
d
ri
n
k
 a

lc
o
h
o
l,
 N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d

N
o
t 
a
s
k
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
5

M
u
lt
ip

le
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 a

llo
w

e
d

T
h
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ri
ty

 o
f 
S

m
ir
n
o
ff

, 
S

tr
o
n
g
b
o
w

 a
n
d
 J

a
c
k
 D

a
n
ie

ls
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

in
c
e
 2

0
0
7
, 
w

h
ils

t 
W

K
D

, 
F

o
s
te

rs
 a

n
d
 

S
te

lla
 h

a
v
e

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

d
 a

 n
o

ta
b

le
 f
a

ll 
in

 p
o

p
u

la
ri
ty

 a
m

o
n

g
s
t 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 S
e

ft
o

n
.

Agenda Item 6

Page 103



P
U

R
C

H
A

S
IN

G
 A

L
C

O
H

O
L

Agenda Item 6

Page 104



W
h

e
re

 d
o

 y
o

u
 g

e
t 

y
o

u
r 

a
lc

o
h

o
l 
fr

o
m

?
 -

S
e

ft
o

n

B
a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
7
 

3
7
0
; 
2
0
0
9
 

5
7
5

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
D

o
 n

o
t 
d
ri
n
k
 a

lc
o
h
o
l,
 N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d

M
u
lt
ip

le
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 a

llo
w

e
d

% Respondents

In
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 
re

s
u

lt
s
, 
m

o
s
t 
1

4
-1

7
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 i
n

 S
e

ft
o

n
 c

la
im

 t
o

 g
e

t 
a

lc
o

h
o

l 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
ir
 f
ri
e

n
d

s
 a

n
d

 

fa
m

ily
. 
T

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 c

la
im

in
g

 t
o

 b
u

y
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
th

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
 h

a
s
 m

a
rg

in
a

lly
in
c

r
ea

s
e
d

.

N
W

 T
o

ta
l 
S

a
m

p
le

 2
0
0

9

F
ri
e
n

d
s
 /
 f
a

m
ily

 o
v
e

r 
1

8
: 
5

4
%

P
a

re
n

ts
  
/ 
g

u
a
rd

ia
n
s
: 
4

9
%

B
u

y
 f

ro
m

 o
ff

 li
c
e

n
c
e

s
: 
1

4
%

F
ri
e
n

d
s
 /
 f
a

m
ily

 u
n
d

e
r 

1
8
:1

8
%

B
u

y
 f

ro
m

 p
u
b

s
 /
 n

ig
h

tc
lu

b
s
: 
1

6
%

A
d

u
lt
s
 o

u
ts

id
e
 s

h
o
p

s
 b

u
y
: 
1

3
%

T
a

k
e

 f
ro

m
 p

a
re

n
ts

: 
9

%

B
u
y
 f

ro
m

 s
u
p
e
rm

a
rk

e
ts

: 
5
%

Agenda Item 6

Page 105



P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 c
la

im
in

g
 t

o
 b

u
y
 t

h
e

m
s

e
lv

e
s

S
e

ft
o

n

41

28

34

4
0

2
8

2
6

05

1015202530354045

20
05

20
07

20
09

Se
ft

o
n

N
W

 T
o

ta
l

% Respondents

B
a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
5
 

1
3
0
; 
2
0
0
7
 

3
7
0
; 
2
0
0
9
 

5
7
5

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
D

o
 n

o
t 
d
ri
n
k
 a

lc
o
h
o
l,
 N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d

T
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
1

4
-1

7
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 i
n

 S
e

ft
o

n
 c

la
im

in
g

 t
o

 b
u

y
 t
h

e
ir
 o

w
n

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 
h

a
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 b

y
 6

%
 s

in
c
e

 t
h

e
 

2
0

0
7

 s
u

rv
e

y
, 
b

u
t 
is

 s
ti
ll 

lo
w

e
r 

th
a

n
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 in
 2

0
0

5
. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 106



P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 b
u

y
in

g
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
th

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
  
-

A
n

a
ly

s
is

 b
y
 L

o
c

a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty

% Respondents

B
a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
7
 

9
4
1
0
; 
2
0
0
9
 

1
0
,8

0
2

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
D

o
 n

o
t 
d
ri
n
k
 a

lc
o
h
o
l,
 N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d

In
 2

0
0

7
 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
1

4
-1

7
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
in

g
 t
h

e
ir
 o

w
n

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 
in

 S
e

ft
o

n
 w

a
s
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
re

g
i

on
a

l
 

a
v
e

ra
g

e
 a

t 
2

8
%

. 
In

 2
0

0
9

 t
h

is
 f
ig

u
re

 h
a

s
 r

is
e

n
 t
o

 3
4

%
, 
8

%
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 t
h

e
re

g
i

on
a

l
 a
v

e
r

ag
e

.
  
Ac

r
os

s
 
th
e

 
No

r
th

 

W
e

s
t,
 S

e
ft

o
n

 h
a

s
 t
h

e
 t
h

ir
d

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 
in

c
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 
1

4
-1

7
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
in

g
 t
h

e
ir
 o

w
n

 a
lc

o
h

o
l.

Agenda Item 6

Page 107



P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 b
u

y
in

g
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
th

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
  
-

A
n

a
ly

s
is

 b
y
 a

g
e

 a
n

d
 g

e
n

d
e

r

S
e

ft
o

n

% Respondents

O
v
e
ra

ll 
B

a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
5
 

1
3
0
; 
 2

0
0
7
 

4
1
7
; 
2
0
0
9
 

5
7
5

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
D

o
 n

o
t 
d
ri
n
k
 a

lc
o
h
o
l.
 N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d
. 
R

e
s
u
lt
s
 n

o
t 
g
iv

e
n
 w

h
e
re

 b
a
s
e
 s

iz
e
 i
s
 <

1
0

T
h

e
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 s

u
g

g
e

s
t 
th

a
t 
y
o

u
n

g
 f
e

m
a

le
s
 a

re
 m

o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

 t
h

e
ir
 o

w
n

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 
th

a
n

 y
o

u
n

g
 m

a
le

s
 i
n

 

S
e

ft
o

n
. 
T

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
1

5
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 c

la
im

in
g

 t
o

 b
u

y
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 a
lc

o
h

o
lh
a

s
 
in
c

r
ea

s
e
d

 
by

 
6%

 
si

nc
e
 

20
0

7
,

 

s
lig

h
tl
y
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 t
h

e
 r

is
e

 a
m

o
n

g
s
t 
1

6
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 (

3
%

).

Agenda Item 6

Page 108



B
a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
7
 

1
0
3
; 
2
0
0
9
 

1
9
0

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
H

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
b
o
u
g
h
t 
a
lc

o
h
o
l 
th

e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
. 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d
. 
R

e
s
u
lt
s
 n

o
t 
g
iv

e
n
 w

h
e
re

 b
a
s
e
 s

iz
e
 i
s
 <

1
0

N
o
t 
a
s
k
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
5

N
W

 T
o

ta
l 

S
a

m
p

le
 2

0
0

9

Y
e

s
: 
5

5
%

H
a
v
e
 y

o
u

 e
v
e
r 

b
e
e
n

 a
s
k
e
d

 f
o

r 
ID

 w
h

e
n

 b
u

y
in

g
 a

lc
o

h
o

l?
 (

%
 a

n
s
w

e
ri

n
g

 y
e
s
)

S
e

ft
o

n

O
f 
th

e
 1

4
-1

7
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 s

u
rv

e
y
e
d
 i
n
 S

e
ft

o
n
, 
o
v
e
r 

h
a
lf
 (

5
4
%

) 
s
ta

te
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

s
k
e
d
 f
o
r 

ID
 w

h
e
n
 b

u
y
in

g
 

a
lc

o
h

o
l t

h
e

m
s
e

lv
e

s
. 
T

h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 s

lig
h

tl
y
 h

ig
h

e
r 

a
m

o
n

g
s
t 
y
o

u
n

g
 m

a
le

s
 (

5
9

%
),

 b
u

t 
n

o
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
b

y
 a

g
e

.

Agenda Item 6

Page 109



B
a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
7
 

3
7
5
; 
2
0
0
9
 

4
9
6

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d
.

N
o
t 
a
s
k
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
5

D
o

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 f
a

k
e

 I
D

?

S
e

ft
o

n

W
h

e
re

 d
id

 y
o

u
 g

e
t 

y
o

u
r 

fa
k

e
 I
D

 f
ro

m
?

S
e

ft
o

n

% Respondents

% Respondents

B
a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
7
 

2
1
; 
2
0
0
9
 

3
2

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
D

o
 n

o
t 
h
a
v
e
 f
a
k
e
 I
D

, 
O

th
e
r,

 N
o
t 
s
ta

te
d

N
o
t 
a
s
k
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
5

N
W

 T
o

ta
l 

S
a
m

p
le

 2
0
0
9

Y
e
s
: 
7
%

N
o
: 
9
3
%

N
W

 T
o

ta
l 
S

a
m

p
le

 2
0
0
9

In
te

rn
e
t:
 3

2
%

M
a
d
e
 m

y
s
e
lf
: 

1
7
%

F
ri
e
n
d
/f

a
m

ily
 O

1
8
: 
1
1
%

O
ld

e
r 

s
ib

lin
g
: 

2
5
%

F
ri
e
n
d
/f

a
m

ily
 U

1
8
:1

1
%

6
%

 o
f 
1

4
-1

7
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 i
n

 S
e

ft
o

n
 c

la
im

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 f
a

k
e

 I
D

, 
a

lm
o

s
t 
a

 t
h

ir
d

 o
f 
w

h
o

m
 s

ta
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 b

o
u

g
h

t 
th

is
 o

n
 

th
e

 i
n

te
rn

e
t,

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 s

im
ila

r 
to

 t
h

e
 N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
. 
A

m
o

n
g

s
t 
th

o
s
e

 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 f
a

k
e

 I
D

, 
h

ig
h

e
r 

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

s
 Agenda Item 6

Page 110



G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 A

T
T

IT
U

D
E

S
 A

N
D

 B
E

H
A

V
IO

U
R

Agenda Item 6

Page 111



A
tt

it
u

d
e

s
 a

n
d

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

re
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
-

S
e

ft
o

n

I 
m

a
k
e

 s
u

re
 I
 a

m
 n

o
t 
o

n
 m

y
 o

w
n

 

w
h

e
n

 o
u

t 
d

ri
n

k
in

g
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
(5

7
0

)

I 
a

lw
a

y
s
 f

e
e

l 
in

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
w

h
e

n
 I

 

d
ri

n
k
 (

5
7

0
)

I 
d

ri
n

k
 a

lc
o

h
o

l t
o

 g
e

t 
d

ru
n

k
* 

(5
7

7
)

I 
te

n
d

 t
o

 f
o

rg
e

t 
th

in
g

s
 w

h
e

n
 I

 h
a

v
e

 

b
e

e
n

 d
ri

n
k
in

g
 (

5
6

6
)

I 
w

o
rr

y
 t

h
a

t 
m

y
 d

ri
n

k
 m

a
y
 g

e
t 

s
p

ik
e

d
 (

5
7

0
)

I 
d

ri
n

k
 a

lc
o

h
o

l b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 

n
o

th
in

g
 e

ls
e

 t
o

 d
o

 (
5

7
5

)

I 
d

ri
n

k
 a

lc
o

h
o

l b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 m
y
 f

ri
e

n
d
s
 

d
o

 (
5

7
5

)

%
 D

is
a

g
re

e
 S

tr
o

n
g

ly
 /
 D

is
a

g
re

e
%

 A
g

re
e
 S

tr
o

n
g

ly
 /
 A

g
re

e
2
0
0
9

D
if
fe

re
n
c
e
s

6
4

%
 M

a
le

5
0

%
 F

e
m

a
le

N
W

 T
o
ta

l 

2
0
0
9

8
7
%

5
5
%

5
5
%

4
3
%

2
5
%

3
0
%

2
5
%

B
a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
7
 

3
6
9
 (

A
v
g
);

  
2
0
0
9
 -

s
e
e
 b

ra
c
k
e
ts

 a
b
o
v
e

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d
. 
D

o
 n

o
t 
d
ri
n
k
. 
N

o
t 

a
s
k
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
5
. 
*N

o
t 
a
s
k
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
7

4
5

%
 F

e
m

a
le

2
1

%
 M

a
le

9
3

%
 F

e
m

a
le

8
4

%
 M

a
le

4
6

%
 F

e
m

a
le

3
5

%
 M

a
le

G
e
n
e
ra

l 
a
tt

it
u
d
e
s
 a

n
d
 b

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

re
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 a

lc
o
h
o
l 
h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 f
o
r 

S
e
ft

o
n
 s

in
c
e
 2

0
0
7
. 
T

h
e
 

o
n

ly
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
d

if
fe

re
n

c
e
 is

 t
h

a
t 
8

%
 m

o
re

 1
4

-1
7

 y
e

a
rs

 o
ld

s
 a

g
re

e
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 d

ri
n

k
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 t
h

e
ir
 f
ri
e

n
d

s
 

d
o

. 
S

o
m

e
 v

a
ri
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 a
tt

it
u

d
e

s
 a

n
d

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

w
a

s
 a

p
p

a
re

n
t,

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
by

 
ge

n
d

e
r

. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 112



H
a
v
e

 y
o

u
 e

v
e

r 
h

a
d

 s
e

x
?

* 
(5

1
1

)

H
a
v
e

 y
o

u
 e

v
e

r 
b

e
e

n
 v

io
le

n
t 
o

r 

h
a

d
 a

 f
ig

h
t 
w

h
ils

t 
d

ru
n

k
?

 (
5

4
5

)

H
a
v
e

 y
o

u
 e

v
e

r 
re

g
re

tt
e

d
 h

a
v
in

g
 

s
e

x
 a

ft
e

r 
d

ri
n

k
in

g
?

 (
5

1
1

)

H
a
v
e

 y
o

u
 e

v
e

r 
b

e
e

n
 i
n

 a
 c

a
r 

w
it
h

 a
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
rs

o
n

 d
ri

v
in

g
 w

h
o

 h
a

d
 

b
e

e
n

 d
ri

n
k
in

g
?

 (
5

7
1

)

B
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

re
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 a

lc
o

h
o

l

B
a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
7
 

3
6
0
 (

A
v
g
);

 2
0
0
9
 

S
e
e
 b

ra
c
k
e
ts

 a
b
o
v
e

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d
. 
N

o
t 
a
s
k
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
5
 *

N
o
t 

a
s
k
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
7

3
1

%
 1

6
y
rs

 o
ld

2
0

%
 1

5
y
rs

 o
ld

N
W

 T
o
ta

l 

2
0
0
9
 (

%
 y

e
s
)

3
6
%

2
6
%

1
6
%

9
%

2
0
0
9

D
if
fe

re
n
c
e
s

2
6

%
 M

a
le

 

1
8

%
 F

e
m

a
le

F
o

r 
S

e
ft

o
n

, 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
s
 o

f 
1

4
-1

7
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 c

la
im

in
g

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 h
a

d
 s

e
x
, 
re

g
re

tt
e

d
 h

a
v
in

g
 s

e
x
 a

ft
e

r 
d

ri
n

k
in

g
, 

a
n
d
 b

e
 v

io
le

n
t 
o
r 

h
a
v
e
 a

 f
ig

h
t 
w

h
ils

t 
d
ru

n
k
 a

re
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 N

o
rt

h
We

s
t
 o
v
e
r
al

l.

Agenda Item 6

Page 113



U
N

D
E

R
S

T
A

N
D

IN
G

 O
F

 L
E

G
IS

L
A

T
IO

N

Agenda Item 6

Page 114



It
 i
s
 a

 c
ri

m
in

a
l o

ff
e

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
U

1
8

s
 t
o

 

d
ri

n
k
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
a

t 
h

o
m

e
 (

6
2

3
)

It
 i
s
 a

 c
ri

m
in

a
l o

ff
e

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
O

1
8

s
 t
o

 

b
u

y
 a

lc
o

h
o

l f
o

r 
U

1
8

s
 (

6
1

9
)

It
 i
s
 a

 c
ri

m
in

a
l o

ff
e

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
U

1
8

s
 t
o

 

b
u

y
 a

lc
o

h
o

l  
(6

2
8

) 

It
 i
s
 a

 c
ri

m
in

a
l o

ff
e

n
c
e

 t
o

 s
e

ll 

a
lc

o
h

o
l t

o
 U

1
8

s
  
(6

1
6

)

U
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 a
lc

o
h

o
l

S
e

ft
o

n

B
a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
7
 

3
9
7
 (

A
v
g
);

 2
0
0
9
 

s
e
e
 b

ra
c
k
e
ts

 a
b
o
v
e

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d
. 

N
W

 T
o
ta

l 

2
0
0
9

1
0
%

8
4
%

9
2
%

9
4
%

In
 S

e
ft

o
n

, 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
s
 t
o

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 
w

a
s
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

s
u

rv
e

y.
 A

 s
lig

h
tl
y
 h

ig
h

e
r 

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
 c

o
rr

e
c
tl
y
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
it
 i
s
 n

o
ta
 

cr
im
i

na
l

 o
f

fe
n

c
e
 

fo
r

 u
n

d
e

r
 1

8
s

 
to
 

dr
in
k

 

a
lc

o
h

o
l a

t 
h

o
m

e
, 
a

n
d

 s
lig

h
tl
y
 l
o

w
e

r 
p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 t
h

a
t 
it
 i
s
 a

 c
ri
m

in
a

l 
o

ff
e

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
U

1
8

s
 t
o

 b
u

y
 a

lc
o

h
o

l.

Agenda Item 6

Page 115



% Respondents

U
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
:

It
 i
s

 a
 c

ri
m

in
a

l 
o

ff
e

n
c

e
 f

o
r 

u
n

d
e

r 
1

8
s

 t
o

 b
u

y
 a

lc
o

h
o

l?

(A
n

a
ly

s
is

 b
y
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
in

g
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r)

 S
e

ft
o

n
 2

0
0

9

8
7

7
9

9
0

8
6

1
3

2
1

1
0

1
4

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0
0

S
e

ft
o

n
(6

2
8

)
P

u
rc

h
a

s
e

 A
lc

o
h
o

l 
(1

7
4

)
D

o
n
't
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e

 a
lc

o
h
o

l 
(3

8
0

)
N

e
v
e

r 
d

ri
n
k
 a

lc
o

h
o

l 
(7

4
)

F
a
ls

e

T
ru

e

B
a
s
e
: 
In

 b
ra

c
k
e
ts

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d

T
h

in
k
in

g
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 a
b

o
u

t 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g
 o

f 
le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
 a

ro
u

n
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
1

8
s
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
in

g
 a

lc
o

h
o

l,
 t
h

o
s
e

 1
4

-1
7

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 s

u
rv

e
y
e

d
 i
n

 S
e

ft
o

n
 w

h
o

 c
la

im
 t
o

 b
u

y
 t

h
e

ir
 o

w
n

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 
w

e
re

 l
e

s
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 a
w

a
re

 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 i
s
 a

n
 o

ff
e

n
c
e

 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t
o

 o
th

e
rs

.

Agenda Item 6

Page 116



S
M

O
K

IN
G

 B
E

H
A

V
IO

U
R

Agenda Item 6

Page 117



W
h

ic
h

 o
f 

th
e

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 b

e
s

t 
d

e
s

c
ri

b
e

s
 y

o
u

r 
s

m
o

k
in

g
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r?

 (
P

ro
m

p
te

d
)

S
e

ft
o

n

N
W

 T
o

ta
l 

S
a

m
p

le
 2

0
0

9

N
e

v
e

r 
tr

ie
d
: 
4

6
%

T
ri
e

d
 b

u
t 
d

id
 n

o
t 
lik

e
: 
2

4
%

S
m

o
k
e

d
 b

u
t 
g

iv
e

n
 u

p
: 
8

%

S
m

o
k
e

 w
h

e
n

 d
ri
n
k
in

g
 a

lc
o

h
o

l:
8

%

S
m

o
k
e

 le
s
s
 t

h
a
n

 5
 a

 d
a
y
:4

%

S
m

o
k
e

 6
-1

0
 a

 d
a
y
:6

%

S
m

o
k
e

 >
1

0
 a

 d
a
y
:4

%

%
 R

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

N
O

N
-S

M
O

K
E

R
S

2
0
0
9
: 

7
8
%

2
0
0
7
: 

7
9
%

S
M

O
K

E
R

S

2
0
0
9
: 

2
2
%

2
0
0
7
: 

2
1
%

B
a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
7
 

4
0
8
; 
2
0
0
9
 

6
4
6

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d

N
o
t 
a
s
k
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
5

A
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 a

 f
if
th

 (
2

2
%

) 
o

f 
th

e
 1

4
-1

7
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
e

d
 i
n

 S
e

ft
o

n
 in

d
ic

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 s

m
o

k
e

, 
s
im

ila
r 

to
 t
h

e
 

fi
g

u
re

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 in

 2
0

0
7

.

Agenda Item 6

Page 118



B
a
s
e
: 
1
3
3
9
0
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d

D
o

 y
o

u
 s

m
o

k
e

?
 (

A
n

a
ly

s
is

 b
y
 L

o
c

a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
)

% RespondentsT
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
1

4
-1

7
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 w

h
o

 s
m

o
k
e

 i
n

 S
e

ft
o

n
 i
s
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n
t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
g

io
n

a
l 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
.

Agenda Item 6

Page 119



D
o

 y
o

u
 s

m
o

k
e

?
 (

A
n

a
ly

s
is

 b
y
 a

g
e

 a
n

d
 g

e
n

d
e

r)

S
e

ft
o

n
 2

0
0

9

% Respondents

2
2

5
0

2
2

2
0

3
3

2
1

2
2

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

S
e

ft
o

n
(6

4
6

)
1

4
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

(4
)*

1
5
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

 
(2

5
8

)
1

6
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

 
(3

3
8

)
1

7
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

 
(6

)*
M

a
le

(3
0
8

)
F

e
m

a
le

(2
9
8

)

%
 s

m
o

k
e

rs
B

a
s
e
: 
In

 b
ra

c
k
e
ts

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d
 *

 N
o
te

: 
s
m

a
ll 

b
a
s
e
 s

iz
e

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

 r
e

v
e

a
ls

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 i
s
 l
it
tl
e

 v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 b

y
 g

e
n

d
e

r 
a

n
d

 a
g

e
 i
n

 S
e

ft
o

n
 (

N
.B

. 
th

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 

fo
r 

1
4

 a
n

d
 1

7
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 r

e
s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 a

re
 s

k
e

w
e

d
 o

w
in

g
 t
o

 s
m

a
ll 

s
a

m
p

le
 s

iz
e

s
).

Agenda Item 6

Page 120



H
o

w
 o

ld
 w

e
re

 y
o

u
 w

h
e

n
 y

o
u

 s
ta

rt
e

d
 s

m
o

k
in

g
?

S
e

ft
o

n

% Respondents

N
W

 T
o

ta
l 

S
a

m
p

le
 2

0
0

9

1
0
 o

r 
le

s
s
: 
1

2
%

1
1
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

: 
1

1
%

1
2
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

: 
1

4
%

1
3
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

 :
 2

3
%

1
4
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

: 
2

3
%

1
5
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

: 
1

5
%

1
6
 t
o

 1
7
 y

e
a
rs

 o
ld

: 
2

%

B
a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
7
 

1
0
4
; 
2
0
0
9
 

1
5
7

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d
. 
D

o
 n

o
t 
s
m

o
k
e

N
o
t 
a
s
k
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
5

A
m

o
n

g
s
t 
th

o
s
e

 1
4

-1
7

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

s
 i
n

 S
e

ft
o

n
 w

h
o

 d
o

 s
m

o
k
e

, 
th

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 c
la

im
e

d
 t
o

 s
ta

rt
 s

m
o

k
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 

a
g

e
s
 o

f 
1

3
 a

n
d

 1
5

 (
6

7
%

).

Agenda Item 6

Page 121



W
h

e
re

 d
o

 /
 d

id
 y

o
u

 g
e

t 
y
o

u
r 

c
ig

a
re

tt
e

s
 f

ro
m

?

S
e

ft
o

n

% Respondents

B
a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
7
 

1
0
8
; 
2
0
0
9
 

1
6
7

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d
. 
D

o
 n

o
t 
s
m

o
k
e

N
o
t 
a
s
k
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
5
. 
M

u
lt
ip

le
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 a

llo
w

e
d

T
h

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
y
o

u
n

g
 s

m
o

k
e

rs
 i
n

 S
e

ft
o

n
 c

la
im

 t
o

 b
u

y
 t

h
e

ir
 c

ig
a

re
tt

e
s
 f
ro

m
 o

ff
 l
ic

e
n

s
e

s
 o

r 
n

e
w

s
a

g
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
e

 

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e
s
 c

la
im

in
g

 t
o

 b
u

y
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
s
e

 o
u

tl
e

ts
 a

re
 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n

 i
n

 2
0

0
7

, 
b

u
t 
re

m
a

in
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 N

o
rt

h
 

W
e

s
t 
a

s
 a

 w
h

o
le

.

N
W

 T
o

ta
l 
S

a
m

p
le

 2
0
0
9

B
u
y 

fr
o
m

 o
ff

 l
ic

e
n
c
e
s
: 
3
8
%

B
u
y 

fr
o
m

 n
e
w

s
a
g
e
n
ts

: 
3
2
%

B
ro

th
e
rs

 /
s
is

te
rs

 /
 f

ri
e
n
d
s
 (

>
1
6
/1

8
):

 2
9
%

B
ro

th
e
rs

 /
 s

is
te

rs
 /
 f

ri
e
n
d
s
 (

<
1
6
/1

8
):

 2
7
%

B
u
y 

fr
o
m

 s
tr

e
e
t 
s
e
lle

rs
 /

 n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

 /
 v

a
n
s
:1

9
%

P
a
re

n
ts

 /
 g

u
a
rd

ia
n
s
; 
1
3
%

B
u
y 

fr
o
m

 s
u
p
e
rm

a
rk

e
ts

: 
1
1
%

B
u
y 

fr
o
m

 v
e
n
d
in

g
 m

a
c
h
in

e
s
: 
1
0
%

Agenda Item 6

Page 122



W
h

e
re

 d
o

 /
 d

id
 y

o
u

 g
e

t 
y
o

u
r 

c
ig

a
re

tt
e

s
 f

ro
m

?
 (

B
y
 A

g
e

)

S
e

ft
o

n
 2

0
0

9

B
a
s
e
: 
In

 b
ra

c
k
e
ts

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d
. 
D

o
 n

o
t 
s
m

o
k
e
.

N
o
t 
a
s
k
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
5

W
it
h

in
 S

e
ft

o
n

, 
o

ld
e

r 
re

s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 (
a

g
e

d
 1

6
-1

7
) 

a
re

 m
o

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h

a
n

 y
o

u
n

g
e

r 
re

s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

 (
a

g
e

d
 1

4
-1

5
) 

to
 

p
u

rc
h

a
s
e
 t
h

e
ir
 c

ig
a

re
tt

e
s
 f
ro

m
 o

ff
 l
ic

e
n

c
e

s
, 
n

e
w

s
a

g
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

e
rm

a
rk

e
ts

. 
T

h
e

 l
a

tt
e

r 
a

re
 m

o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h

a
n

 t
h

e
ir
 

o
ld

e
r 

c
o

u
n

te
rp

a
rt

s
 t
o

 g
e

t 
c
ig

a
re

tt
e

s
 f
ro

m
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 f
ri
e

n
d

s
.

Agenda Item 6

Page 123



% Respondents

S
e

ft
o

n

N
W

 T
o

ta
l 

S
a

m
p

le
 2

0
0

9

S
in

g
le

 C
ig

a
re

tt
e

s
:6

8
%

C
ig

a
re

tt
e

s
 w

it
h

 h
e

a
lt
h

 w
a

rn
in

g
s
 i
n

d
if
fe

re
n
t 
la

n
g

u
a
g

e
s
: 
6

0
%

C
ig

a
re

tt
e

s
 f
ro

m
 o

th
e

r 
s
e

lle
rs

: 
4

1
%

F
a
k
e

 c
ig

a
re

tt
e

s
: 
3

2
%

B
a
s
e
: 
2
0
0
7
 

8
4
; 
2
0
0
9
 

8
9

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d
. 
D

o
 n

o
t 
s
m

o
k
e
.

N
o
t 
a
s
k
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
5

C
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t
o

 2
0

0
7

, 
th

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 m
a

rk
e

d
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 in
 t
h

e
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 S
e

ft
o

n
 c

la
im

in
g

 t
o

 

p
u

rc
h

a
s
e
 f
a

k
e

 c
ig

a
re

tt
e

s
 (

+
1

9
%

),
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 n

o
ta

b
le

 in
c
re

a
s
e

s
 f
o

r 
o

th
e

r 
ty

p
e

s
 o

f 
c
ig

a
re

tt
e

 p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

.

Agenda Item 6

Page 124



% Respondents

?
 

(A
n

a
ly

s
is

 b
y
 L

o
c

a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
) 

2
0

0
9

S
e

ft
o

n
 is

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 a

s
 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
h

e
re

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 t
h

e
 N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 
a

re
 m

o
s
t 
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 

p
u

rc
h

a
s
e
d

 c
ig

a
re

tt
e

s
 w

it
h

 h
e

a
lt
h

 w
a

rn
in

g
s
 i
n

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
la

n
g

u
a

g
e

s
, 
c
lo

s
e

ly
 f
o

llo
w

e
d

 b
y
 C

u
m

b
ri
a

, 
H

a
lt
o

n
, 
W

ig
a

n
, 

L
iv

e
rp

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 B
o

lt
o

n
.

Agenda Item 6

Page 125



% Respondents

(A
n

a
ly

s
is

 b
y
 L

o
c

a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
) 

2
0

0
9

T
h

e
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
in

g
 o

f 
fa

k
e

 c
ig

a
re

tt
e
s
 b

y
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 i
s
 m

o
s
t 
e

v
id

e
n

t 
in

 H
a

lt
o

n
, 
W

ig
a

n
, 
C

u
m

b
ri
a

 a
n

d
 S

t 
H

e
le

n
s
, 

a
n

d
 l
e

s
s
 p

ro
m

in
e

n
t 
in

 t
h

e
 W

ir
ra

l 
a

n
d

 T
ra

ff
o

rd
. 
T

h
e

 f
ig

u
re

 f
o

r 
S

e
ft

o
n

 is
 1

0
 p

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 p

o
in

ts
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
h

e
 N

o
rt

h
 

W
e

s
t 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
.

Agenda Item 6

Page 126



B
a
s
e
: 
1
3
3
9
0
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

B
a
la

n
c
e
: 
N

o
t 
s
ta

te
d
. 
D

o
 n

o
t 
s
m

o
k
e
.

% Respondents

?
 (

A
n

a
ly

s
is

 b
y
 L

o
c

a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
) 

2
0
0
9

T
h

e
 l
a

te
s
t 
s
u

rv
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 h

ig
h

lig
h

t 
th

a
t 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
re

 m
o

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 b
o

u
g

h
t 
c
ig

a
re

tt
e
s
 f
ro

m
 o

th
e

r 

s
e

lle
rs

 i
n

 H
a

lt
o

n
 a

n
d

 K
n

o
w

s
le

y
, 

a
n

d
 l
e

s
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 d
o

n
e

 s
o

 i
n

 L
iv

e
rp

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 B
u

ry
. 
T

h
e

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 f
o

r 

S
e

ft
o

n
 is

 a
b

o
v
e

 t
h

e
 f
ig

u
re

 f
o

r 
th

e
 N

o
rt

h
 W

e
s
t 
a

s
 a

 w
h

o
le

.

Agenda Item 6

Page 127



| 
F

ir
s
t 

fl
o
o
r,

 A
ld

e
rl
e
y
 H

o
u
s
e
, 
A

ld
e
rl
e
y
 R

o
a
d
 W

ilm
s
lo

w
 S

K
9
 1

A
T

 |
 

| 
t:
 +

+
4
4
 (

0
) 

1
6
2
5
 6

2
8
0

0
0
 |
 f

: 
+

+
4
4
 (

0
) 

1
6
2
5
 6

2
8
0

0
1
 |

V
is

it
 o

u
r 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 @

 w
w

w
.c

i-
re

s
e
a
rc

h
.c

o
m

  

Agenda Item 6

Page 128



  

  

REPORT TO: 
 

Cabinet Member – Environmental 
Licensing & Regulatory 
Cabinet Member – Communities 
 

DATE: 
 

21
st
 October 2009 

26
th
 October 2009 

4
th
 November 2009 

 
SUBJECT: 
 

SEFTON TRADING STANDARDS ALCOHOL SURVEY OF YOUNG 
PEOPLE – ‘OPERATION SOFT DRINK: PHASE 2 – BUY BOOZE, 
THEY LOSE’ 

 
WARDS AFFECTED: 
 

All 

REPORT OF: 
 

W T Milburn 
Environmental Protection Director 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

Andrew Naisbitt 
Trading Standards Section Manager 
0151 934 4014 

 

EXEMPT/ 
CONFIDENTIAL: 
 
 

No 
 

PURPOSE/SUMMARY: 
 
To inform the Cabinet Member – Environmental, Cabinet Member – Communities and Licensing 
and Regulatory Committee of the outcome of ‘Operation Soft Drink: Phase 2 – Buy Booze They 
Lose’, a strategic intervention tackling the incidence of underage, alcohol related anti-social  
behaviour in Sefton commissioned by the Public Health Partnership Alcohol Strategy Group. 
 

REASON WHY DECISION REQUIRED: 
 
To inform the Cabinet Member – Environmental, Cabinet Member – Communities and Licensing 
and Regulatory Committee of the results of the ‘Operation Soft Drink: Phase 2 – Buy Booze They 
Lose’ and to seek endorsement for further similar interventions. 
 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
That the Cabinet-Member – Environmental, Cabinet-Member – Communities and Licensing and 
Regulatory Committee: 
 
a) Note the content of this report; and 

b) Endorse continued partnership work within the Public Health Partnership Alcohol Strategy 
Group and Alcohol-Related Crime Sub-Group for addressing the issues of underage alcohol 
purchase/consumption and alcohol-related nuisance, disorder and Anti-Social Behaviour.  

 

 
KEY DECISION: 
 

 
No 

FORWARD PLAN: 
 

N/A 

IMPLEMENTATION DATE: 
 

Immediately following the expiry of the “call-in” period for 
this meeting. 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 129



  

  

 

 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS:  

Enforcement of underage sale legislation is a statutory duty for the Trading Standards Service.  
 
Additional resources could be diverted to this area of enforcement, however this would risk 
distorting the balanced work programme of the Trading Standards service. 
 

 
 
IMPLICATIONS: 
 

 
 
 

Budget/Policy Framework: 
 
 

‘Operation Soft Drink: Phase 2 – Buy Booze, They Lose’ 
was a joint initiative commissioned by the Public Health 
Partnership Alcohol Related Crime Sub Group, Trading 
Standards Service and the Police and funded by the Safer 
Stronger Communities Fund. 

Financial: 

 
 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

2006/ 
2007 
£ 

2007/ 
2008 
£ 

2008/ 
2009 
£ 

2009/ 
2010 
£ 

Gross Increase in Capital Expenditure Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Funded by:     

Sefton Capital Resources      

Specific Capital Resources     

REVENUE IMPLICATIONS     

Gross Increase in Revenue Expenditure Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Funded by:     

Funded from External Resources     

Does the External Funding have an expiry date? Y/N When? 

How will the service be funded post expiry?  

 
Legal: 
 
 

N/A 

Risk Assessment: 
 

N/A 

Asset Management: 
 

N/A 

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN/VIEWS 

Public Health Partnership Alcohol Related Crime Sub Group 
 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 130



  

  

 
 
CORPORATE OBJECTIVE MONITORING: 
 
Corporate 
Objective 

 Positive 
Impact 

Neutral 
Impact 

Negative 
Impact 

1 Creating a Learning Community √   

2 Creating Safe Communities √   

3 Jobs and Prosperity √   

4 Improving Health and Well-Being √   

5 Environmental Sustainability  √  

6 Creating Inclusive Communities √   

7 Improving the Quality of Council Services and 
Strengthening local Democracy 

√   

8 Children and Young People 
 

√   

 

 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS RELIED UPON IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
 
Sefton MBC / TSNW Alcohol Survey of Young People - CI Research 
 

 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 131



  

  

Background 
 
1. The Sefton Safer and Stronger Communities Partnership (SSCP) has committed to 

the address of 4 stretch targets in support of the delivery of the Sefton Local Area 
Agreement (LAA). One of these targets is “to increase the number of people who feel 
informed about what is being done to tackle anti-social behaviour within Sefton” 

 
2. Operation Soft Drink was developed as part of a package of interventions to impact 

on the above target. It was run over a period of 6 weeks from September 24th 2007 to 
November 9th 2007 and informed by intelligence provided by AIM (formerly the NPU). 
The Cabinet Members and Licensing and Regulatory Committee will recall a report 
entitled “Sefton Trading Standards Alcohol Survey of Young People: Operation Soft 
Drink” presented in March 2008. 

 
3. Operation Soft Drink itself involved a range of separate, but complimentary activities, 

these included;  
 

•  Alcohol proxy purchasing exercises 

•  Underage alcohol test purchasing 

•  Litmus testing of drinks containers 

•  Issue of Ultra Violet Light ID (proof of age) Testers (UV Testers) 
 
4. These activities were promoted using a social marketing model that involved 

identifying and segmenting niche recipient audiences and via posters, newspaper 
adverts/ editorial and direct mailing exercises (14,200 addresses) communicating the 
rationale and outcomes of the intervention.  

 
5. Evaluation of Operation Soft Drink highlighted a strong, positive public response to 

the intervention. An independent telephone evaluation (sample size 430 people) of 
the work indicated a 30% awareness of Operation Soft Drink. The impact of the 
social marketing was reflected within the monthly perception data collected from the 
Sefton SSCP Tracker Survey which recorded a 12.7% decrease in the number of 
people perceiving under age drinking as a very big/fairly big problem. 

 
6. The intervention also achieved other operational successes. These included issuing 

of warning letters to parents of 28 young people attempting to proxy purchase alcohol 
and 995 seizures of vessels containing alcohol. The introduction of UV Testers also 
proved successful. A total of 80% of Off-Licences reported regular use of the 
equipment with 50% of these reporting a noticeable decrease in the number of under 
age people attempting to purchase alcohol over the counter. There was also strong 
public support in favour of using both litmus strips and UV Testers.  

 
Evidence Base for Further Action 
 
7. In addition to the successful outcomes of Operation Soft Drink a strong evidence 

base existed to support the decision to develop a successor project:  
 

a) The Home Office Youth Crime Action Plan (2008) recognises that most young 
people are not involved in drinking in public spaces and do not behave anti-
socially. However, the same Action Plan also recognises that for other young 
people involvement with delinquent peer groups and alcohol provides a 
catalyst for opportunistic risk taking. 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 132



  

  

b) The report Risky Drinking in North West School Children and its 
consequences (2008) identifies drinking by young people in public places as 
the most prevalent form of drinking most likely to be of concern to the public. 

 
c) This concern about young people consuming alcohol is consistent with 

research commissioned in 2007 by Sefton SSCP. Respondents within 6 focus 
groups were asked which anti - social behaviours were the biggest problem in 
their area; groups of teenagers hanging about on street corners of greatest 
concern, followed by underage drinking and parents not taking responsibility 
for the behaviour of their children. 

 
d) Clearly unsupervised drinking by young people in public places like parks and 

street corners is unacceptable. A raft of Public Service Agreements (PSA’s) 
and performance measures embedded within Assessments of Police and 
Community Safety (APACS) and National Indicator Sets point to the need for 
Local Strategic Partnerships (LSP’s) to position work to address underage 
drinking as an operational priority. 

 
e) The address of underage drinking is identified as a fundamental component of 

PSA 25 “Reduce the harm caused by alcohol and drugs” which states “young 
people and their parents will be supported in making informed decisions about 
their drinking through provision of authoritative and accessible guidance”. This 
priority is also reflected in the DCSF Youth Alcohol Action Plan (YAAP) where 
address of underage drinking sits as one of the YAAP’s five core objectives. 
Effective interventions to impact on anti-social, underage use of alcohol are 
also complimentary to the goal of PSA 14 “Increase the number of children 
and young people on the path to success”.  

 
f) The Buy Booze, They Lose intervention also directly contributes to NI 17 

(perceptions of anti-social behaviour), NI 115 (Substance Misuse by Young 
People), and NI 39 (Reducing alcohol-related hospital admission rates). 

 
Implementing Buy Booze, They Lose 
 
8. The intervention was designed to retain the strongest elements of the original 

Operation Soft Drink but extended both in terms of its duration and scope to provide 
support to a range of LSP strategic objectives. 

 
9. Buy Booze, They Lose commenced on October 6th 2008 and ran through to 

December 12th 2008. This allowed for an extended deployment of operational 
resources and activity in the lead in to Christmas. The communication element of the 
intervention was concluded at the end of January 2009 following a direct mailing 
exercise detailing the outcomes of operational activities. 

 
10. The Sefton AIM Team completed a strategic analysis of anti-social behaviour counts 

across its 7 neighbourhoods. This work identified the 8 most prevalent “ASB Hotspot 
Areas” in Sefton over a 6 month period (January – June 2008). Additionally, the 
intelligence broke down the ASB count by type, month, weekdays and hour, to 
facilitate the pinpoint targeting of intervention activities. The co-ordinated operational 
activity was focused on these Hotspot Areas.  

 
11. The Trading Standards North West Report Alcohol Survey of Young People (June 

2007) highlighted proxy purchasing as a growing problem in Sefton. Proxy-
purchasing exercises, were conducted by the Police and Sefton Trading Standards 
Department in partnership. This involved the simple technique of deploying personnel 

Agenda Item 7

Page 133



  

  

wearing pin cameras to walk past groups of teenagers in close proximity to off 
licences and awaiting requests for proxy purchase of alcohol. Two uniformed police 
officers provided back up and support and when advised of attempts at proxy 
purchasing managed the situation. This involved taking the offenders name and 
address, forwarding details to the Sefton Anti-Social Behaviour Unit (ASB Unit) and 
issuing of anti-social behaviour contracts (ABC’s). Proxy purchasing exercises were 
conducted in each of the 10 weeks of the Buy Booze, They Lose intervention. 

 
12. Underage test purchasing exercises were conducted each week of the intervention. If 

a sale to a minor occurred, the retailer selling the alcohol was issued with an £80 
Fixed Penalty Notice (FPN).The premises were then subject to a full licensing 
inspection and the licensee (DPS) requested to make an appointment to visit the 
Licensing Unit. 

 
13. Use of recognised ID is an approach recommended by Trading Standards North 

West as part of a package of measures to tackle under age drinking. Off-Licences, 
through their statutory training are already aware of the acceptable formats of ID a 
young person can use. To facilitate accurate and responsible scrutiny of ID all Sefton 
based off licences were issued with a basic UV Tester within Operation Soft Drink in 
2007. Evaluation of the impact of this exercise highlighted a significant majority of 
DPS’s valued the UV Testers as a tool they could employ to reduce likelihood of 
under age sales. Off licences were thus provided with desk top UV Testers at the 
start of Buy Booze, They Lose. Whilst the dissemination of the UV Testers provided 
an excellent public relations and communications opportunity to engage off licences 
as partners in the intervention it also achieved the objective of raising awareness 
within the local licensed trade that the intervention was about to commence. The 
issue of the UV Testers to Off-Licences and the associated penalties for the use of 
fake ID were promoted within the social marketing element of Buy Booze, They Lose. 

 
14. An important factor in tackling underage, alcohol related anti-social behaviour is to 

understand from where the alcohol has been sourced. If the young person has not 
purchased the alcohol themselves they have either obtained it via proxy or from their 
home. Smart Water and Ultra Violet marking exercises assisted in the process of 
gaining a clearer understanding of where alcohol had been accessed by young 
people.  Smart Water is an invisible ink coated onto materials that can be detected 
under ultra violet light. For the purposes of the intervention, Smart Water was used in 
partnership with, and the consent of, licensed premises located within the 8 ASB 
Hotspots areas.  Coating of drinks containers within these premises allowed police 
when confiscating vessels to identify from which off licence the drinks container was 
purchased. This allowed more precise targeting of police resources in planning proxy 
purchasing exercises.  

 
15. Litmus kits were used to test the contents of drinks being consumed by young people 

under the legal age to drink alcohol. The strips can be placed within vessels (often 
disguised as containing soft drinks) and checked for alcoholic content. Drinks found 
to contain alcohol were confiscated. 

 
16. In Autumn 2007 Sefton commissioned Ariel Trust to work with two separate groups of 

teenagers to develop an education resource that both reflected teenagers own 
experience of alcohol and canvassed the views of members of local communities as 
to their perceptions of young people drinking alcohol in public places.  The resulting 
“Don’t Leave UR Mates “education resource was offered to all senior schools within 
Sefton during the first month of the intervention. This was done through the Sefton 
Healthy Schools Team who ran a full day training workshop introducing the tool and 
ideas as to how it might be used to key stakeholders. In addition to senior school 

Agenda Item 7

Page 134



  

  

mentors, the training session was opened up to Connexions, the ASB Unit and youth 
sector workers who could use the tool in groups with whom they are engaged. 

 
17. In the period January 1st 2008 - to June 30th 2008 the Sefton ASB Unit issued a total 

of 750 warning letters that were sent to parents of young people identified as causing 
anti-social behaviour. This tactic has proved effective in significantly reducing the 
number of repeat offences. Use of alcohol was a contributory factor in the vast 
majority of these recorded offences. In an attempt to reduce repeat offences further 
and support parents in addressing their teenagers drinking behaviours a parental 
alcohol advice booklet was developed.  The booklet, amongst the themes it covered, 
examined why young people drink, included an outline of the harms associated with 
under age drinking and identified what parents can do to positively influence their 
children’s drinking behaviours.  A copy of the booklet was included within 
correspondence when sending out warning letters. 

 
Marketing of Buy Booze, They Lose 
 
18. The Communities and Local Government White paper ‘Communities in control: Real 

People, Real Power’ suggests one of the main reasons people can feel powerless is 
a lack of information that is accessible and easily understood.  It was therefore 
decided that the social marketing strategy developed for Buy Booze, They Lose 
should have four objectives: 
 

• To make Off-Licences aware of the package of direct action 
 

• To highlight to young people and their families the package of action being taken 
and the subsequent consequences of committing offences 

 

• To showcase the proactive measures being implemented to support young 
people and their parents in addressing irresponsible alcohol use 

 

• To generate maximum publicity as to what is being done to tackle illegal under 
age drinking (and in doing so provide information to local communities as to what 
is being done to address a key anti-social behaviour concern). 

 
19. The headline message utilised throughout the social marketing programme was “Buy 

Booze, They Lose”. The message, used in conjunction with a powerful image of used 
alcohol containers, was developed within Sefton by a group of teenagers and 
represented the outcomes of a piece of work they engaged in to understand their 
own relationship with alcohol. A mix of marketing tools and methodologies were 
employed to influence NI 23 “perceptions that people in the area treat one another 
with respect and consideration” and NI 24 “satisfaction with the way the Police and 
local council deal with anti-social behaviour”: 

  

• Direct Mail: A 4-page “branded” information newsletter was sent to key 
households identified using intelligence both from AIM (identifying 250 metre 
radius hotspots) and from the ASB Unit client data base (recipients of warning 
letters) mailing lists. The aim of the newsletter was to inform those most closely 
affected by incidents of alcohol related ASB as to what was being done to 
address the issue locally. It contained a range of useful contact numbers, public 
information stories and most importantly detailed a package of measures being 
implemented to tackle the issue of underage drinking in Sefton. The resource 
was branded with the “Respect - It’s Your Sefton” logo and included the Buy 
Booze, They Lose image to headline the intervention. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 135



  

  

 

• The Buy Booze, They Lose image and message was used on A3 posters 
positioned in off licences, public houses, youth settings and schools across 
Sefton. 

 

• A package of Adshels, visual media sites situated on the side of bus shelters 
were purchased via Sefton SSCP to provide pinpoint exposure to the 
intervention directly within key locations. As an outdoor media tool the Adshels 
provided alternative and direct access to niche target audiences residing with 
Sefton ASB Hotspot Areas. 

 

• The intervention was launched with strong editorial press coverage to generate 
wide population awareness of Buy Booze, They Lose. This added to the impact 
of the direct mailing and use of Adshels in establishing the brand identity in the 
minds of targeted communities. Following the launch there was continued use of 
the local media over the 10 week duration of the intervention. This was via 
advertisements (ie Buy Booze, They Lose image), editorial (ie distribution of UV 
Testers) or advertorial (ie explanation of the purpose of the parent alcohol advice 
booklet). 

 

• Blue Tooth Technology: The majority of the population now own mobile 
telephones. Importantly, nearly 9 in 10 teenagers have access to a mobile 
phone.  Blue tooth technology provides an opportunity to take advantage of this 
lifestyle choice via mass dissemination of key messages (essentially blue tooth 
works as a group text messaging service to all mobile phones based within a 250 
metre radius of the point from which the message is generated). Thus, 
information relating to a planned proxy purchase exercise or details of litmus 
testing exercises was sent direct to mobile phones on the day they were 
occurring. In addition to blue tooth technology being a preventative tool in itself 
the exercise strengthened local knowledge of the intervention and what was 
being proactively done to combat alcohol related anti-social behaviour. 

 

• Off licences located within the 8 ASB Hotspots were approached by Sefton 
Trading Standards to support the intervention via use of customised carrier bags. 
Specifically, the carrier bag (used by the off licences to package alcohol after 
purchase) carried the Buy Booze They Lose branded image, message and logo.  

 

• Public Information Forums: Within Sefton there exists a comprehensive group of 
Homewatch schemes and a sophisticated community engagement network, full 
advantage of the opportunities these and other forums (Registered Social 
Landlords) provided to communicate the aims and progress of Buy Booze, They 
Lose within the target ASB Hotspot Areas. 

 
Buy Booze, They Lose - Evaluation Framework 
  
20. Buy Booze They Loose was evaluated using a range of tools. The following sources 

of data contributed to analysis of the intervention: 
 

a) Sefton Tracker Survey. The AIM Team tracked the perception data relating to 
those who think underage drinking is a very big/ fairly big problem, those who 
think drunk/rowdy behaviour is a big/ fairly big problem and the actual counts 
of ASB in each hotspot area over a period of 6 months (August 2008 – 
February 2009). The data trends were then plotted against the same time 

Agenda Item 7

Page 136



  

  

frames relating to 2006/07 and 2007/08 which allowed a direct comparison 
with activity in previous years. 

 
b) An independent research consultancy was commissioned to conduct a semi- 

structured doorstep research exercise exploring the impact of the social 
marketing programme. The work was conducted 6 weeks after closure of the 
communication programme to establish what medium term resonance the 
social marketing exercises had achieved with the target audience. 

 
c) The Don’t Leave UR Mates Education Resource for professionals was 

evaluated on completion of the one day workshop via a short questionnaire.  
 
d) A record was kept of the number of Parental Alcohol Advice booklets 

distributed via the ASB Unit. The impact of these booklets on the longer term 
trend of individuals re-offending will be measured using monthly data counts 
obtained via the ASB Unit. 

 
e) The following operational outcomes were also measured: 

 

• Number of test purchasing exercises conducted and number of fixed 
penalty notice issued 

• Number of proxy purchasing exercises conducted and number of 
resulting warning letters issued 

• Number of drinks vessels confiscated as a result of litmus testing 
exercises  

• Numbers of off licences participating in Smart Water exercises and 
outcomes resulting from use of the technique 

• Numbers of branded carrier bags distributed 

• Number of Don’t Leave UR Mates resource packs disseminated and 
numbers of young people having experience of using the resource 

• Amount of newspaper “free” editorial coverage accrued and blue tooth 
text messages disseminated 

 
Intervention Management and Accountability 
 
21. A Steering Group of senior officers representing key stakeholders (Merseyside 

Police, Trading Standards, Healthy Schools, ASB Unit, Public Health, Community 
Safety) ensured delivery of the intervention. The outcomes of the intervention were 
made available to both the Sefton SSCP Strategy Group and the Public health 
Partnership Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy Group. 

 
22. Post intervention the activity to combat the underage, alcohol related anti-social 

behaviour continued to be implemented. The scaling down of marketing activity since 
completion of the intervention has allowed the residual impact of Buy Booze, They 
Lose to be measured.  

 
Operational Outputs 
 
23. The following represent the key outcomes evolving from the separate strands of 

work: 
 

a) Police Operational Activity 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 137



  

  

• In total 16 separate proxy-purchasing exercises and 18 undercover test 
purchasing exercises were completed over the duration of the 
intervention. The result of this activity was that 2 separate retailers 
received £80 fines for sales of alcohol to underage teenagers. 

• As a result of litmus testing activity 119 drink vessels containing alcohol 
were confiscated 

• A total of 24 off-licences located in the hotspot targeted areas agreed to 
having stock marked with either Smart Water or ultra-violet light pen 
markings. 

•  A total of 16 schools participated in Smart Water lessons   

• A total of 34 Don’t Leave UR Mates Resource packs were disseminated 
to stakeholders 

 
b)  Don’t Leave UR Mates Resource Training: A total of 10 (out of 23) Sefton 

senior schools accepted the invitation to participate in a training day 
examining how the resource could be utilised with groups of young people. In 
addition to the schools present at the session representatives of Connexions 
and the Sefton Anti-Social Behaviour Unit also attended the training. The 
workshop was positively evaluated by all in attendance: 

 

• “Relevant for the students I work with” 

• “Feel more able to communicate with students” 

• “CD ROM is a useful tool for raising awareness (about consequences of 
excessive alcohol consumption) amongst young people”. 

 

c) Parental Advice Booklet: A total of 1500 booklets were produced. These were 
given to Sefton Anti-Social Behaviour Unit for issue to parents whose 
teenagers had been recipients of ASBOs and ABCs. The value of this 
resource will be determined via a separate evaluation exercise when a 
sufficient quantity of the booklets has been disseminated to allow a research 
cohort of sufficient quantity to provide robust evidence of value. 

 
d) Communication Programme: A range of communication methods and tools 

were utilised to disseminate information relating to activities occurring within 
the intervention. These included: 

 

• A total of 9 separate press releases forwarded to the media 

• Positioning of the Buy Booze They Lose image on 14 Adshels (bus 
shelters) and 200 posters  

• Production of 60,000 branded retail carrier bags provided to 34 separate 
off- licences located within the hotspot intervention areas 

• Production of 26,000 Buy Booze They Lose four page A4 newsletters 
direct mailed to households located within the 250 metre hotspot targeted 
areas. 

• Production of 6 separate “Bluetooth” media videos targeted at young 
people located within 250 metre radius of alcohol retail outlets in hotspot 
areas  

 
Results 
 
24. The outcomes of the interventions were measured using two separate sources of 

information. The perceived impact of the communication programme was analysed 
via a Doorstep Evaluation Survey conducted by an independent research 
consultancy (Murray Consultancy) whilst analysis of the Sefton Tracker Survey 

Agenda Item 7

Page 138



  

  

indicated progress towards the core aim of the intervention – to reduce the 
perceptions of Anti-Social Behaviour as a problem in Sefton. 

 
a) The fieldwork dates for this research were March 24th – April 4th 2009. In total 

403 interviews were eligible for inclusion in the evaluation. Key findings 
evolving from this research included: 

 

• Before prompting 38% of householders could remember receiving the 
newsletter. This figure equates to around 9,800 households and 25,000 
residents. This is significantly higher than receipt levels recalled 
(prompted and unprompted) for the previous Booze Losers newsletters 
disseminated as part of Operation Soft Drink 

• Amongst households with teenagers present 44% of householders 
recalled receiving the mailing 

• Four in five of all households who remembered having received the 
newsletter stated they had read it 

• A total of 40% of the respondents could recall some of the content of the 
newsletter. The most readily remembered information related to work 
carried out by police and to proxy purchase of alcohol for those ineligible 
to buy alcohol because of their age 

• One in four recipients of the newsletter had retained it six week after 
initial receipt of the publication 

• Half of the research sample stated they had seen similar information to 
that within the newsletter on posters or/and in newspapers 

• In total three in ten residents stated that they had seen the Buy Booze, 
They Lose image recently. Overall two in three rated the poster as very 
effective, effective or quite effective at getting the required message 
across 

• Three in ten residents stated they had seen the carrier bag recently. 
Overall 60% of these rated the bag as very effective, effective or quite 
effective at getting the message across 

• Two in three householders now feel better informed about what is being 
done to tackle the problem of teenage alcohol related anti-social 
behaviour  

• Three in five of those interviewed stated they now felt convinced 
something was being done to tackle the problem. 

 
b) Sefton Tracker Survey Trend Analysis: 
 

• ASB Counts: Over the period September 2008- February 2009 the 
number of ASB counts in Sefton was recorded at 5877. This was a drop 
of 12.9% on the recorded figure of 6668 for the previous year over the 
same period in 2007/08.This statistic captures all recorded types of anti-
social behaviour, thus to learn more about the influence of Buy Booze 
They Lose it was important to explore specific public perceptions relating 
to underage drinking, groups of teenagers hanging about the street and 
people being drunk or rowdy in public places. 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 139



  

  

 
 

• Underage Drinking: Over the period September 2008-February 2009 the 
mean percentage of people in Sefton who perceived underage drinking to 
be a problem in their neighbourhood was recorded at 28.2%.This figure 
represented a 9.4% decrease on the same period in the previous year 
recorded at 37.6%. 

 

 
 

• Groups of Teenagers hanging about the street: Over the period 
September 2008-February 2009 the mean percentage of people in Sefton 
who perceived groups of teenagers hanging about the street as a 
problem in their neighbourhood was recorded at 31.3%. This figure 
represented a 10.8% decrease on the same period in the previous year 
recorded at 42.1% 

 

 
 

• People being drunk in rowdy place: Over the period September 2008–
February 2009 the mean percentage of people in Sefton who perceived 
people being drunk or rowdy in public places as a problem in their 
neighbourhood was recorded at 20.2%. This figure represented a 7.9% 
decrease on the same period in the previous year recorded at 28.1% 

Agenda Item 7

Page 140



  

  

 

 
 
Conclusion 
 
25. The Sefton Tracker Survey clearly demonstrates significant reductions in the 

negative perceptions of underage drinking, groups of teenagers hanging about the 
street and people being drunk or rowdy in public places. Whilst this positive trend 
cannot singularly be attributed to the activity occurring within the Buy Booze, They 
Lose intervention, the targeting of specific interventions directed to address these 
three perceptions within hotspot areas can be assumed to be a contributory factor in 
this recorded improvement. 

 
26. This assumption is further supported when analysing counts of anti social behaviour 

by type which indicates over the 6 month period that the most significant reduction in 
anti-social behaviour by type is that which relates to rowdy nuisance or inconsiderate 
behaviour. 

 
27. The Public Health Partnership Alcohol Related Crime Sub-Group believe that the 

data available indicates strongly that the multi-intervention social marketing approach 
of Buy Booze, They Lose has had a positive impact on combating the problem of 
underage drinking and on resident perception of that problem. The Sub-Group 
intends to look to further develop the Buy Booze, They Lose brand and continue the 
coordinated multi agency enforcement exercises throughout 2009/10 as part of the 
Government’s National Alcohol Strategy. 

 
28. The comments of the Cabinet Member – Environmental, Cabinet Member - 

Communities and Licensing and Regulatory Committee are welcomed as part of the 
development process. 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7

Page 141



Page 142

This page is intentionally left blank



THE “CALL IN” PERIOD FOR THIS SET OF MINUTES ENDS AT 12 NOON ON 
TUESDAY 13 OCTOBER, 2009. 

 

20 

LITHERLAND AND FORD AREA COMMITTEE 
 

MEETING HELD AT THE CATHY ROBERTS MEMORIAL HALL, 
OSBORNE ROAD, LITHERLAND 

ON WEDNESDAY 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2009 
 

PRESENT: Councillor Moncur (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors D.Hardy, Brady, Cluskey, P.Hardy and 
Tweed 

 Local Advisory Group Members: 
Mrs.J.Burnhill, Mr.J.Kelly, Mr.M.J.O'Brien and 
Mr.B.Walsh 

 
 
37. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Advisory Group Members 
Mrs.Cluskey and Mr.McNeight. 
 
 
38. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 
 
39. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 2 September 2009 be confirmed 
as a correct record.  
 
 
40. OPEN FORUM  
 
During the Open Forum the following question / comment was submitted: 
 
(a) Further to Minute No.28(b) of the meeting held on 2 September, 

Mr.G.McNeight  expressed his concern at the reply he had received 
from Mr.D.Marrin, Traffic Services Manager regarding various 
parking and traffic issues around Marina Avenue, Sefton Street and 
Hawthorne Road Litherland. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Planning and Economic Regeneration Director be requested to 
respond to Mr.McNeight’s comments. 
 
 

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 8a

Page 143



LITHERLAND AND FORD AREA COMMITTEE- WEDNESDAY 30TH 
SEPTEMBER, 2009 
 

21 

41. POLICE ISSUES  
 
No representative of Merseyside Police attended the meeting. 
 
 
42. PROPOSED INTRODUCTION OF DROPPED KERBS - RICHARD 

MARTIN ROAD, LITHERLAND  
 
Further to Minute No.28(a) of the meeting held on 2 September 2009, the 
Committee considered the report of the Planning and Economic 
Regeneration Director, which sought approval for the provision of two 
dropped kerbs to be located on the footway at Richard Martin Road, 
Litherland. The proposed dropped kerbs would enable disabled residents 
to travel safely into Litherland town centre. Attached as an annexe to the 
report was map that detailed the locations where the proposed dropped 
kerbs would to be installed. 
 
Members expressed their concern at the way this request / application had 
been handled: Residents had been given poor advice and instruction by 
Officers, which had caused confusion and delay; the protocols and 
procedures, established through the Neighbourhoods Team, had not been 
followed; Officers had wrongly advised residents to approach the 
Committee to fund footway improvements, the Committee stressed that its 
remit did not extend to supplementing highway improvement programmes; 
the report did not contain sufficient detail to enable the Committee to make 
an truly informed decision; and furthermore, there did not appear to be any 
clear identified criteria or coordinated strategy for installing dropped kerbs 
across the borough. A Councillor also commented that he had sought 
advice and clarification from the Legal Director on the types of 
projects/developments the Committee could fund, but he had not received 
an answer to his query.  
 
Notwithstanding the aforementioned concerns Councillors agreed that 
Richard Martin Road, Litherland should have dropped kerbs and on this 
occasion the Committee would make a contribution of £1,000 towards their 
installation. However the Committee emphasised, in the strongest possible 
terms, this did not set a precedent for future budget allocations. All future 
budgetary requests must follow the due process and procedure, which 
was administered through the Neighbourhoods Team. 
 
RESOLVED: That 
 
(1) an allocation of £1,000 be made from the Ford Ward budget for the 

installation of two dropped kerbs located at Richard Martin Road, 
Litherland; 

 
(2) the Planning and Economic Regeneration Director be requested to 

disseminate information to appropriate Officers regarding the 
Committee’s budgetary arrangements; 

 

Agenda Item 8a

Page 144



LITHERLAND AND FORD AREA COMMITTEE- WEDNESDAY 30TH 
SEPTEMBER, 2009 
 

22 

(3) the Planning and Economic Regeneration Director be requested to 
advise Officers that the Committee’s budget is not a supplement to 
work programme / departmental  budgets; 

 
(4) the Planning and Economic Regeneration Director be requested to 

liaise with Finance and Information Services Director to ensure that 
information on the Council’s internet pages accurately reflect the 
procedures for the Committee’s budgetary administration; 

 
(5) the concerns of the Committee be forwarded to the Legal Director 

for inclusion on the agenda of the next Joint Meeting of Party 
Leaders and Area Committee Chairs, scheduled for 5 November, 
2009. 

 
 
43. BUDGET MONITORING  
 
Further to Minute No.34 of the meeting held on 2 September 2009, the 
Committee considered the report of the Planning and Economic 
Regeneration Director that provided information on available resources for 
the Area Committee area and progress on those items approved at 
previous meetings. 
 
Miss D.Edwards, Neighbourhood Team, informed the Committee that 
since the publication of the agenda, it had emerged that some streets 
required additional street name plates. Consequently Ford Ward would be 
requested to contribute an additional £280 and Litherland Ward would be 
requested to contribute an additional £385 to the initial request for £1,000 
detailed within the report . 
 
RESOLVED: That 
 
(1) the current financial position and progress to date on items 

previously agreed within the report be noted; and 
  
(2) an allocation of £1,280 be made for Street Signs from the Ford 

Ward allocation; and 
 
(3) an allocation of £1,385 be made for Street Signs from the Ford 

Ward allocation. 
 
 
44. PROGRESS REPORT  
 
The Committee considered the report of the Planning and Economic 
Regeneration Director that set the comments of the appropriate Officers 
on matters raised at previous meetings. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Progress Report be noted. 

Agenda Item 8a

Page 145



LITHERLAND AND FORD AREA COMMITTEE- WEDNESDAY 30TH 
SEPTEMBER, 2009 
 

23 

 
45. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 28 OCTOBER, 2009  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That in accordance with the agreed programme of meetings for this Area 
Committee, the next meeting would be held on Wednesday 28 October 
2009, commencing at 18:30 at Goddard Hall, Stanley Road, 
Litherland. 
 
 

Agenda Item 8a

Page 146



THE “CALL IN” PERIOD FOR THIS SET OF MINUTES ENDS AT 12 NOON ON 
THURSDAY 22 OCTOBER 2009. MINUTE NO. 47 IS NOT SUBJECT TO 
“CALL-IN”. 

 

30 

ST. OSWALD AND NETHERTON AND ORRELL AREA COMMITTEE 
 

MEETING HELD AT THE NETHERTON PARK NEIGHBOURHOOD 
CENTRE, CHESTER AVENUE, NETHERTON 

ON THURSDAY 1ST OCTOBER, 2009 
 

PRESENT: Councillor Mahon (in the Chair) 
Councillors Brennan and Bradshaw 
Local Advisory Group Member Mrs M Elson 
2 Representatives of Merseyside Police 
4 Members of the public 

 
 
44. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors M.Dowd, P.Dowd 
and Maher. 
 
45. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were received.  
 
46. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Minutes of the Meeting of the Area Committee held on 27 August 
2009 be confirmed as a correct record. 
 
47. OPEN FORUM  
 
During the Open Forum the following matters were raised: 
  
(a) Local Advisory Group Member Ms. M. Elson raised concern 
regarding the overgrown vegetation outside of the Carcraft premises on 
Dunnings Bridge Road leading up to the Canal Bridge, and asked if the 
Council could clear the site and possibably invoice Carcraft (the site 
owners). Ms. Elson indicated that the previous site owners (Switch Cars) 
had always done this each year as part of the planning agreement, but 
Carcraft seem reluctant to fulfil their obligations and vegetation was 
starting to spread out across the pedestrian pathway. 
  
Ms. Elson had been provided with a detailed response by the Principal 
Environmental Officer indicating that the request had been forwarded to 
the Public Health Team for investigation and that he would liaise with the 
Planning Department with regard to comments made about previous 
agreements. Ms Elson indicated that the area had now been cleared and 
thanked the officers concerned. 
 

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 8b

Page 147



ST. OSWALD AND NETHERTON AND ORRELL AREA COMMITTEE- 
THURSDAY 1ST OCTOBER, 2009 
 

31 

(b) Councillor Brennan indicated that he had received a letter and a 
petition of 47 signatures from Mrs Anderson and Mrs Curran on behalf of 
Residents of Orchard Hey and Marl Road advising of unkempt and 
overgrown land behind the houses of Orchard Hey and Marl Road 
(opposite the Asda Superstore, Aintree) which had not been maintained 
for over five years, with the exception of the narrow pathway which ran 
through it. Local residents had themselves maintained the area as it 
overhung their properties.  
 
Residents had raised the issue previously with local MP Joe Benton who 
had visited the site who agreed that this was unacceptable. An officer from 
the Highways Department also visited the area but nothing was actioned. 
Residents indicated that the area had become that bad that the area is 
subject to flytipping, teenage drinking, litter and felled trees which had not 
been removed.  
 
Councillor Brennan indicated that he had spoken to Mrs Anderson and Mrs 
Curran and had visited the site and confirmed the area was in a poor state. 
Mrs Elson indicated that the area was previously cleared by the Payback 
Team about two years ago. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Assistant Director (Neighbourhoods) be requested to investigate 
the issues raised by Mrs Anderson and Mrs Curran and respond to them in 
writing. 
 
(c) Ms Gladys Kinder indicated that she had recently attended a 
meeting of the South Sefton Older Persons’ Forum in connection with the 
Older Persons’ Strategy, out of which came a request for the 
establishment of an Age Concern office in the Strand, Bootle. She 
indicated that Southport already had their own office set up, and funding 
was needed to set up a similar project in Bootle, and asked if the Area 
Committee would consider a £1000.00 contribution to establish an office. 
This would enable staff to assess the need for this project and look for 
additional funding to maintain the project. 
 
Ms Kinder indicated that further concern had been raised at the meeting 
with regards to low attendance at the Area Committee and sought the 
Members’ views on the possibility of funding for the use of the Community 
Transport to bring people to the meetings as it was felt that some Area 
Committee venues were difficult to get to, due to there being no direct bus 
route.  
In response to Ms Kinder’s request for the provision of Community 
Transport to people attending the Area Committee meetings, Councillor 
Brennan raised concern regarding this request as health and safety 
implications would have to be considered as it would involve staff 
escorting members of the public, this would involve obtaining CRB checks 
and undertaking risk assessment. 
 

Agenda Item 8b

Page 148



ST. OSWALD AND NETHERTON AND ORRELL AREA COMMITTEE- 
THURSDAY 1ST OCTOBER, 2009 
 

32 

Ms Kinder concluded by asking for a contribution £1000 towards the 
purchase of new plants for the Urban Oasis as the Council Department 
dealing with the maintenance of the project did not have money to buy the 
plant bulbs etc.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Assistant Director (Neighbourhoods) be requested to investigate 
the requests raised by Ms Kinder and respond to her in writing. 
 
 
48. POLICE ISSUES  
 
It was reported that Inspector Simon Thompson had now taken up the post 
of Neighbourhood Inspector, Inspector Thompson had worked within the 
area previously so had prior knowledge and would be bringing new ideas 
in relation to neighbourhood policing. 
 
At present the neighbourhood team were able to be more proactive due to 
the officer resource available and it was reported that six warrants had 
been executed within the area as a result of community based intelligence, 
information from Police Community Support Officer and Community 
Housing Officers. It was hoped that Officers would be able to execute a 
warrant on a weekly basis. 
 
It was indicated that funding was needed for additional quad bikes to be 
used in less inaccessible areas such as Rimrose Park, the allotments and 
the golf course.  
 
In relation to the crime figures, it was reported that there had been a 
reduction in crime, and it was felt that offenders moving from the area or 
being on remand may have contributed to this reduction. 
 
With regards to Mischief Night Officers would be undertaking “Operation 
Banger” and various diversionary activities had been put in place to 
include at  ‘sleepover’ at the Netherton Park Neighbourhood Centre and 
visits to Splashworld, it was hoped that this would alleviate anti-social 
behaviour. 
 
Mrs M.Elson referred to a recent newspaper article regarding the task of 
tackling anti-social behaviour being the responsibility of the Council and 
Police Authority and asked Officers what their views were. In response it 
was felt that anti-social behaviour was the responsibility of all parties 
including residents, local agencies as well as the Police and Local Council. 
Officers indicated that the anti-social behaviour task force had assisted in 
reducing anti-social behaviour in the area which had enabled Officers to 
be able to do other tasks. 
 
Councillor Bradshaw thanked Officers for their swift response in dealing 
with an incident involving an unattended vehicle outside of her property. 
 

Agenda Item 8b

Page 149



ST. OSWALD AND NETHERTON AND ORRELL AREA COMMITTEE- 
THURSDAY 1ST OCTOBER, 2009 
 

33 

RESOLVED: 
 
That Officers be thanked for their report. 
 
49. PINFOLD COTTAGE, WOODLAND PARK - PROVISION OF BINS  
 
Further to Minute No. 37 (f) of the 27 August 2009, the Committee 
considered the report of the Leisure Director responding to a request from 
Members in relation to the provision of waste bins at Pinfold Cottage 
Woodland Park, Netherton. 
 
RESOLVED: That  
 
(1) the report responding to a request from Members in relation to the 

provision of waste bins at Pinfold Cottage Woodland Park, 
Netherton be noted;  

 
(2) the amount of £900.00 for the installation of two bins at Pinfold 

Cottage Park , Netherton to be funded from the Area Committee’s 
devolved budget be approved; and  

 
(3) the Finance and Information Services Director be advised of the 

expenditure referred to in (2) above. 
 
50. BUDGET MONITORING  
 
The Committee considered the report of the Planning and Economic 
Regeneration Director which advised that the balance of its budget 
available to allocate during 2009/10 was £35,023.29 and that the Strategic 
Director had received no requests for allocation since the last meeting. 
   
The report concluded by proposing that the remaining balance available 
be allocated to the Neighbourhoods Division to be used in accordance with 
Ward priorities as defined through area management approaches; and that 
any approvals made against this amount would be subject to agreement 
by all six Area Committee Members.  This would enable the budget to be 
used in a responsive way to tackle any pertinent Ward issues. 
 
Ms. Kelly from the Neighbourhoods Division referred to Minute No. 30 of 
the 2 July 2009 and indicated that the survey regarding street signs had 
been undertaken by Capita and additional locations added to the original 
list agreed. The revised list had now an additional cost of £460.00, total 
amount would now be £2,460.00. 
 
RESOLVED:   That 
  
(1) the balance of the Area Committee's budget of £35,023.29 available 

for allocation during 2009/10 be noted; 
  

Agenda Item 8b

Page 150



ST. OSWALD AND NETHERTON AND ORRELL AREA COMMITTEE- 
THURSDAY 1ST OCTOBER, 2009 
 

34 

(2) the additional street signs included in the revised list from Capital at 
a cost of £460.00 to funded from the Area Committee’s Devolved 
Budget be approved. 

 
 
51. PREVIOUS QUESTIONS RAISED IN THE OPEN FORUM  
 
The Area Committee considered correspondence relating to previous 
questions/issues raised in the Open Forum. 
 
 RESOLVED:  
 
That the correspondence be noted. 
 
52. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
RESOLVED: 
  
That in accordance with the agreed programme of meetings for this Area 
Committee, the next meeting will be held on Thursday, 29 October 2009 
at the Bootle Day Centre, commencing at 6.30 p.m. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8b

Page 151



This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8b

Page 152



THE ‘CALL-IN’ PERIOD FOR THIS SET OF MINUTES ENDS AT 12 NOON ON 
FRIDAY 23 OCTOBER 2009. MINUTE NOS. 33, 34 AND 36 TO 43 ARE NOT 
SUBJECT TO ‘CALL-IN’. 

 

18 

FORMBY AREA COMMITTEE 
 

MEETING HELD AT THE FORMBY PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT 
CENTRE, PARK ROAD, FORMBY 
ON THURSDAY 1 OCTOBER, 2009 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Ibbs (in the Chair) 

Councillors Cuthbertson, Griffiths and Storey;  
Parish Councillors: 
Mr. RJ Cawley, Mr. R. Jenkins and Ms PM Starkey; 
and 

 Local Advisory Group Members: 
Mr P G Thornton and Mrs B Yorke M.B.E. 
 

ALSO PRESENT: Inspector J. McLoughlin, Merseyside Police and 8 
members of the public. 

 
 
30. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting, in particular Mrs. Caroline 
Elwood, Legal Director, who would be attending future meetings of Formby 
Area Committee as a representative of the Council’s Strategic and Service 
Directors; and Ms Ruth Appleby, who, further to a reshuffle of duties giving 
Committee Administrators the experience of working on new committees / 
areas, had been allocated the role of Formby Area Committee 
Administrator in place of Ms Lyndzay Roberts, who would now be 
servicing St Oswald, Netherton and Orrell Area Committee. 
 
Members paid tribute to Ms Lyndzay Roberts’s hard work and commitment 
during her time as Administrator to Formby Area Committee. 
 
RESOLVED: That 
 
(1) welcome be extended to Mrs. Elwood, Legal Director and Ms Ruth 

Appleby, Committee Administrator to their inaugural meeting of 
Formby Area Committee; and 
 

(2) thanks be extended to Ms Lyndzay Roberts for her hard work and 
commitment as administrator to Formby Area Committee. 

 
 
31. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Platt. 
 
32. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
The following declaration of interest was received: 

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 8c

Page 153



FORMBY AREA COMMITTEE- THURSDAY 1ST OCTOBER, 2009 
 

19 

 
Member Minute No. Interest Action 

 
Parish 
Councillor RJ 
Cawley 

35 –  
‘One Vision 
Housing’ 

Personal – One 
Vision Housing 
tenant 

Took part in 
consideration of 
the item. 

 
 
33. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 2 JULY 2009  
 
The Committee considered the Minutes of the meeting held on 2 July 2009 
and the following issues were raised: 
 
The Chair referred to Minute No. 19 (a) in respect of the Open Forum 
question from Parish Councillor Thornton, indicating that there had been 
no response from Lancashire Wildlife Trust regarding the replacement of 
the stile with a kissing gate at the entrance to Freshfield Dune Heath from 
the bridal path at West Lane; and also the removal of the hazardous razor 
and barbed wire along the West boundary. 
 
Reference was also made to Minute No. 22 – Litterbin report, indicating 
that there had been no response to date from Mr. Phil Stirk, Street 
Services Manager, Cleansing Services regarding the following litterbins: 
 

• West Lane – not emptied; 

• Formby Village – lost cover; 

• Pathway at Gores Lane along St. George’s Road – request for 
increased frequency of emptying; and 

• Pancho’s, Victoria Road – request for increased frequency of 
emptying. 

 
RESOLVED: That 
 
(1) the Minutes of the meeting held on 2 July 2009 be confirmed as a 

correct record; and 
 

(2) the Assistant Director (Neighbourhoods) be requested to chase up 
the following outstanding issues: 
 

(a) contact Lancashire Wildlife Trust about the replacement of 
the stile with a kissing gate at the West Lane entrance to 
Freshfield Dune Heath and the removal of barbed and razor 
wire along the West boundary; and 

 
(b) liaise with Mr. Phil Stirk, the Street Services Manager, 

Cleansing Services, regarding the following litterbin issues. 
 

• West Lane – not emptied; 

• Formby Village – lost cover; 

• Pathway at Gores Lane along St. George’s Road – 
request for increased frequency of emptying; and 

Agenda Item 8c

Page 154



FORMBY AREA COMMITTEE- THURSDAY 1ST OCTOBER, 2009 
 

20 

• Pancho’s, Victoria Road – request for increased 
frequency of emptying. 

 
 
34. OPEN FORUM  
 
The following matters were raised during the Open Forum: 
 
(a) Mr. P. Caine had written regarding a previous request for a 

pedestrian crossing between the by-pass and Formby Station 
stating that he had received a letter from the Traffic Services 
Manager indicating that traffic surveys undertaken had shown that 
Altcar Road/Duke Street were high on the list for pedestrian 
crossings but not high enough. 
 
Mr. Caine stated that  

 
‘this completely missed my point that this route divides 
Formby and cuts off those living to the south from all 
essential services, i.e., doctors, dentists, clinics, the library, 
shops and so on.  Essentially, pedestrians are children, the 
elderly and disabled, i.e. non-driver categories. Surveying 
traffic volumes doesn’t address the danger to these groups 
when trying to cross this busy road.  Maybe the survey 
should examine the numbers of Formby residents living on 
the ‘wrong side of this route and not just compare traffic 
volumes’. 

 
The Chair indicated that two responses had been sent to Mr. Caine 
from both the Assistant Director (Neighbourhoods) and the Traffic 
Services Manager and that copies of these responses would be 
enclosed with the agenda for the next meeting. 
 

(b) A local resident (who gave his name, but did not wish to be named 
in the Minutes for fear of repercussions), expressed concern at the 
anti-social behaviour in Formby Village between midnight and 2.00 
a.m. and the apparent lack of Police presence in the village to deal 
with licensed premises linked to such behaviour and also during 
the Formby Music Festival. 
 
Inspector McLoughlin indicated that 2 regular Police Officers, 4  
Special Constables and 2 PCSOs  had been on duty at the Formby 
Music Festival. 
 
Lengthy discussion ensued with the following points arising from 
the discussion: 
 

• Problems with noise nuisance from bars and restaurants 
could be referred to the Council’s Environmental Protection 
Department.   

 

Agenda Item 8c

Page 155



FORMBY AREA COMMITTEE- THURSDAY 1ST OCTOBER, 2009 
 

21 

• The police would become involved if the noise was linked 
with criminal / disorderly behaviour. 

 

• Local residents could  request the Licensing Authority to 
undertake a ‘Review of  a Premises Licence’,  if the 
premises was failing to promote the Licensing Objectives of: 

 

• Prevention of Crime and Disorder; 

• Public Safety; 

• Prevention of public nuisance; and 

• Protection of children from harm; 
 

under the Licensing Act 2003. 
 

• Sefton Security maintained CCTV cameras and retained 
tapes. Therefore, anyone witnessing an incident in an area 
covered by CCTV could ask Sefton Security to look back 
through the tapes – on provision of a time, date and 
location. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That Inspector McLoughlin meet with the local resident to hear his 
concerns about anti-social behaviour in Formby Village and 
discuss a way forward. 

 
 
35. POLICE ISSUES  
 
Inspector McLoughlin presented and reported on Crosby’s crime statistics 
for September 2009, comparing them with the statistics for the same 
period in 2007 and 2008. 
 

 Aug 
07 

Aug 
08 

Aug 
09 

Sept 
07 

Sept 
08 

Sept 
 09 

All crime  66 47 38 37 44 39 

Violent crime  4 1 8 5 6 3 

robbery 1 0 0 0 0 0 

Burglary dwelling 4 2 5 5 1 1 

Theft of motor 
vehicle  

2 2 5 1 1 1 

Theft from motor 
vehicle 

6 7 5 3 2 8 

Criminal damage 14 14 7 4 10 6 

 
Inspector McLoughlin indicated that Operation Beachsafe which had 
operated over the summer months had now ended with encouraging 
outcomes, the figures for which he would forward to Members. 
 
Discussion took place and the following issues were raised: 

Agenda Item 8c

Page 156



FORMBY AREA COMMITTEE- THURSDAY 1ST OCTOBER, 2009 
 

22 

 

• anti-social behaviour and persons buying and selling drugs in 
Deansgate Lane, Duke Street Park and Smithy Green; 

 

• reduced staffing levels due to staff sickness impacting on the work 
of fellow police officers; 

 

• comparatively low police levels in the Formby area – it was 
suggested that it might be worthwhile for Councillors to take this up 
with Chief Superintendent Pilling, Merseyside Police; 

 

• statistics only list reported crimes;  
 

• Councillors requested that they be given telephone numbers for 
neighbourhood police officers – Inspector McLoughlin said he would 
pass on the numbers as requested but urged Councillors to contact 
the Emergency Services on 999, for serious incidents; and 

  

• Arising from the discussion, Mrs. Yorke, Advisory Group Member 
conveyed thanks for the improvements made in Duke Street Park, 
but asked when the trees which had been removed to make way for 
the new play area would be re-planted.  

 
RESOLVED: That 
 
(1) Inspector McLoughlin be thanked for his attendance; 

 
(2) the Assistant Director (Neighbourhoods) be requested to liaise 

with Inspector McLoughlin to obtain the mobile telephone 
numbers of the Formby neighbourhood police officers for 
Councillors; and 
 

(3) the Assistant Director (Neighbourhoods) be requested to contact 
the Leisure Services Director to find out when the trees in Duke 
Street Park which had been removed to make way for the new 
play area were to be re-planted. 

 
 
36. ONE VISION HOUSING  
 
The Committee received a presentation from Mr. Roy Williams, the Chief 
Executive of One Vision Housing updating on initiatives in the Formby 
area. 
 
He indicated that there were 248 One Vision Housing properties in the 
Formby Area and 42 in the Ince Blundell area; and that the following works 
had been completed under the ‘Decent Homes’ initiative: 
 

• 163 kitchens 

• 146 bathrooms 

• 219 rewires and electrical upgrades 

Agenda Item 8c

Page 157



FORMBY AREA COMMITTEE- THURSDAY 1ST OCTOBER, 2009 
 

23 

• 79 heating installations 

• 37 new roofs 

• 163 new water mains 

• 2% of homes were still recorded as non-decent due to non-
access/refusal 

• 3% of properties were on a separate programme for new roofs 

• The Decent Homes contract was now completed, but attempts were 
still being made to carry out decency work as and when due 

• The total spend on the works had been just under £2 million. 
 
Work to be completed under the Decent Homes initiative were: 
 

• 6 bathrooms 

• 6 kitchens 

• Security lights 

• 8 roofs (programme for these was likely to commence in 2010). 
 
Mr Williams further informed the Committee that the derelict garages in 
Alderson Crescent were to be disposed of and the garages at 1G to 7G 
Smithy Green were to be demolished with the area being resurfaced 
for parking.  Also, security lights were to be installed over the rear 
doors of 43 bungalows in the area. 
 
He concluded by stating that environmental works in the Formby area 
would be rolled out some time after 2013, with an anticipated total 
spend of £250,000, mainly on fencing; and on the Ince Blundell Estate 
in early 2010 with an anticipated total spend of £50,000, mainly on 
fencing. 
 
A number of questions were raised by Committee members and 
members of the public, with particular concern being expressed by 
Smithy Green residents about the closure of the local community 
centre.  Mr. Williams explained that unfortunately the building had had 
to be closed because it did not meet Disability Discrimination Act 
(DDA) requirements and presented a health and safety risk including 
exposure to asbestos.  The building would require approximately 
£300,000 to be brought up to standard – monies which would come 
from tenants rental payments and was therefore not considered to be a 
viable option. However, he indicated that in consultation with the 
Residents’ Association he had approached the Council and alternative 
options were being explored, including the possibility of using an 
unoccupied flat in the area. 
 
Ms Claire Tinsley, representing the Youth Service, suggested that the 
residents might be able to use the Redgate Centre as a meeting place 
for Smithy Lane residents. 
 
RESOLVED: That 
 

Agenda Item 8c

Page 158



FORMBY AREA COMMITTEE- THURSDAY 1ST OCTOBER, 2009 
 

24 

(1) Mr. Williams be thanked for his presentation and for the 
excellent work carried out by the Decent Homes initiative; and 
 

(2) Mr. Williams be requested to continue to explore alternative 
options to replace the community centre in Smithy Green, 
including the possibility of utilising an unoccupied flat in the 
area and / or use of the Redgate Centre. 

 
 
37. SEFTON PRIMARY CARE TRUST (PCT) - 'OUT OF HOURS 

SERVICE'  
 
The Committee received a presentation by Ms Liz Melia, Assistant Director 
to Primary Care on the Sefton Primary Care Trust’s ‘Out of Hours’ service 
in Formby. 
 
Ms Melia indicated that the Formby Integrated Care site had opened on 1 
March 2009 and operated from 11 pm to 8 am the next morning, 7 days a 
week.  She stated that overnight activity was very low. Other sites were in 
operation in Litherland and Southport. GPs could operate from Formby 
site, but GPs on the different sites could cover for each other if necessary. 
District nurses were now based at Formby overnight and District Nurses 
and GPs were now able to work more closely. 
 
To contact the ‘Out of Hours’ Service patients should take the following 
steps: 
 

1. Telephone their usual GP surgery.  
 

2. They will hear a recorded message giving an ‘Out of Hours’ 
telephone number 

Or 
3. Their call will automatically be transferred to the ‘Out of Hours’ 

service. 
 

4. A call handler will answer the call. 
 

5. The call handler will ask a series of questions, take down details, 
identify the patient’s condition and assess whether an ambulance 
will be needed. 

 
6. If an ambulance is not needed the call handler will contact a GP 

who will telephone the patient and take appropriate action. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That Ms Melia be thanked for her useful and informative presentation. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8c

Page 159



FORMBY AREA COMMITTEE- THURSDAY 1ST OCTOBER, 2009 
 

25 

38. PLAYIN' OUT PROJECT - STORAGE FACILITY  
 
The Committee received a presentation from Ms Vicki Russell, the Playin’ 
Out Co-Ordinator, Sefton CVS, who was looking for somewhere to store 
the ‘Playin Out’ equipment. 
 
Ms Russell explained that Playin’ Out was a three year Big Lottery funded 
play programme which developed and delivered a wide range of play 
activities using local parks, green spaces and the appropriate streets and 
community spaces across the Borough, at no charge to users.  The 
programme had been implemented as part of the Sefton Play Strategy – 
‘play naturally in Sefton’ which allowed children and young people 
between the ages of 4 to 16 years in 12 wards across Sefton, including 
Ravenmeols Ward in Formby, to have access to free natural outdoor play 
opportunities. 
 
Since its launch in July 2009, the project had attracted 5,000 children 
playing across the Borough, with over 800 children presently attending, in 
Formby; the programme also provided employment and volunteering 
opportunities for those over 16 years of age. 
 
Duke Street Park was the current venue for Playin’ Out in Formby and had 
proven to be extremely popular. However, the play organisers were now 
having a problem regarding storage space for the Playin’ Out equipment 
(goals, balls, books, skipping ropes, a gazebo, etc), which was presently 
being stored in a storage unit within the park. Unfortunately, now the local 
football teams were using this area again, the organisers had been told 
that the Playin’ Out equipment could no longer be stored there and the 
Senior Worker was storing it at her house which was not only unsuitable 
but also created problems with accessing the equipment. 
 
To this effect, Ms Russell asked the Committee for help in finding 
alternative, suitable storage, which was accessible and in the vicinity of 
Duke Street Park. 
 
Discussion took place and a number of suggestions were made as to 
possible storage spaces, including local schools, the library, etc. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Assistant Director (Neighbourhoods) and the Leisure Director be 
requested to liaise to see if suitable storage facilities can be found for the  
equipment associated with the Playin’ Out scheme in Duke Street Park, 
Formby.  
 
39. PARK ROAD TREE PLANTING SCHEME  
 
Further to Minute No. 12 of 21 May 2009, the Committee considered the 
report of the Leisure Director which requested a contribution towards the 
funding of a tree planting scheme along Park Road, Formby. 
 

Agenda Item 8c

Page 160



FORMBY AREA COMMITTEE- THURSDAY 1ST OCTOBER, 2009 
 

26 

The report indicated that over the last few years a number of street trees 
had had to be removed from Park Road for various reasons such as death 
or decline and recent inspections of the remaining tree stock on Park Road 
had identified a further four trees that would need to be removed before 
the end of 2009.  The planting of 11 new street trees would help to 
maintain the tree lined character of Park Road and the new trees would be 
selected and located to ensure a healthy, well balanced tree stock in this 
area for years to come. 
 
The overall cost of the tree planting scheme was £2,950, which broke 
down into approximately £268 per tree, and included the cost to supply, 
plant, tree support and after care.  The newly planted trees would receive 
initial maintenance for a period of two years to ensure that the young trees 
established; and it the trees were to die in this time (for reasons other than 
vandalism), the trees would be replaced at the contractor’s expense.  
Maintenance after this period would be met by the highway tree 
management budget. 
 
The report concluded by indicating that residents would be consulted 
before any work was done and that tree planting should be completed by 
the end of March 2010. 
 
RESOLVED: That 
 
(1) funding of £2,950 from the Committee’s delegated budget for the 

planting of trees along Park Road, Formby, be approved; and 
 

(2) the Leisure Director be requested to undertake a survey of the 
condition of trees in Windsor Road, Park Avenue and Balmoral 
Drive. 

 
 
40. QUARTERLY REPORT OF THE WOODLAND MONITORING 

GROUP  
 
The Committee considered the quarterly update report from the Woodland 
Monitoring Group. 
 
The report indicated that over the last three months, group members had 
carried out numerous visits to the woodlands and found no evidence of 
unauthorised felling taking place.  
 
Mr. David Adams, the Chair of the Woodland Monitoring Group advised 
that the group had been promised the essential maps and information 
required to ensure accurate identification of locations and details of the 
Woodland Plan, which would ensure continuity of information between that 
held by the group and that held by Leisure Services. It was hoped that 
such information would be available within the next 2-3 weeks. 
 
The report also indicated other activity undertaken by the group over the 
past three months, namely: 

Agenda Item 8c

Page 161



FORMBY AREA COMMITTEE- THURSDAY 1ST OCTOBER, 2009 
 

27 

 

• A meeting with Sefton Coast Watch together with representatives of 
the Mersey Forest where concern had been expressed over the 
future of the coastal woodlands; 

 

• Attendance at the Coastal Forum by the Group Secretary, Ms Jan 
Stirling; although concern was expressed that the Woodland 
Monitoring Group had not been included on the invitation list for this 
event; 

 

• A useful meeting between Woodland Monitoring Group Member, 
Mr. Terence Maloney and Ms Alice Kempton a senior Natural 
England Warden; and 

 

• A visit to the Lancashire Wildlife Trust’s Freshfield Dune Heath site. 
 
RESOLVED: 

 
That the Woodland Monitoring Group be thanked for their update. 
 
41. BUDGET MONITORING REPORT  
 
 
Further to Minute No. 28 of 2 July 2009, the Committee considered the 
report of the Planning and Economic Regeneration Director indicating that 
the balance of the budget available for allocation during 2009/10, including 
sums set aside for the provision of litterbins and street signs, was 
£15,093.92. 
  
There had been no requests for funding allocations of under £1,000 since 
the last meeting. 
 
Contained in the report was a proposal put forward by the Assistant 
Director (Neighbourhoods) to make it easier and quicker for elected 
members to respond to requests for funding by local residents. Currently, if 
an elected member wished to fund anything costing under £1,000 then 
they had to complete an Area Committee Budget Request form and get it 
signed off by a senior officer in the Council.  Further, anything over £1,000 
required the sponsorship of a Council Department and a formal report 
submitted to the next Area Committee meeting. 
 
In paragraph 2.2.3 of the report the Assistant Director (Neighbourhoods) 
therefore proposed that the Neighbourhoods Division take over the 
management of the budgets, whereby elected members could put forward 
a request to the Neighbourhoods Division within the total amount to spend 
in the Formby area, wherever they wished to do so; and the 
Neighbourhoods Division could action this request on their behalf.  The 
amount spent and progress on the item would then be reported back to the 
Area Committee in the Budget Monitoring Report.  Requests for support 
could still be raised at the meeting and agreed, but no formal reports or 

Agenda Item 8c

Page 162



FORMBY AREA COMMITTEE- THURSDAY 1ST OCTOBER, 2009 
 

28 

forms would be required.  The Neighbourhoods Division would be in 
attendance at the meeting and would action these additional requests. 
 
Further to Minute No. 11 (3) of 21 May 2009, Councillor Cuthbertson 
expressed concern that the street nameplate for Larkhill Lane (on the west 
side of Larkhill Lane with its junction at Victoria Road) had not yet been 
installed.  
 
RESOLVED:   That  
 
(1) the balance of £15,093.92 of the budget available for further 

allocation  
for the rest of the year be noted;  
 

(2) the remaining Area Committee budget be allocated to the 
Neighbourhoods Division with elected members maintaining 
control of   the decision making as indicated in paragraph 2.2.3 of 
the report; and 
 

(3) the Assistant Director (Neighbourhoods) be requested to action the 
installation of the street nameplate for Larkhill Lane (on the west 
side of Larkhill Lane with its junction at Victoria Road). 

 
 
42. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
 
The Committee received a brief presentation from Ms Claire Tinsley, 
Youth Worker, indicating her intention to submit a report to a future 
meeting to request funding for a project aimed at ‘at risk’ pupils with 
emotional, social and behavioural problems, who were likely to or had 
become involved in anti social behaviour and/or criminal activity.   
 
The project, initiated by the Criminal Information Bureau (CIB), would 
involve groups of youths finding out what life was like in prison as part of a 
special three to nine day course.   
 
Ms Tinsley explained that the CIB had a good track record with this 
initiative having previously given groups of youths the opportunity of 
experiencing the ‘short, sharp shock’ of a spell in Doncaster Prison.  This 
had involved being given a tour round the jail, eating the prison food and 
spending time in a prison cell. The participants had been given the 
opportunity of talking with ‘ex-cons’ and meeting victims of crime and their 
relatives. At the end of the course the youths had received a certificate of 
participation.  The participants had come back from Doncaster stating that 
they never wanted to go to prison. 
 
The cost for 15 youths to participate in this course was £350 per day. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

Agenda Item 8c

Page 163



FORMBY AREA COMMITTEE- THURSDAY 1ST OCTOBER, 2009 
 

29 

That Ms Tinsley be thanked for her presentation and her intention to 
submit a request for funding for youths to attend this course to a future 
meeting of the Area Committee be noted. 
 
43. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
The Committee discussed the long gap between the next scheduled 
meeting on 29 October 2009 and the following meeting on 7 January 
2010.  Also, that the October meeting fell during school half term which 
meant that the centre would have to open especially for the Area 
Committee meeting. 
 
 It was therefore suggested that the meeting on 29 October 2009 be 
cancelled and that the next meeting take place on 26 November 2009. 
 
RESOLVED: That 
 
(1) the meeting of Formby Area Committee scheduled to take place on 

29 October 2009 be cancelled; and 
 

(2) the next meeting be held on Thursday 26 November 2009, at the 
Professional Development  Centre, Park Road, Formby, 
commencing at 7.00 p.m. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 8c

Page 164



THE “CALL IN” PERIOD FOR THIS SET OF MINUTES ENDS AT 12 NOON ON 
 FRIDAY, 23 OCTOBER 2009.  MINUTE NOS. 52 TO 54 AND 56 TO 61 ARE 
NOT SUBJECT TO "CALL-IN" 

43 

 
CROSBY AREA COMMITTEE 

 
MEETING HELD AT THE WATERLOO RUGBY CLUB, THE PAVILION, 

ST. ANTHONY'S ROAD, BLUNDELLSANDS 
ON WEDNESDAY, 7 OCTOBER 2009 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Papworth (in the Chair) 

Councillors Hough (Vice-Chair), Barber, Cummins, 
Gibson, Parry, Roberts, Tonkiss, Veidman and 
Webster. 

 Local Advisory Group Member: 
Mr. B. Wright. 

ALSO PRESENT: Inspector Neil Turner and PCSO H. Fearn 
(Merseyside Police) and 11 members of the public. 

 
52. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Hill and D. Jones 
and Parish Councillors Hounsell and West. 
 
53. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 
54. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED:    
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 9 September 2009 be confirmed 
as a correct record. 
 
55. POLICE ISSUES  
 
Inspector Turner presented and reported on Crosby's crime statistics for 
September 2009, comparing them with the statistics for the same period in 
2007 and 2008. 
 

August 
(Figures for Hightown in brackets) 

2007 2008 2009 

All Crime 228 (0) 196 (0) 188 (0) 
 

Violent Crime 27 (0) 33 (0) 37 (0) 
 

Robbery 1 (0) 1 (0) 1 (0) 
 

Burglary Dwelling 15 (0) 16 (0) 20 (0) 
 

Unauthorised theft of Motor 
Vehicle 

5 (0) 9 (0) 3 (0) 
 

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 8d

Page 165



CROSBY AREA COMMITTEE – WEDNESDAY 7TH OCTOBER, 2009 
 

44 

Theft from Motor Vehicle 20 (0) 23 (0) 18 (0) 
 

Criminal Damage 67 (0) 35 (0) 29 (0) 
 

 
Inspector Turner reported on a number of issues including: 
 

• a concentration of offences at the beginning of September in the 
Brighton-le-Sands area to which increased resources had been 
diverted 

 

• the closure of a second "crack house" in the Claremont Road, 
Seaforth area and the continuing drugs issues in that area 

 

• the discovery of a "cannabis farm" 
 

• the continuing effective use of quad bikes by the Police (Advisory 
Group Member Mr. B. Wright congratulated the Police on this tactic, 
which had led to two arrests recently in the Little Crosby area) 

 

• the conclusion of Operation Safespace in the Coronation Park area 
 

• prioritisation of robbery and burglary offences. 
 
Inspector Turner also responded to the following points raised by 
Councillors/members of the public: 
 

• diversionary activities being planned by the Police for the forthcoming 
"Mischief Night", Hallowe'en and Bonfire Night period.  (It was 
reported that local residents had been pleased with the effectiveness 
of such diversionary activities last year.) 

 

• Police policies in relation to logging calls and responding to members 
of the public.  (Members of the public were urged to telephone the 
Police neighbourhood number [0151  777 3634] to report significant 
issues) 

 

• a request to monitor Leopold Road this Bonfire Night in the light of the 
damage caused last year by miscreants damaging fencing etc. in 
order to obtain material for bonfires.  (Inspector Turner agreed to 
monitor this area, together with as many open spaces as possible). 

 

• thanks to the Police and Fire Brigade for their assistance and advice 
given to Mr. I. Hamilton Fazey and his family following death and 
arson threats they had recently received. 

 
56. OPEN FORUM  
 
The following matters were raised during the Open Forum: 
 

Agenda Item 8d

Page 166



CROSBY AREA COMMITTEE – WEDNESDAY 7TH OCTOBER, 2009 
 

45 

(a) Ms. D. Winstanley indicated that she lived in Brownmoor Park and 
her children attended Great Crosby Catholic Primary School.  The school 
encouraged the children to walk to school but the family found it virtually 
impossible to cross Brownmoor Lane before and after school, due to the 
heavy traffic travelling at high speeds.  She asked if there were any plans 
to appoint a "lollipop person" for this stretch of road or to introduce traffic 
calming measures.  She added that she had raised this same question in 
2003 when her children started at the school and she had been told that 
the Council would look into the matter. 
 
The Assistant Director (Neighbourhoods) agreed to pursue this matter with 
her colleagues in the Technical Services Department. 
 
(b) Mr. I. Hamilton Fazey, the Chairman of the Waterloo Residents' 
Association, referred to the guidelines to the Licensing Act 2003 in relation 
to consultation on licensing policy.  Whilst acknowledging that open 
meetings and forums were not cost-free, his Association strongly urged 
the Council to adopt them as policy.  His Association also urged the 
Licensing Sub-Committee to defer consideration of all new licences in 
Crosby and Waterloo until an appropriate open meeting had been held 
and a standing consultation forum established.  The Association's 
treasurer, Mr. C. Harvey, referred to Sections 9.3 and 1.10 which, he 
believed, gave Councils sufficient flexibility to take account of objections 
received to licensing applications and to depart from their own policies, if 
considered appropriate. 
 
The Assistant Director (Neighbourhoods) had sent a written response to 
Mr. Hamilton Fazey which indicated that the Licensing Authority had no 
power to defer an application and that the Act required the Authority to 
deal with applications within 20 working days of the expiry of the 28 day 
period allowed for objections.  The response also stated that the holding of 
a consultation forum was not a statutory requirement under the Act, 
although it was recommended.  The response undertook to consider the 
possibility of arranging a number of such forum meetings as part of the 
planned review of licensing policy next year.  Whether or not a forum was 
established, any cumulative impact case for the Waterloo area would have 
to be based on sound evidence. 
 
Members acknowledged that there could be a need for the existing 
legislation to be "tweaked".  The Chair stated that he was sure that the 
Licensing and Regulatory Committee would be happy to discuss the 
general thrust of the Association's representations and it was agreed to 
refer the issue to that Committee for consideration. 
 
57. HARROWBY ROAD, SEAFORTH - PROPOSED DISABLED 

PERSON'S PARKING PLACE  
 
The Committee considered the report of the Planning and Economic 
Regeneration Director which sought approval for the progression of a 
Traffic Regulation Order to provide a disabled resident with a parking 
place directly outside their place of residence.  The report indicated that all 

Agenda Item 8d

Page 167



CROSBY AREA COMMITTEE – WEDNESDAY 7TH OCTOBER, 2009 
 

46 

new TROs for Disabled Parking Permits allowed for the provision of a 
numbered permit which restricted the use of the bay to the applicant only. 
 
It was proposed to introduce an individual Order for the road incorporating 
all the existing restrictions. 
 
RESOLVED:   That  
 
(1) the Traffic Regulation Order providing a numbered permit for the 

bay centrally located outside the following address, as set out in the 
plan at Annex A and as detailed in the report, be approved: 

 

• 28 Harrowby Road, Seaforth; and 
 
(2) the Traffic Services Manager be authorised to undertake the 

necessary legal procedures, including those of public consultation 
and advertising the Council's intention to implement the Order. 

 
58. STALEY AVENUE AND MYERS ROAD WEST, CROSBY AND 

DEVONSHIRE ROAD, WATERLOO - PROPOSED REMOVAL OF 
DISABLED PERSONS' PARKING PLACES  

 
The Committee considered the report of the Planning and Economic 
Regeneration Director which sought approval for the provision of Traffic 
Regulation Orders, to remove certain Disabled Persons' Parking Places 
(DPPs.)  The report indicated that information had been received by the 
Council that the disabled persons' parking places were no longer required, 
as the original applicants no longer lived there. 
 
It was proposed to introduce individual Orders for the roads incorporating 
all the existing restrictions. 
 
RESOLVED:   That  
 
(1) the Traffic Regulation Orders providing numbered DPPs centrally 

located outside the following addresses, as detailed in the report, 
be revoked: 

 

• 2 Staley Avenue, Crosby 

• 87 Myers Road West, Crosby 

• 35 Devonshire Road, Waterloo; and 
 
(2) the Traffic Services Manager be authorised to undertake the 

necessary legal procedures, including those of public consultation 
and advertising the Council's intention to revoke the DPPs from the 
Orders. 

 
59. BUDGET MONITORING REPORT  
 
Further to Minute No. 49 of 9 September 2009, the Committee considered 
the report of the Planning and Economic Regeneration Director indicating 

Agenda Item 8d

Page 168



CROSBY AREA COMMITTEE – WEDNESDAY 7TH OCTOBER, 2009 
 

47 

that the balance of the budget available for allocation during 2009/10, 
including sums set aside for the provision of litterbins, was £20,727.66. 
 
There had been no new requests for funding of up to £1,000. 
 
The Assistant Director (Neighbourhoods) indicated that, further to Minute 
No. 47 of 9 September 2009, funding had been found outside the existing 
delegated budget for the additional £411 required to finance the re-
designed alleygate at the rear of Hastings Road and Eastbourne Road, 
Waterloo.  She also indicated that further reductions to the unit costs for 
the provision of new street nameplates had been negotiated and she 
requested Members to supply her with a final list of priority sites for these 
nameplates as soon as possible. 
 
Members referred to instances where existing litterbins had been 
destroyed by joyriders/vandalism and questioned why replacement bins 
should have to be funded by this Committee's delegated budget.  The 
Assistant Director (Neighbourhoods) agreed to investigate this issue. 
 
60. PREVIOUS QUESTIONS RAISED IN THE OPEN FORUM  
 
Copies of responses to issues raised at previous meetings of the 
Committee were submitted for information. 
 
RESOLVED:    
 
That the correspondence be noted. 
 
61. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
RESOLVED:    
 
That the next meeting of the Committee be held at 6.30 p.m. on 
Wednesday, 4 November 2009 at SING Plus, Cambridge Road, 
Seaforth. 
 
 

Agenda Item 8d

Page 169



This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8d

Page 170


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Combined Implications for Sefton of the Draft Flood and Water Bill / Pitt Review
	5 Safer and Stronger Communities Partnership Capital Allocation
	6 Sefton Trading Standards Alcohol Survey of Young People - August 2009
	7555_TSNW_Sefton LA_Young Persons Alcohol Survey Report_090817_V

	7 Sefton Trading Standards Alcohol Survey of Young People - "Operation Soft Drink : Phase 2 - Buy Booze, They Lose"
	8a Litherland and Ford held on 30 September 2009
	8b St.Oswald and Netherton and Orrell held on 1 October 2009
	8c Formby held on 1 October, 2009
	8d Crosby held on 7 October, 2009

